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VITACOST.COM INC
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDEIR

May 2O13
Waahlngton DC

To Our Stockholders 400

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Vitacost.com Inc Delaware corporation will be held at 1000 a.m

local time on Thursday May 2013 at the Embassy Suites hotel at 661 Northwest Street Boca Raton

Florida for the following purposes

To elect six directors nominated by our Board of Directors to serve until our next annual meeting of

stockholders or in each case until his successor is elected and qualified

To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public

accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31 2013

To hold an advisory vote on executive compensation and

To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments or

postponements thereof

These items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this notice We

encourage you to read this information carefully

Our Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 25 2013 as the record date for the

determination of holders of record of our Common Stock as defined below entitled to notice of and to vote

at the meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof list of our stockholders as of the record

date will remain open for inspection during ordinary business hours beginning 10 days prior to the meeting at

the address of our executive offices set forth in the proxy statement accompanying this notice and will remain

open for inspection during the meeting

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting and vote in person Whether or not you plan to

attend the meeting and regardless of the number of shares of Common Stock you own please sign date and

return the enclosed proxy card promptly return envelope which requires no postage if it is mailed in the

United States is enclosed for your convenience You may vote in person at the meeting even if you have

previously given your proxy

Please read carefully and in its entirety the enclosed proxy statement which explains the proposals to be

considered by you and acted upon at the meeting We look forward to seeing you at the Annual Meeting

of Stockholders

Sincerely

Jeffrey Horowitz

Chief Executive Officer

Boca Raton Florida

April 2013

ALL HOLDERS OF RECORD OF OUR COMMON STOCK WHETHER YOU INTEND TO ATTEND

THE MEETING OR NOT ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO PROMPTLY COMPLETE SIGN

DATE AND RETURN THE PROXY CARD OR VOTING INSTRUCTION FORM ENCLOSED WITH

THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT AS INSTRUCTED IN THE ENCLOSED

PROXY CARD OR VOTING INSTRUCTION CARD
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DIRECTIONS TO THE EMBASSY SUITES HOTEL
AT

661 NORTHWEST 53 STREET BOCA RATON FLORIDA 33487

Directions from 1-95

Exit Yamato Road Exit 48 going west Cross over the railroad tracks and take the first right on

NW 53rd Street

Directions from the Florida Turnpike

Exit Glades Road East to 1-95 North Exit Yamato Road and go west Cross over the railroad tracks and take

the first right on NW 53 Street
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VITACOST.COM INC
5400 Broken Sound Blvd NW Suite 500

Boca Raton Florida 33487

PROXY STATEMENT

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
May 2013

This proxy statement is being furnished to all holders of record as of March 25 2013 of the Common Stock

of Vitacost.com Inc Delaware corporation in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our Board of

Directors for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at the Embassy Suites hotel at 661 Northwest

53rd Street Boca Raton Florida 33487 on Friday May 2013 at 1000 a.m local time and at any

adjournments or postponements of the meeting solely for the
purposes

stated in this proxy statement and

in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders If you need directions to the location of the

meeting please call our investor relations department at 561 982-4180

Our principal executive office is located at 5400 Broken Sound Blvd NW Suite 500 Boca Raton

Florida 33487

The approximate date of mailing of the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders this proxy statement the

enclosed proxy card and our 2012 Annual Report is April 2013

Householding of Annual Meeting Materials

Certain brokers and other nominee record holders may be participating in the practice of householding this

proxy statement and other proxy materials This means that only one copy of this proxy statement and other

proxy materials may have been sent to multiple stockholders in stockholders household We will promptly

deliver additional copies of this proxy statement and other proxy materials to any stockholder who contacts

our investor relations department at 561 982-4180 or at the address of our executive offices set forth in this

proxy statement requesting such additional copies If stockholder is receiving multiple copies of this proxy

statement and other proxy materials at the stockholders household and would like to receive in the future

only single copy of the proxy statement and other proxy materials for stockholders household such

stockholder should contact their broker other nominee record holder or our investor relations department at

561 982-4180 or at the address of our executive offices set forth in this proxy statement to request the future

mailing of only single copy of our proxy statement and other proxy materials

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE
STOCKHOLDER MEETING TO BE HELD ON MAY 2013

This proxy statement the form of the proxy card and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal

year ended December 31 2012 are available electromcally free of charge at http I/investor vitacost corn

Stockholders may also obtain copy of these materials by writing to our investor relations department

at the address of our executive offices set forth this proxy statement



VOTING AND OTHER MATTERS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING
AND PROCEDURAL MATTERS

Annual Meeting

Why ani receiving these proxy materials

The Board of Directors of Vitacost.com Inc Vitacost or the Company is providing these proxy

materials to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies for use at our Annual Meeting of

Stockholders the Annual Meeting to be held on Thursday May 2013 at 1000 a.m Eastern Time

and at any adjournment or postponement thereof for the purpose of considering and acting upon the

matters set foith herein

Where is the Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting will be held at the Embassy Suites hotel at 661 Northwest 53 Street Boca Raton

Florida 33487 The telephone number at the hotel is 561 994-8200 Stockholders are cordially invited to

attend the Annual Meeting and are entitled to and requested to vote on the proposals to elect the six

directors specified in this proxy statement approve the ratification of the independent registered public

accounting finn and hold non-binding vote on executive compensation

Who is Entitled to Vote at the Meeting

Only holders of record of our common stock par value $0.00001 per share Common Stock as of the

close of businrss on March 25 2013 the Record Date are entitled to notice of and to vote at the

meeting As of March 25 2013 there were 33567128 shares of our Common Stock outstanding No

shares of Vitacost Preferred Stock were outstanding Each outstanding share of our Common Stock is

entitled to one vote upon each matter to be acted upon at the meeting

Stock Ownership

What is the difference between holding shares as stockholder of record and as beneficial owner

Stockholders of record If on March 25 2013 your shares are registered directly in your name with

our transfer agent American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC you are considered with respect to

those shares the stockholder of record If you are stockholder of record these proxy materials have

been sent directly to you by Vitacost

Beneficial owners Most Vitacost stockholders hold their shares through broker trustee nominee or

similar organization rather than directly in their own name If on March 25 2013 your shares were held

in brokerageaccount or by bank or another nominee or similar organization you are considered the

beneficial owner of shares held in street name If you hold your shares in street name these proxy

materials have been forwarded to you by your broker trustee or nominee who is considered with respect

to those shares the stockholder of record

As the beneficial owner you have the right to direct your broker trustee or nominee on how to vote your

shares Since beneficial owner is not the stockholder of record you may not vote these shares in
person

at the Annual Meeting unless you obtain legal proxy from the broker trustee or nominee that holds

your shares giving you the right to vote the shares at the Annual Meeting

Quorum and Voting

How many shares must be present or represented to conduct business at the Annual Meeting

The presence of the holders of majority of the shares of Common Stock entitled to vote at the Annual

Meeting is necessary to constitute quorum at the Annual Meeting Such stockholders are counted as

present at the meeting if they are present
in

person at the Annual Meeting or have properly

submitted proxy card Under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware abstentions and

broker non-votes are counted as present and entitled to vote and are therefore included for
purposes

of determining whether quorum is present at the Annual Meeting



broker non-vote occurs when brOker trustee nominee or similar organization holding shares for

beneficial owner does not vote on particular proposal because the broker trustee or nominee does not

have discretionary voting power with respect to that item and has not received instructions from the

beneficial owner as to how to vote on that proposal Brokers do not have discretionary authority with

respect to any of the proposals except for the ratification of the independent registered public

accounting firm

How can attend the Annual Meeting

if you are stockholder of record or beneficial owner as of March 25 2013 please bring proof of

identity for entrance to the Annual Meeting If your shares are held in brokerage account or by bank

or other nominee you will need to bring copy of brokerage statement reflecting your stock ownership

as of the Record Date

How can vote my shares in person at the Annual Meeting9

Shares held in your name as the stockholder of record may be voted in person at the Annual Meeting

Shares held beneficially in street name may be voted in person at the Annual Meeting only if you obtain

legal proxy from the broker trustee or nominee that holds your shares giving you the right to vote

the shares Even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting we recommend that you also submit your

proxy card or follow the voting instructions described below so that your vote will be counted if you

later decide not to attend the meeting

At the commencement of the meeting we will distribute written ballot to any stockholder of record

who attends the meeting and wishes to vote in person Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting we

urge you to fill out and return the enclosed proxy card to ensure your vote is counted Even if you have

submitted proxy before the meeting you may still attend the meeting and vote in person

How can vote my shares without attending the Annual Meeting9

Stockholders of Record

If you are stockholder of record you may instruct the proxy holders how to vote your shares by mail

by completing signing dating and returning the proxy card in the postage pre-paid envelope provided

Proxy cards submitted by mail must be received by the time of the meeting in order for your shares to be

voted The proxy holders will vote your shares in accordance with those instructions If you sign and

return proxy card without giving specific voting mstructions your shares will be voted as recommended

by our Board of Directors

Beneficial Owners Street Name

If broker trustee nominee or similar organization holds your shares and you are beneficial owner

you will receive instructions from them that you must follow in order to have your shares voted The

instructions from your broker trustee nominee or similar orgamzation will indicate if Internet and

telephone voting are available and if they are available will provide details regarding Internet and

telephone voting Only that organization can sign proxy card with respect to your shares If you have

not received voting instruction form and voting instructions with these proxy materials from that

organization you are urged to contact the persons responsible for your account and give them

mstructions for how to complete proxy representing your shares so that proxy can be timely returned

on your behalf You are also invited to attend the meeting However because you are not holder of

record of our Common Stock if you wish instead to vote your shares held in street name in person at

the meeting you must obtain legal proxy from your broker bank or other nominee

What proposals will be voted on at the Annual Meeting

At the Annual Meeting stockholders will be asked to vote

To elect the six directors named in this proxy statement to serve until the next annual meeting of

stockholders or in each case until his successor is duly elected and qualified



To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Companys independent registered

public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31 2013 and

To approve our executive compensation on an advisory basis

What is the voting requirement to approve these proposals

Proposal One If quorum is present the nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be

elected to the Board of Directors

You may vote FOR or WITHHOLD on each of the six nominees for election as director

Abstentions and broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of the election although they will be

counted for purposes of determining whether there is quorum

Proposal Two The affirmative vote of majority of the votes duly cast is required to ratify the

appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm

You may vote FOR AGAINST or ABSTAIN on this proposal Abstentions are deemed to be

votes cast and have the same effect as vote against this proposal Your broker bank trust or other

nominee has the discretion to vote on routine corporate matters including the ratification of the

appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm without your specific voting

instructions and their votes will be calculated in the tabulation of the voting results on this proposal

Proposal Thre The affirmative vote of majority of the shares present in person or represented by

proxy and entitled to vote are required to approve our executive compensation on an advisory basis

You may vote FOR AGAINST or ABSTAIN on this proposal Abstentions are deemed to be

votes cast and have the same effect as vote against this proposal However broker non-votes are not

deemed to be votes cast and therefore are not included in the tabulation of the voting results on

this proposal

What happeni if do not cast vote

Stockholders of record If you are stockholder of record and you do not cast your vote no votes will

be cast on your behalf on any of the items of business at the annual meeting

Beneficial owners If you hold your shares in street name it is critical that you cast your vote if you

want it to count in the election of directors Proposal One and the approval of our executive

compensation on an advisory basis Proposal Three Proposals One and Three are non-routine matters

and
your

broker cannot vote your shares in its discretion on your behalf on any non-routine matters

In the past if you held your shares in street name and you did not indicate how you wanted your shares

voted in the ekction of directors your broker was allowed to vote those shares on your behalf in the

election of dirc ctors as the broker felt appropriate Recent rule changes eliminate the ability of your

broker to vote your umnstructed shares in the election of directors on discretionary basis Thus if you

hold your shares in street name and you do not instruct your broker how to vote in the election of

directors no votes will be cast on your behalf Your broker will however continue to have discretion to

vote any unins nicted shares on the ratification of the appointment of the Companys independent

registered public accounting firm Proposal Two Proposal Two is the only routine matter on the ballot

and your brokc can vote your shares in its discretion on your behalf if you do not provide instructions to

your
broker

How does the Board of Directors recommend that vote

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote your shares FOR the six nominees

listed in Proposal One FOR the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopŁrs LLP as the

Companys independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31 2013
and FOR the approval of our executive compensation



if sign proxy how will it be voted

All shares entitled to vote and represented by properly executed proxy cards received prior to the Annual

Meetmg and not revoked prior to the closing of the polls at the Annual Meeting will be voted at the

Annual Meeting in accordance with the mstructions indicated on those proxy cards If no instructions are

indicated on an otherwise properly executed proxy card the shares represented by that proxy card will be

voted as recommended by the Board of Directors

What happens if additional matters are presented at the Annual Meeting9

If any other matters are properly presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting including among
other things consideration of motion to adjourn the Annual Meeting to another time or place

including without limitation for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies the persons named as

proxies and acting thereunder will have discretion to vote on those matters in accordance with their best

judgment We do not currently anticipate that any other matters will be raised at the Annual Meeting

Can change or revoke my vote9

If you are stockholder of record you may change your vote by filing with Vitacosts Chief Legal

Officer and Corporate Secretary prior to your shares being voted at the Annual Meeting written notice

of revocation or duly executed proxy card in either case dated later than the prior proxy card relating

to the same shares or by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person although attendance at

the Annual Meeting will not by itself revoke proxy

If you are beneficial owner of shares held in street name subject to any rules your broker trustee

nominee or similar institution may have you may change your vote by submittmg new votmg

mstructions to your broker trustee nominee or sumlar organization or if you have obtained legal

proxy from the broker trustee nominee or similar organization that holds your shares giving you the

right to vote the shares by attenduig the Annual Meeting and voting in person

Any written notice of revocation or subsequent proxy card must be received by Vitacosts Chief Legal

Officer and Corporate Secretary prior to the taking of the vote at the Annual Meeting Such written notice

of revocation or subsequent proxy card should be hand delivered to Vitacost Chief Legal Officer and

Corporate Secretary or should be sent so as to be delivered to Vitacost.com Inc 5400 Broken Sound

Blvd NW Suite 500 Boca Râton Florida 33487 Attention Chief Legal Officer and Corporate

Secretary

Who will bear the costs of soliciting votes for the Annual Meeting

Vitacost will bear all expenses
of this solicitation including the cost of preparing and mailing these

proxy materials We have engaged MacKenzie Partners Inc as our proxy solicitor at fee not expected

to exceed $7500 plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses Vitacost may reimburse brokerage firms

custodians nominees fiduciaries and other
persons representing beneficial owners of Common Stock for

their reasonable expenses
in forwarding solicitation material to such beneficial owners Directors officers

and employees of Vitacost may also solicit proxies in person or by other means of communication Such

directors officers and employees will not be additionally compensated but may be reimbursed for

reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection with such solicitation

Where can find the voting results of the Annual Meeting

We intend to announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting and expect to provide final

results in curretit report on Form 8-K within four business days of the Annual Meeting In addition the

results will be posted on our website at http//investoivitacost.com

Stockholder Proposals and Director Nominations at Future Meetings

What is the deadline to propose actions for consideration at the 2014 annual meeting of

stockholders or to nominate individuals to serve as directors9

Requirements for stockholder proposals to be considered for inclusion in Vitacost proxy

material Stockholders may present proper proposals for inclusion in Vitacost proxy statement and for



consideration at the next annual meeting of its stockholders by submitting their proposals in writing to

Vitacost Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary in timely manner In order to be included in the

proxy statement for the 2014 annual meeting of stockholders stockholder proposals must be received by

Vitacosts Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary no later than December 2014 and must

otherwise comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act

Requirements fOr stockholder proposals to be brought beforq an annual meeting In addition Vitacost

bylaws establish an advance notice procedure for stockholders who wish to present certain matters before

an annual meeting of stockholders in general nominations for the election of directors and proposals for

any new business to be taken up at an annual meeting of the stockholders may be made or at the

direction of the Board of Directors or by any stockholder entitled to vote who has timely delivered

written notice to Vitacost Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary during the Notice Period as

defined below Any notice relating to director nomination must contain specified information

concerning the nominee and concerning the stockholder proposing such nomination and any notice

relating to other business must contain specified information concerning the business and the

stockholder proposing the consideration of such business in each case as described in the Companys

bylaws However if stockholder wishes only to recommend candidate for consideration by the

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee as it potential nominee for director see the procedures

discussed in Consideration of Director Nominees

The Notice Period is defined as the period commencing on the date 120 days prior to the one year

anniversary of the previous years annual meeting of stockholders aid terminating on the date 90 days

prior to the one year anniversary of the previous years annual meeting of stockholdgrs unless the date

of the annual meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 30 daysaftdr such anniversary date in

which case notice by the stockholder must be received no earlier than the 120th day prior to the annual

meeting and not later than the later of the 90th day prior to the annual meeting or the 10th day following

the day on which public announcement of the date of the meeting is first made by the Company As

result the Notice Period for the 2014 annual meeting of stockholders will be from January 2014 to

February 2014

How may obtain copy of the bylaw provisions regarding stockholder proposals and director

nominations

copy of the full text of the bylaw provisions discussed above may be obtained by writing to the Chief

Legal Officer arid Corporate Secretary of Vitacost and is also available through the Companys filings

with the Securities and Exchange Commission at wwwsec.gov All notices of proposals by stockholders

whether or not included in Vitacosts proxy materials should be sent to Vitacost.com Inc 5400 BrOken

Sound Blvd I1W Suite 500 Boca Raton Florida 33487 Attention Chief Legal Officer and

Corporate Secretary

How can nominate director candidates

Please refer to the section captioned Consideration of Director Nominees on page 16 of this proxy

statement and the question What is the deadline to propose
actiOns for consideration at the 204 annual

meeting or to nominate individuals to serve as directors on page of this proxy statement

Additional Information About the Proxy Materials

What should do if receive more than one set of proxy materials

You may receive more than one set of voting materials including multiple copies of this proxy sjtement

and multiple pioxy cards or voting instruction cards For example if you hold your shares in more than

one brokerage account you may receive separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in

which you hold shares If you are stockholder of record and your shares are registered in more than

one name you will receive more than one proxy card Please complete sign date and return each

Vitacost proxy card or voting instruction card that you receive to ensure that all your shares are voted



What is the mailing address for Vitacosts principal executive offices

Vitacosts principal executive offices are located at 5400 Broken Sound Blvd NW Suite 500 Boca

Raton Florida 33487

Any written requests for additional information additional copies of the proxy materials and Annual

Report notices of stockholder proposals recommendations for candidates to the Board of Directors

commumcations to the Board of Directors or any other commumcations should be sent to this address

Our internet address is wwwvitacost.com The information posted on ur website is not incorporated into

this proxy statement

Annual Report and Other Matters

Our Annual Report to Stockholders which includes our Annual Report on Form 10 for our fiscal
year

ended December 31 2012 was made available to stockholders with or preceding this proxy statement Such

Annual Report to Stockholders contains financial and other information about our company but is not

incorporated into this proxy statement and is not to be considered part of these proxy soliciting materials or

subject to Regulations 14A or 14C or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

as amended the Exchange Act The information contained the Compensation Committee Report and

the Report of the Audit Committee shall not be deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission or subject to Regulations 14A or 14C or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act

Upon payment of reasonable fee stockholders may also obtain cOpy of the exhibits to our Annual

Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31 2012 All such requests should be directed

to our Director of Investor Relations at the address of our executive offices located at 5400 Broken

Sound Blvd NW Smte 500 Boca Raton Florida 33487



PROPOSAL ONE

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

Our articles of incorporation and bylaws provide that the number of directors shall be fixed from time to time

by resolution of our Board of Directors The number of directors is currently fixed at six directors Our

articles of incorporation and bylaws provide that all directors are elected at each annual meeting of our

stockholders for term of one year and hold office until their successors are duly elected and qualified

Six directors have been nominated by our Board of Directors for election at this meeting Unless otherwise

instructed the shares represented by validly submitted proxies will be voted for the election of each of the

below-listed Board nominees to serve as directors The below-listed Board nominees have consented to be

named in this proxy statement and to serve as company directors if elected Our Board of Directors has no

reason to believe that any of such nominees will be unable or will decline to serve as company directors if

they are elected at the meeting However in the event that any of the nominees should become unable or

unwilling to serve as director the form of proxy will be voted for the election of such substitute

nominees if any as shall be designated by the remaining incumbent directors of our Board to fill the vacancy

In such event we intend to supplement this proxy statement to identify the substitute nominees if any and

provide other relevant information regarding such nominees as required by applicable securities laws

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS
THAT YOU VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES LISTED BELOW

Information and Qualifications Regarding the Nominees

The name age and principal occupation of each nominee as of April 2013 are set forth in the table below

Except as describedL below each of the nominees has been engaged in his or her principal occupation during

the past five years There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers

Following the table below is additional narrative disclosure regarding each nominee including each nominees

unique qualifications to serve on the Board of Directors

See Corporate Governance and Executive Compensation Director Compensation below for additional

information regarding the Board of Directors including procedures for nominations of directors

Term to Expire in 2014

Year First

Became

Name Age Position Director

Christopher Gaffney2X3 50 Director 2010

Stuart Goldfarb1 58 Director 2011

Jeffrey Horowitz 66 Chief Executive Officer and Director 2010

Edwin KozlowskiW 64 Director 2011

Michael Kumin3 40 Chairman of the Board 2010

Robert Trapp 64 Director 2007

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Compensation Committee

Member of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

Michael Kumin has served as Interim Chairman of the Board of Vitacost since July 2010 Mr Kumin is

Managing Partner with Great Hill Partners GHP Boston-based investment firm Mr Kumin has served

in number of positions since joining GHP in 2002 and is presently Managing Partner responsible for

originating and evaluating investment opportunities in the media internet software and business and

consumer services sectors In his position he also serves responsibility for the investment policy fundraising

investor relations and general management of GFIP Mr Kumin was designated as director by Great Hill

pursuant to the Stockholder Agreement between the Company and Great Hill Prior to joining GHP



Mr Kumin held various executive and investing positions including roles at both Apollo Management L.P

and Goldman Sachs L.P Mr Kumin has served on the Board of Directors of Spark Networks since

June 2006 Mr Kumin serves and has served on the Boards of Directors of numerous private internet

companies including BuscaPØ.com and IGN Entertainment Mr Kumiii graduated with honors from the

Woodrow Wilson School of Public International Affairs at Princeton University with Bachelor of Arts We

believe Mr Kumins extensive experience as board member of both public and private growth-oriented

technology companies his knowledge of the media internet software and business and consumer services

sectors and his wealth of expertise particularly in the areas of strategy mergers and acquisitions and

corporate finance provide the requisite qualifications skills perspective and experience that make him well

qualified to serve on our Board of Directors

Christopher Gaffney has served as Director of Vitacost since July 2010 Mr Gaffney is Managing

Partner with and one of the co-founders of GHP Mr Gaffney has been Managing Partner at GHP since its

founding 1998 and in such position he shares responsibility for the general management investment policy

fund raising and investor relations at GHP Mr Gaffney also continues to actively pursue new investments and

manage portfolio companies Mr Gaffney was designated as director by Great Hill pursuant to the

Stockholder Agreement between the Company and Great Hill Prior to working at GHP Mr Gaffney served as

an Associate Principal and General Partner for Media/Commumcations Partners predecessor orgamzation to

GHR Mr Gaffney began his career as commercial lending officer for the First National Bank of Boston in

the specialized media lending umt Mr Gaffney previously served on the Boards of Directors of LECG

Corporation from March 2010 to April 2011 Spark Networks from November 2006 to October 2007 Incentra

Solutions Inc provider
of information technology services that at the time of Mr Gaffney service traded

on the OTC Bulletin Board from August 2004 to July 2005 and Haights Cross Communications Inc an

educational and library publisher
with publicly-registered debt from March 1997 to September 2007

Mr Gaffney serves and has served on the Boards of Directors of numerous private companies including

BuscaPe corn and IGN Entertainment Mr Gaffney is summa cum laude graduate of Boston College with

degree in Accounting and Economics We believe Mr Gaffney extensive experience in all phases of the

hfecycles of growth companies with particular emphasis on companies in the media internet and business

and consumer services sectors gained as Managing Partner at well known investment firm with

$27 billion under management and his membership on numerous public and pnvate company boards of

directors provide the requisite qualifications skills perspective and expenence that make him well qualified to

serve on our Board of Directors

Stuart Goldfarb has served as our Director since February 28 2011 Mr Goldfarb has more than 25 years of

direct marketing media and e-commerce experience
He currently serves on the board of WWE Inc global

entertainment and media company Mr Goldfarb served as the President and CEO of Direct Brands Inc the

worlds largest direct marketer of music DVDs and books from 2001 to 2009 Prior to joining Direct

Brands Inc Mr Goldfarb was President and CEO of bol.com Bertelsmanns premier
online retailer of books

and music doing business in eighteen European and Asian countries Before joining Bertelsmann he was Vice

Chairman of Value Vision International cable TV home shopping and e-commerce company and was also

the former Executive Vice President Worldwide Business Development at NBC We believe Mr Goldfarbs

experience as an executive at multiple online and ecommerce companies and his experience as member of

other boards of directors provide the requisite qualifications skills perspective and experience that make him

well qualified to serve on our Board of Directors

Jeffrey Horowitz was appointed Chief Executive Officer on February 17 2011 He served as Interim Chief

Executive Officer and Director of Vitacost from August 2010 through February 17 2011 Mr Horowitz

provided consulting services to Vitacost in 2010 prior to being appointed Interim Chief Executive Officer

Over the five years prior to joining Vitacost Mr Horowitz pursued personal interests Mr Horowitz founded

Vitamin Shoppe Inc Vitamin Shoppe in 1977 and served as its President and Chief Executive Officer

from 1977 to January 2000 during which time he oversaw the retail expansion from one store in 1977 to over

200 stores in 11 states In addition Mr Horowitz expanded Vitamin Shoppe business by establishing

catalog to solicit mail order sales in 1981 and pioneered the online vitamin sales industry in 1998 with the

launch of VitaminShoppe.com Mr Horowitz also led Vitamin Shoppe during its initial public offering on The

NASDAQ Stock Market in 1999 Mr Horowitz served as President and Chief Executive Officer of



VitaminShoppe.corn Inc from July 1999 to January 2000 Mr Horowitz served as chairman of the Board of

Directors of VitaminShoppe.com Inc from June 1999 to January 2000 as Director of VitaminShoppe.com
Inc from May 1999 to 2007 and as Director of Vitamin Shoppe Industries Inc from its inception to 2007
We believe Mr Horowitzs knowledge and valuable insight into the health and weilness industry his

experience as the Chief Executive Officer of Vitamin Shoppe and his service on several boards of directors

provide the requisite qualifications skills perspective and experience that make him well qualified to serve on

our Board of Directors and as our Chief Executive Officer

Edwin Kozlowski has served as our Director since February 28 2011 Mr Kozlowski has over 30 year of

financial experience working in the retail and nutritional supplement industries Mr Kozlowski currently

serves on the board and Executive Committee of Suncoast Centers Inc social service non-profit

organization Mr Kozlowski served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Retail

Ventures Inc from 2001 to 2004 and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Chief Operating

Officer of DSW in 2001 Prior to joining Retail Ventures Inc Mr Kozlowski served as Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer of General Nutrition Companies Inc GNC from 1990 to 2000
From 1978 to 1990 Mr Kozlowski held various management positions within GNC He has also served in

senior financial positions at H.K Porter Company and Arthur Young LLP Mr Kozlowski was an officer with

the Umted States Secret Service and served in the United State Army He received Bachelor of Science in

accounting from Robert Moms University in 1975 We believe that Mr Kozlowski pnor retail operations

management and finance backgiound and his role as the Chief Financial Officer of GNC and DSW provide
the requisite quahfications skills

perspective and experience that make him well qualified to serve on our

Board of Directors

Robert Trapp M.D has served as our Director since April 2007 Dr Trapp has maintained private

practice in rheumatology in Springfield Illinois since 1989 He was faculty member at Southern Illinois

University School of Medicine from 1981 to 1989 where he served as Chief of the Division of Rheumatology
He has been principal investigator in more than 125 phase II and ffi clinical trials evaluating new

therapies in the treatment of rheumatological diseases Dr Trapp is board certified in internal medicme and

rheumatology He Fellow of the American College of Physicians and member of the American College
of Rheumatology He received Bachelor of Arts from Eartham College and his from Northwestern

University School of Medicine We believe Dr Trapps prior extensive service with our company and his

medical expertise and knowledge of our products provide the requisite qualifications skills perspective and

experience that make him well qualified to serve on our Board of Directors
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PROPOSAL TWO

RAFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has selected PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent registered public

accounting firm to audit the consolidated financial statements of Vitacost for the fiscal year ending

December 31 2013 and recomrends that the stockholders vote for ratification of such appointment In the

event of negative vote on such ratification the Audit Committee may reconsider its selection .Even if the

selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is ratified the Audit Conmiittee in its discretion may direct the

selection of different independent registered public accounting finn at any time during the year if the Audit

Committee determines that such change would be in the Companys and its stockholders best interests

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has audited our financial statements for the fiscalyear ended December 31 2011

and 2012

We expect representative of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to be present at the meeting The

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP representative will have the opportunity to make statement if he or she

desires to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate questions

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR
THE RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF PRICEWATERBOUSECOOPERS LLP

AS OUR INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

FEES PAID TO ACCOUNTANTS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is the Companys principal accountant for the year
ended December 31 2012

The table below sets forth the audit fees audit-related fees and tax fees billed to the Company by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

20121 20112

Audit fees
$529175 $542500

Audit-related fees 2700 2700

Taxfees

$53 1875 $545200

For purposes
of the preceding table the professional fees are classified as follows

Audit fees The Company incurred $529175 in fees for professional services rendered by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in connection with the audit of the consolidated financial statements

included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K the review of the quarterly consolidated financial

statements included in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three six and nine month periods

ended March 31 2012 June 30 2012 and September 30 2012 the assessment of the internal

control assertions required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other SEC filings

and accounting consultations on matters related to the annual audit or interim reviews

The Company incurred $542500 in fees for professional services rendered by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in connection with the audit of the consolidated financial statements

included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K the review of the quarterly consolidated financial

statements included in the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three six and nine month periods

ended March 31 2011 June 30 2011 and September 30 2011 the assessment of the internal

control assertions required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other SEC filings

and accounting consultations on matters related to the annual audit or interim reviews

Audit-related fees The Company incurred $2700 in fees for annual subscriptions to accounting

research and financial reporting tools provided by our principal accountants during 2012 and 2011

Tax fees The Company did not incur any tax fees by our principal accountants during 2012

and 2011
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Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy Our Audit Committee has reviewed and approved all of the fees

charged by our principal accountants The Audit Committee concluded that all services rendered diring 2012

and 2011 by our principal accountants were consistent with maintaining theft respective independence As
matter of policy we will not engage our principal accountants for non-audit services other than audit-related

services as defined by the Securitieg and Exchange Commission certain tax services and othet permissible

non-audit services as specifically approved by the chairperson of the Audit Committee and presented to the

full Board at its next regular meeting The policy also includes limits on hiring pamiers of and other

professionals employed by the principal accountants to ensure that the Securities and Exchange Commission

auditor independem rules are satisfied

Under the policy the Audit Committee must pre-approve all services provided by our principal accountants

and fees charged for these services including an annual review of audit fees audit-related fees tax fees and

other fees with specific dollar value limits for each category of service The Audit Committee will also

consider and if appropriate approve specific engagements on case-by-case basis that are not otherwise

pre-approved Any proposed engagement that does not fit within the definition of pre-approved service may
be presented to the chairperson of the Audit Committee for approval
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PROPOSAL THREE

ADVISORY APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 or the Dodd-Frank Act enables

our stockholders to vote to approve on an advisory basis the compensatioti of our Named Executive Officers

as disclosed in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commissionsrules in the Executive

Compensation section of this proxy statement beginning on page 19 below This proposal commonly known
as say-on-pay proposal gives our stockholders the opportunity to express their views on our Named
Executive Officers compensation as whole This vote is not intended to address any specific item of

compensation or any specific Named Executive Officer but rather the overall compensation of all of our

Named Executive Officers and the philosophy policies and practices described in this proxy statement

The say-on-pay vote is advisory and therefore not binding on the Company the Compensation Committee or

our Board of Directors The say-on-pay vote will however provide information to us regarding investor

sentiment about our executive compensation philosophy policies and practices which the Compensation
Committee will be able to consider when determining executive compensation for the remainder of the current

fiscal year and beyond Our Board of Directors and our Compensation Committee value the opinions of our

stockholders and to the extent there is any significant vote against the Named Executive Officer compensation
as disclosed in this proxy statement we will consider our stockholders concerns and the Compensation
Committee will evaluate whether any actions are necessary to address those concerns

As described in detail in the section entitled Compensation Discussion and Analysis in this proxy statement

along with the Summary Compensation Table and the other tables and disclosures in this Proxy Statement our

Compensation Committee implements executive compensation policies designed to align our executive

officers incentives with stockholder value creation Our executive compensation is designed to attract and

retain the most talented and dedicated executive officers possible including the Named Executive Officers

who are key to our continued successful growth Under our compensation philosophy we seek to correlate

annual and long term cash and stock incentives to achievement of measurable performance objectives

The Compensation Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 19 of this proxy statement describes the

Companys executive compensation policies and the decisions made by the Compensation Committee in fiscal

2012 in more detail Highlights of our executive compensation philosophy include the following

We implement and maintain compensation policies that tie substantial portion of each executive

officers overall compensation to corporate and/or financial objectives including individual

performance objectives

The Company granted long-term equity awards that link the interests of our executive officers

including the Named Executive Officers with those of our stockholders New Named Executive

Officers typically receive annual long-term equity awards of stock options which vest over

multi-year period and remain exercisable for 10 years from the date of grant

An independent Compensation Committee

balanced mix between long and short-term incentives

Discretion retamed by the Compensation Committee to reduce or suspend bonus payments

We believe that our executive compensation program was designed appropriately and is working to ensure

managements interests are aligned with Our stockholders interests to support long-term value creation

Accordingly we ask our stockholders to vote FOR the following resolution at the Annual Meeting

RESOLVED that the Companys stockholders
approve on an advisory basis the compensation of the

Named Executive Officers as disclosed in the Companys proxy statement for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders pursuant to the compensation disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission

including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis the compensation tables and the other

related disclosure

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE FOR
THE ADVISORY NON-BINDING VOTE APPROVING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

THE AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF THE HOLDERS OF MAJORITY OF THE SHARES PRESENT
AND ENTITLED TO VOTE IS NECESSARY FOR APPROVAL
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has determined that with the exception ofJeffrey Horowitz our Chief Executive

Officer all of its members are independent directors as that term is defined in the listing standards of The

NASDAQ Stock Market Such independence definition includes series of objective tests including that the

director is not an employee of the Company and has not engaged in various types of business dealings with

the Company In addition as further required by the NASDAQ listing standards the Board of Directors has

made subjective determination as to each independent director that no relationships exist which in the

opinion of the Board of Directors would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrymg out

the responsibilities of director

The independent dirt ctors meet regularly in executive session without executive officers present as part of its

meeting procedures

Board Committees

Our Board of Directors directs the management of our business and affairs in accordance with applicable

Delaware law and conducts its business through meetings of ourBoard of Directors and standing committees

Our Board of Directors currently has an Audit Committee Compensation Committee and

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee Our Board of Directors may establish other committees to

facilitate the management of our business

Our Board of Directors has adopted charters for our Audit Compensation and Nominating/Corporate

Governance Committees describing the authority and responsibilities delegated to each committee by our

Board of Directors Our Board of Directors has also adopted Code of Conduct and Ethics We post on our

website at http I/investor vitacost corn the charters of our Audit Compensation and Nominating/Corporate

Governance Committees our Code of Conduct and Ethics and any amendments or waivers thereto and any

other corporate governance materials contemplated by Securities and Exchange Commission or NASDAQ

regulations These documents are also available in print to any stockholder requesting copy in writing from

our Director of Investor Relations at the address of our executive offices set forth in this proxy statement

The current composition of our Audit Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating/Corporate

Governance Committee is as follows

Nombiating/Corporate

Audit Committee Compensation Committee Governance Committee

Edwin Kozlowski Chair Christopher Gaffney Christopher Gaffney

Stuart Goidfarb Michael Kumin Michael Kumin

Robert Trapp

Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee currently consists of Messrs Kozlowski Goldfarb and Trapp Mr Kozlowski serves as

chairman of the Audit Committee Our Board of Directors has determined that each current member of the

Audit Committee satisfies the independence requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market and meets the

requirements
for financial literacy under the requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market and the Securities

and Exchange Commission rules and regulations Our Board of Directors also determined that all
persons

who

served on our Audit Committee during fiscal 2012 satisfied the independence requirements of The NASDAQ

Stock Market and met the requirements
for financial literacy under the requirements

of The NASDAQ Stock

Market and the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and regulations

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr Kozlowski qualifies as an audit committee financial expert

as that term is defined in the rules and regulations established by the Securities and Exchange Commission

This designation is disclosure requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission and does not impose

upon Mr Kozlowski any duties obligations or liabihties greater
than that which would otherwise be imposed

by virtue of his membership on the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee In addition this designation

does not affect the duties obligations or liabilities of any other director or Audit Committee member
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The charter for the Audit Committee is available on our website at httpI/investor.vitacost.com
Our Audit

Committee held meetings in fiscal 2012

The functions of this committee include

meeting with our management periodically to consider the adequacy of our internal controls and the

objectivity
of our financial reporting

meeting with our independent auditors and with internal financial personnel regarding these matters

appointing compensating retaining and overseeing the work of our independent auditors

pre-approving
audit and non-audit services of our independent auditors

reviewing our audited financial statements and reports
and discussing the statements and reports with

our management independent auditor and internal auditor including any significant adjustments

management judgments and estimates or new accounting policies

reviewing the independence and quality control procedures of the independent auditor and.the

experience and qualifications
of the independent

auditors senior personnel that are providing us

audit services and

reviewing all related-party transactions for approval

Both our independent auditors and internal financial personnel meet regularly with our Audit Committee and

have unrestricted access to this committee

See Report of the Audit Committee below for more iEiformation regarding the functions of the

Audit Committee

Compensation Committee

Our Compensation Conimittee currently consists of Messrs Gaffney and Kumin Our Board of Directors has

determined that the current committee members satisfy the independence requirements
of The NASDAQ

Stock Market Bach member of this committee also qualifies as non-employee director as defined pursuant

to Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Bxchange Act Both Messrs Gaffney and Kumin qualify as outside

directors as defined pursuant to Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the

Code The Board of Directors also determined that all persons who served on our Compensation

Committee during fiscal 2012 satisfied the independence requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market

qualified as non-employee directors as -defined pursuant to Rule 16b-3 and as outside directors as defined

pursuant to Section 162m of the Code

The functions of this committee include

reviewing and as it deems appropriate recommending to our Board of Directors policies practices

and procedures relating to the compensation of our directors officers and other managerial

employees and the establishment and administration of our employee benefit plans and

exercising authority under our equity incentive plans

The Compensation Committee charter is available on our website at http//investor.vitacost.cOm
Our

Compensation Committee held meeting in fiscal 2012

The Compensation Committee Report is included in this proxy statement on page 22

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

Our nominating/corporate governance committee consists of Messrs Gaffney and Kumin Our Board of

Directors has determined that the committee members satisfy the mdependence requirements of The NASDAQ

Stock Market The Board of Directors also determined that all persons
who served on our

Nominatmg/Corporate Governance Committee during fiscal 2012 satisfied the mdependence requirements
of

The NASDAQ Stock Market The functions of this committee include

reviewing and recommending nominees for election as directors
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assessing the performance of the Board of Directors

developing guidelines for board composition

recommending processes for annual evaluations of the performance of the Board of Directors the

chairman of the Board of Directors and the chief executive officer and

reviewing and administering our corporate governance guidelines and considering other issues

relating to corporate governance

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee charter is available on our website at

http//investor.vitacost.com Our
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee held no meetings in

fiscal 2012

Consideration of Director Nominees

Stockholder Nominees

The
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee will consider properly submitted stockholder nominations

for candidates for membership on the Board of Directors as well as candidates recommended for consideration

by the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee as described below under Identifying and Evaluating
Nominees for Directors Any stockholder nominations must comply with the requirements of the Companys
amended and restated bylaws and should include all information relating to such nominee as would be

required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for the election of such nominee as director pursuant to

Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act and such nominees written consent to be named in the proxy
statement as nominee and to serve as director if elected In addition stockholder nominations should be
submitted within the time frame required by the Companys amended and restated bylaws and addressed to

Vitacost.com Inc Attention Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary 5400 Broken Sound Blvd NW
Suite 500 Boca Raton Florida 33487

stockholder that instead desires to merely recommend candidate for consideration by the

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee shall direct the recommendation in writing to Vitacost.com

Inc Attention Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary 5400 Broken Sound Blvd NW Suite 500 Boca

Raton Florida 33487 and must include the candidates name home and business contact information detailed

biographical data and qualifications information regarding any relationships between the candidate and the

Company within the last three
years and evidence of the nominating persons ownership of Company stock

Director Qualifications

In discharging its responsibilities to nominate candidates for election to the Board of Directors the

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee has not specified any minimum qualifications for serving on the

Board of Directors However the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee endeavors to evaluate

propose and approve candidates with bUsiness experience and personal skills in the health and wellness

industry finance marketing financial reporting and other areas that may be expected to contribute to an

effective Board of Directors The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee seeks tO ensure that the Board
of Directors is composed of individuals who have experience relevant to the needs of the Company and who
have the highest professional and personal ethics consistent with the Companys values and standards

Candidates should be committed to enhancing stockholder value and should have sufficient time to carry out

their duties and to provide insight and practical wisdom based on experience

Identifying and Evaluating Nominees for Directors

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee utilizes variety of methods for identifying and evaluating
director nominees Candidates may come to the attention of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

through current members of the Board of Directors professional search firms stockholders or other persons
These candidates are evaluated at regular or special meetings of the Nominating/Corporate Governance
Committee and may be considered at any point during the

year As described above the

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee considers properly submitted stockholder nominations and

recommendations for candidates for the Board of Directors Following verification of the stockholder status of

persons proposing candidates nominations and recommendations are aggregated and considered by the
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Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee If any materials are provided by stockholder in connection
with the nomination or recommendation of director candidate such materials are forwarded to the

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee The
Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee also

reviews materials provided by professional search firms or other parties in connection-with nominee- who is

not proposed by stockholder

Board MeetingslAmiual Meeting of Stockholders

Our Board of Directors held total of meetings during our fiscal year ended December 31 2012 Each
director attended at least 75% of all Board of Directors and applicable committee meetings that were held
while he was serving as Director of the Company except for Mr Gaffney While the Company does not
have formal

policy regarding attendance by members of the Board of Directors at the Companys -annual

meeting of stockholders we encourage but do not require each of our Directors to attend our annual meeting
of stockholders For the Companys 2012 annual meeting of stockholders no directors attended the meeting

Boards Role in Risk Oversight

Risk is inherent in every business As is the case in virtually all businesses we face number of risks
including operational economic financial legal regulatory and competitive risks Our management is

responsible for the day-to-day management of the risks we face Our Board of Directors as whole and
through its committees has responsIbility for the oversight of risk management

In its oversight role our Board of Directors involvement in our business
strategy and strategic plans plays

key role in its oversight of risk management its assessment of management appetite for risk and its

determination of the appropriate level of
enterprise risk Our Board of Directors receives updates at least

quarterly from senior management and
periodically from outside advisors regarding the various risks we face

mcludmg operational economic financial legal regulatory and competitive risks Our Board of Directors also
reviews the various risks we identify in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission as well as
risks relating to various specific developments such as acquisitions securities repurchases debt and equity
placements and product introductions

Our Board committees assist our- Board of Directors in -fulfilling its oversight role in certain areas of risk as
disclosed in the descriptions of each of the committees above and in the charters of each of the committees
but the full Board-- has retained responsibility for general oversight of risks Our Board of Directors satisfies

this
responsibility through full reports by each committee chair regarding the committees considerations and

actions as well as through regular reports directly from officers responsible for oversight of particular risks

within our company

Board Leadership Structure

We believe that -effective board leadership structure can depend on the experience skills and personal
interaction between persons in leadership roles as well as the needs of our company at any point in time We
maintain

separate -roles between the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman of the Board of Directors in

recognition of the differences between the two responsibilities Our Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for

setting our strategic direction and day-to-day leadership and performance of our company Our Chairman of
the Board of DireCtors provides input to our Chief Executive Officer sets the agenda for Board meetings and
presides over meetings of the full Board of Directors as well as executive sessions of our Board of Directors

Separating the
positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors allows our Chief

Executive Officer to focus on our day to day business while allowing the Chairman of the Board of Directors
to lead the Board of Directors in its fundamental role of providing independent advice to and oversight of

management The Board of Directors believes that havmg an independent director serve as Chairman of the
Board of Directors is the appropriate leadership structure for the Company at this time and demonstrates our
commitment to good corporate governance

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Our Compensation Committee
currently consists of Messrs Gaffney and Kumin None of the members of our

Compensation Committee has at any time served as an officer or employee of Vitacost None of our
executive officers currently serves or in the past year has served as member of the Board of Directors or
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Compensation Committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving on our Board of

Directors or Compensation Committee

Contacting the Board of Directors

Communications from stockholders to the non-employee directors should be addressed to the Chairman or any

specified
individual director as follows Vitacost.com Inc 5400 Broken Sound Blvd NW Suite 500 Boca

Raton Florida 33487 Attention Chainnan or any specified
individual director

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our current executive officers

Name Age
Position

Jeffrey Horowitz 66 Chief Executive Officer/Director

Brian Helman 43 Chief Financial Officer

David Zucker 45 Chief Marketing Officer

Joseph Topper Jr 52 Chief Information Officer/Chief Technology Officer

Mary Marbach 46 Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary

Jeffrey Horowitz was appointed Interim Chief Executive Officer and Director of our company in

August 2010 and be ame our Chief Executive Officer February 2011 Mr Horowitz biographical

information is listed above under the heading Election of Directors Nominees

Brian Helman was appointed Chief Financial Officer effective February 29 2012 Prior to joining
Vitacost

Mr Helman had been the Chief Financial Officer of Intermedix Corporation since 2010 Prior to that time

Mr Helman was Chief Financial Officer of Rosetta Stone Inc from 2007 to 2010 Chief Financial Officer of

JME Software from 2006 to 2007 and Chief Financial Officer of Neon Systems Inc from 2002 to 2006

David Zucker was appointed
Chief Marketing Officer effective September 2011 Prior to joining

the

Company Mr Zucker was the Chief Marketing Officer of Gilt Group Inc an online lifestyle retailer from

2009 to 2011 Prior to joining Gilt Group Inc Mr Zucker was the Global Director of Customer Relationship

Management and Implementation at Dell Inc from 2006 to 2009 and was Vice President of Customer

Relationship Management at Home Shopping Network from 2004 to 2006 Mr Zucker has also held senior

positions at Martha Stewart Living Omnimedia and Priceline.com

Joseph Topper Jr was appointed
the Companys Chief Information Officer/Chief Technology Officer on

August 2012 Prior to joining
the Company Mr Topper was the Senior Vice President of Customer Success

at Rosetta Stone from 2009 to 2012 From 2007 to 2009 Mr Topper was the Chief Information Officer at

Rosetta Stone From 2005 to 2007 Mr Topper was the Senior Vice President of Operations at Apex

Covantage

Mary Marbach was appointed Chief Legal Officer in December 2009 and our Corporate Secretary
in

July 2010 In January 2013 she was named our Chief Legal Officer Ms Marbach has been an attorney at the

Company since July 2009 Prior to joining the Company Ms Marbach was Senior Transactional Counsel at

Imperial Finance and Trading LLC in Boca Raton Florida Ms Marbach was an associate at Greenberg

Traung LLP in its Corporate and Securities Group in Boca Raton Honda from 2002 through 2004 Pnor to

that she was an associate at Momson Foerster LLP in its Corporate Securities Group in Palo Alto

California Ms Marbach is member of the State Bar of California and the State Bar of Florida

18



EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Overview

Our executive compensation program is designed to enable us to attract and retain key personnel and provide

incentives that promote short and long-term financial growth and stability to enhance stockholder value based

on pay-for-performance model Our compensation committee reviews and recommends to our Board of

Directors the compensation program for our Named Executive Officers and oversees our exŁcütive

compensation strategy In 2012 our Named Executive Officers were Jeffrey Horowitz our Chief Executive

Officer Stephen Markert Jr our Interim Chief Financial Officer Brian Helman our Chief Financial

Officer David Zucker our Chief Marketing Officer Joseph Topper Jr our Chief Information Officer and

Chief Technology Officer and Mary Marbach our Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary

The discussion in this section describes compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers for services

rendered to us in all capacities during our fiscal year ended December 31 2012

Our executive compensation program provides for the following elements

base salaries which are designed to allow us to attract and retain qualified candidates

incentive compensation which provides additional cash compensation and is designed to support our

pay-for-performance philosophy and align compensation with our corporate strategies and business

and financial objectives

equity compensation principally in the form of stock options which are granted to incentivize

executive behavior that results in increased stockholder value and

benefits package that is available to all of our employees

We provided stockholders say-on-pay advisory vote on our executive compensation in 2012 under Section

14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act as amended At the Companys 2012

Annual Meeting of Stockholders stockholders expressed substantial support for the compensation of the

Companys NEOs with approximately 89.4% of the votes cast for approval of the say-on-pay advisory

vote The compensation committee carefully evaluated the results of the 2012 advisory vote in connection

with its evaluation of our executive compensation programs more generally Taking into account the results of

the
say-on-pay vote along with other factors such as our corporate business objectives and the Compensation

Committees review of peer group data as discussed in more detail below the Compensation Committee did

not make any changes to the Companys executive compensation program and policies as result of the 2012

say-on-pay advisory vote

detailed description of these components is provided below

Elements of Our Executive Compensation Program

Base Salary The base salary provides cash compensation for performing the essential elements of

our executive positions We strive to set our base salaries at levels that we believe are competitive in our

market and provide our executives level of compensation that permits them to focus their energies on

job performance

Annual Bonus/incentive Compensation Our incentive compensation in the form of cash payment is

intended to compensate our executives after the end of the calendar year based on our corporate and financial

as well as the individual executives performance We may set multiple objectives for an exetutive to achieve

specific incentive payment may be earned for meeting one or more of such objectives Further our

incentive compensation is intended to reward and incentivize our executives for exceeding their objectives We

may grant discretionary cash bonuses as an award to our executives for performance that is not necessarily

rewarded by the incentive compensation or to attract new executives to join our management team

Equity-Based Compensation Generally the goals of our equity based compensation are intended to align the

interests of our Named Executive Officers with the interests of our stockholders When hired our Named

Executive Officers typically receive equity awards in the form of stock options that vest equally over period

19



of five years in an effort to encourage
the long-term retention of our executives We may grant additional

equity awards including stock options to our executive officers subsequent to theft initial equity award when

evaluating their overall compensation Stock option grants or other awards may vest immediately as

determined by our compensation committee to be consistent with our objectives The exercise price of our

stock option grants is the fair market value of our stock on the grant date Also our stock option awards

typically provide for the acceleration of vesting of options in the event of change in control of our company

In 2013 the compensation committee adopted policy regardmg the timing of grants in relation to the release

of material information to our stockholders It is now the Companys policy to not time equity award grants in

relation to the release of material non-public information Instead equity awards granted by the Compensation

Committee will be granted effective only as of the Monday of the month on or next following the date of

approval of the award by the Compensation Committee as applicable For example if the Compensation

Committee meets on the Tuesday of November equity awards it then approves
will be effective on the

2nd Monday of the immediately following December In contrast if the Compensation Committee meets on

the Monday of November equity awards it then approves
will be effective on that day

Benefits We provide our Named Executive Officers other benefits generally available to our employees such

as health benefits 401k plan and life and disability insurance These benefits are intended to provide

support to our executives and their families throughout various stages of their careers and these core benefits

are provided to all executives regardless of their individual performance levels The 40 1k plan allows

participants to defer their annual compensation subject to the limitations set by the Internal Revenue Code

which was $17000 per person for 2012 The executives elective deferrals are immediately vested and

non-forfeitable upon contribution to the 40 1k plan

Determining the Amount of Each Element of Compensation

Base Salary Generally base salaries for our Named Executive Officers are established through negotiation

when the executive is hired Factors we considered in the negotiation are prior experience qualifications prior

salary and our need for the particular qualifications of such executive Adjustments in base salary are based on

the executive responsibilities performance and their overall compensation package We review our

executives base sal nies annually taking into consideration the executive level of responsibilities

performance tenure and salaries of our cornparable executive and an employees overall compensatory

arrangement In the event of matenal changes in position responsibilities or other factors the compensation

committee may consider changes in base pay during the year Our Named Executive Officers base salaries are

reviewed and approved by our Board of Directors

In 2012 there were no increases in the base salaries of our executives except 5% increase to the base salary

of Ms Marbach in connection with her annual performance review

Annual Bonus/Incentive Compensation Incentive compensation provided to our Named Executive Officers is

determined by the Compensation Committee The Compensation Committee evaluates the Companys

corporate and financial performance as well as the individual executive performance in order to determine

the percentage achievement of each executives annual target bonus Any incentive compensation awarded

during the year is payable subsequent to completion of our annual audit Our Compensation Committee or

appropriate executive has the authority to modify bonus structure during the year if deemed appropriate

Examples of circumstances in which we may cOnsider revising bonus plan include acquisitions mergers

divestitures successful expansion of distribution or manufacturing capabilities and other material changes in

our Company The compensation committee determines the final award of incentive cash bonuses for the

Companys Named Executive Officers Based upon the Companys overall performance no performance-based

incentive cash bonuses were awarded to the Companys Named Executive Officers in 2012

Allocation of Equity Compensation Awards

In 2012 we granted stock options to certain of our Named Executive Officers hired in 2012 Stock options to

purchase 330000 shares of our common stock were granted to Mr Helman in connection with his

appointment as Chief Financial Officer Stock options to purchase 300000 shares of our common stock were

granted to Mr Topper in connection with his appointment as Chief Information Officer/Chief Technology

Officer In addition discretionary option award was granted to Ms Marbªch to purchase 100000 shares of

common stock in connection with her annual performance review
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Our Compensation Committee does not apply rigid formula in allocating stock options to executives as

group or to any particular executive Instead our Compensation Conmiittee exercises its judgment and

discretion and considers among other things the role and responsibility of the executive competitive factors

the amount of stock-based equity compensation already held by the executive the non-equity compensation

received by the executive and the total number of options to be granted to all participants during the year Our

Compensation Conmiittee typically makes annual grants of equity awards to our Named Executive Officers in

connection with its annual review of our employees compensation The options granted to new hires were

granted pursuant to the terms of employment agreements entered into in 2012 with those executives See

Employment Agreements and Change in Control Agrenents

Executive Equity Ownership

We believe it is important for our Named Executive Officers to have their interests aligned with our

stockholders and therefore to be granted equity incentive awards We have not however established specific

stock retention and ownership guidelines for our executives

Type of Equity Awards

Our stock award plans permits us to issu qualified and non-qualified stock options stock appreciation rights

restricted stock stock units bonus stock and other equity awards

Severance and Change in Control Arrangements

For description of the severance and change in control arrangements we have with our Named Executive

Officers see Executive Compensation Employment Agreements and Executive Compensation

Payments Upon Termination or Upon Change in Control The Compensation Committee believed that these

arrangements were necessary to attract and retain our Named Executive Officers The terms of each

arrangement were determined in negotiation with the applicable Named Executive Officer in connection with

the executives hiring and were not based on any set formula

Effect of Accounting and Tax Treatment on Compensation Decisions

In the review and establishment of our compensation programs we consider the anticipated accounting and

tax implications to us and our executives In this regard we may begin utilizing restricted stock and restricted

stock units as additional forms of equity compensation incentives in response to changes in the accounting

treatment of equity awards under the authoritative accounting guidance While we consider the applicable

accounting and tax treatment of alternative forms of equity compensation these factors alone are not

dispositive and we also consider the cash and non-cash impact of the programs and whether program is

consistent with our overall compensation philosophy and objectives

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code imposes limit on the amount of compensation that we

may deduct in any one year with respect to our Chief Executive Officer and each of our three highest

compensated officers excluding our Chief Financial Officer unless specific and detailed criteria are satisfied

Performance-based compensation as defined in the Internal Revenue Code is fully deductible if the programs

are approved by stockholders and meet other requirements In general we have determined that we will not

seek to limit executive compensation so that it is deductible under Section 162m However from time to

time we monitor whether it might be in our interests to structure our compensation programs to satisfy the

requirements of Section 162m We seek to maintain flexibility in compensating our executives in manner

designed to promote our corporate goals and therefore our compensation conimittee has not adopted policy

requiring all compensation to be deductible

Role of Executives in Executive Compensation Decisions

Our Compensation Committee seeks input from our Chief Executive Officer when discussing the performance

of and compensation levels for our Named Executive Officers other than himself The Compensation

Committee also works with the Chief Executive Officer and with our Chief Financial Officer in evaluating the

financial accounting tax and retention implications of our various compensation programs No executive

participates in deliberations relating to his or her own compensation
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The information contained in this report will not be deemed to be soliciting material or th be filed wilh

the Securities and Exchange Commission nor will such information be incoiporated by referene into any

flaure filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act except to the extent that we spec/kally incorporate

it by reference in such filing

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis set

forth in this Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A with our management Based on such review and discussions

the Compensation Committee has recommended to our board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

be included in this Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A

Compensation Committee

Michael Kumin

Christopher Gaffney

Summary of Cash and Other Compensation

The Summary Compensation Table below presents information concerning the total compensation of our

Named Executive Officers for the fiscal years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Mr Helman and

Mr Topper were not Named Executive Officers prior to 2012 therefore their compensation information is not

presented for fiscaL 2010 and 2011

Summary Compensation Table

$50000 $1376100

789000

$1667251

19028

64801

17576

828000

364801

934496

Non-Equity

Option Incentive Plan All Other TotaL

Salary BonusW Awards2 Compensation Compensation3 Compensation

Jeffrey Horowitz4 2012 $400000 $228697 628697

Chief Executive Officer 2011 $374141 $2434155 $275000 $25470 $3108765

2010 $153846 894000 75000 $1122846

Brian He1man5 2012 $241151

Chief Financial Officer 2011

2010 .$

David Zucket6 2012 $300000

Chief Marketing Officer 2011 $108892

2010

JosephR.TopperJr.5 2012 $111135

Chief Information Officer/Chief 2011

Technology Officer

2010

Mary Marbach 2012 $210000

Chief Legal Officer and
2011 $200450

Corporate Secretary
2010 $140000

Stephen Markert 2012 45980

Former Interim Chief 2011 $276 021
Financial Officer

2010 37058

We report executive plan awards in the colunm titled Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation

Amounts shown do not reflect compensation actually received by the Named Executive Officer Instead

the amounts represent the aggregate grant date fair value related to option awards granted in the year

indicated pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718 For

discussion of the valuation assumptions see Note to our consolidated financial statemehts

Named Executive Officers who received peisonal benefits valued at $10000 or more in the aggregate

during the fiscal year ending December 31 2012 The All Other Compensation listed for Mr Horoiitz is

comprised of travel expenses
of $221597 and insurance benefits of $7100 The All Other Compensation

listed for Mr Zucker is comprised of travel and lodging expenses contractually agreed upon in his

employment agreement of $63301 and insurance benefits of $1500 The All Other Compensation listed

72583

335000

.$ 326000

$1011718

$100000

40000

545000

300450

506000

$150000

10000

$231684 277664

426021

47058
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for Mr Topper is comprised of relocation expense contractually agreed upon in his employment

agreement of $72098 and insurance benefits of $485 The All Other Compensation listed for Mr Desai is

comprised of the severance payment in connection with his tennination of $125000 living and relocation

expenses of $40000 and insurance benefits of $880 The All Other Compensation listed for Mr Markert

is comprised of the severance in connection with his resignation from the Company of $225000 living

expenses of $6004 and insurance benefits of $680

Mr Horowitz became Chief Executive Officer on February 17 2011 Prior to his appointment as the

Companys Chief Executive Officer he served as the Companys Intenm Chief Executive Officer from

August 2010 through February 2011

Named Executive hired in 2012

Named Executive hired in 2011

Mr Markert resigned as Interim Chief Financial Officer effective February 24 2012

Stock and Option Award Grants and Exercises

The following table summarizes information concerning grants of plan-based awards made by tis for services

rendered during the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 to each of the Named Executive Officers

All Other

Option
Awards

Number of Exercise or Grant Date
.. ayou er

on- qui cen ye an war
Underlying of Option of Stock and

Threshold Target Maximum Options Awards Options

Name Grant Date $ISh Awards2

Jeffrey Horowitz 2012 $275000

Brian Helman 2012 $142500

2/29/2012 330000 $8.20 $1376100

David Zucker 2012 $150000

Joseph Topper Jr 2012 $137500

8/9/2012 300000 $5.54 828000

Mary Marbach 2012 $105000

1/24/2012 100000 $6.61 335000

The exercise price for the stock option was the closing price of our common stock on the day prior to the

grant date as reported on the NASDAQ Stock Market

The grant date fair value of options is based on the fair value calculated pursuant to Statement of

Financial Accounting Codification Topic 718 For discussion of the valuation assumptions see Note

to our consolidated financial statements in our current report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2012

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Yar End

Number of Number of

Securities Securities

Underlying Underlying
Unexercised Unexercised Option Option

Options Options Exercise Expiration

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price Date

Jeffrey Horowitz 200000 $8.9 10 8/2/202

370112 2126382 $3.750 6/22/2022

173431 193819 $4.330 9/12/2022

Brian Helman 330000 $8.200 2/28/2021

David Zucker 60000 240000 $4330 9/12/2021

Joseph Topper Jr 3000006 $5.540 8/9/2022

Mary Marbach 20000 30000 $9.720 2/3/2019

1000008 $6.610 1/24/2021
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The aggregate number of option awards outstanding at December 31 2012 was 5209250 The aggregate

number of option awards owned by our Named Executive Officers at December 31 2012 was 2530000

These options vest as follows 10632 on the 15th day of each month through August 15 2014

These options vest as follows 10201 on the 16th day of each month through July 16 2014

These options vest as follows 66000 vest on each of February 28 2013 2014 2015 2016 and

2017 respectively

These options vest as follows 60000 vest on each of September 122013 2014 2015 and

2016 respectively

These options vest as follows 60000 vest on each of August 2013 2014 2015 2016 and

2017 respectively

These options vest as follows 10000 vest on each of February 2013 2014 and 2015 respectively

These options vest as follows 20000 vest on each of January 24 2013 2014 2015 2016 and

2017 respectively

Pension Benefits

We do not maintain any defined benefit pension plans

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

We do not maintain any nonqualified deferred compensation plans

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change In Control

If the Named Executive Officers employment had been terminated on December 31 2012 for any reason

other than change of control as defined in the emp1oyment agreements entered into with each Named

Executive Officer or Xerminated pursuant to change of control on December 31 2012 each executive would

have received the payments described in the following table

Potential

Single Trigger

Termination Option Vesting

Termination due to Change due to Change
Name Benefit without Cause in Control in Control Death Disability

Jeffrey Horowitz Continuation of Salary 400000 400000

Accelerated Vesting of Options6X7 1119150 1119150 1119150

$1519150 $1519150 $1119150

Brian Helman Continuation of 142500 142500 $71250 $142500

Accelerated Vesting of 0ptions --

142500 142500 $71250 $142500

David Zucker Continuation of Salary2X3X4X5 150000 150000 $75000 $150000

Accelerated Vesting of Options 588000 588000

150000 738000 588000 $75000 $150000

Joseph Topper Jr Continuation of Sala2X3X4XS 137500 137500 $68750 $137500

Accelerated Vesting of Options 372000 372000

137500 509500 372000 $68750 $137500

Mary Marbach Continuation of Salary2X3X4 100000 100000 $50000 50000

Accelerated Vesting of Options7 17000 17000

100000 117000 17000 $50000 50000

Payable over 12 month period subject to executive executing and delivering to us full and

unconditional release and executive paying any and all amounts owed to us under any contract

agreement or loan document

Termination without cause obligation payable in lump sum within 30 days subject to executive

executing and delivering to us full and unconditional release and executive paying any and all amounts

owed to us under any contract agreement or loan document
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Change in control amount obligation in single lump sum within .10 days of termination

Death or disability obligation payable in single lump sum within 30 days subject to delivery of full

and unconditional release and payment of any and all amounts owed to us by the executive under any

contract agreement or loan document

Payments due upon termination due to change in control are payable only if the executive is terminated

without cause or terminates for good reason within 12 months of the change in control

Vesting of unvested options is accelerated upon termination

Vesting of unvested optiótis can be accelerated due to change in control if options ire not assumed by

the buyer

Employment Agreements and Change-In-Control Arrangements

Jeffrey Horowitz

On February 17 2011 in connection with his appointment as Chief Eiecutive Officer the Company and

Mr Horowitz entered into an employment agreement that has four
year

term from its Fommencement date

of August 16 2010 and supersedes his previous consulting agreement with the Company In consideration for

Mr Horowitzs services we will pay Mr Horowitz an annual salary of $400000 For the period from

August 16 2010 through December 31 2010 Mr Horowitz was paid bonus of $75000 and for the 2011

calendar year Mr Horowitz was paid guaranteed bonus of $275000 For the period from August 16 2010

until the date of the agreement Mr Horowitz was paid lump sum equal to the difference between the annual

salary that would have been paid under the employment agreement and the amount he was paid pursuant to

his consulting agreement for such period Mr Horowitz was also granted nonqualified stock options to

purchase 950000 shares of the common stock of the Company The options vest periodically and will be fully

vested on August 15 2014 In addition Mr Horowitz is eligible to participate in our standard employee

benefits programs available to senior executives Under the employment agreement in the event

Mr Horowitzs employment is terminated by us without cause or by Mr Horowitz for good reason as such

terms are defined in the employment agreement Mr Horowitz will be entitled to receive the following

severance equal to twelve months of Mr Horowitzs annual salary or if less the salary that would have been

paid had he remained employed through August 15 2014 payable as and when such salary would have been

payable had his employment not ended prorated
annual bonus for the year

of termination and complete

vesting of any stock options that had not yet vested If Mr Horowitzs employment is terminated due to his

death or disability he or his estate will be entitled to payment of prorated annual bonus for the year
of

termination Mr Horowitzs receipt of the severance benefits discussed above is contingent on Mr Horowitz

signing and not revoking release of claims against us Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement

in the event that change of control occurs all of Mr Horowitzs options
will vest immediately upon the

change of control

Stephen Markert Jr

On October 19 2010 we entered into an employment agreement with Stephen Markert Jr Interim Chief

Financial Officer which can be terminated by the employee or us upon 60 days written notice Mr Markert

initially received salary of $235000 annually and was eligible to earn discretionary bonuses and employee

benefits commensurate with his position On May 14 2011 Mr Markerts salary was increased to $300000

annually Mr Markert was also entitled to reimbursement of living expenses
of up to $2000 per month Under

his agreement Mr Markert is subject to confidentiality non-solicitation and non-competition agreement

during the period he is employed for one-year period following termination On January 25 2012

Mr Markert informed us of his resignation as Interim Chief Financial Officer On February 24 2012 we and

Mr Markert entered into an Employment Termination and General Release Agreement the Markert

Agreement setting forth the terms of Mr Markerts departure Under the terms of the Markert Agreement

Mr Markerts employment was terminated effective February 24 2012 Upon receipt of an unconditional

release we paid Mr Markert lump sum payment of $225000

Brian Helman

On January 25 2012 in connection with Mr Helmans appointment as Chief Financial Officer we and

Mr Helman entered into an employment agreement outlining the terms of Mr Helmans employment Under

the terms of the Employment Agreement Mr Helman initially received base salary of $285000 per year
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and an annual bonus of up to 50% of his base salary plus one-time $50000 bonus which was paid in

December 2012 After approval of the award grant by our Board of Directors we issued to Mr Helman

options to purchase 330000 shares of our common stock The options vest 20% per year over five years hi

addition Mr Helman is eligible to participate in our standard employee benefits programs available to senior

executives Under the Employment Agreement in the event Mr Helmans employment is tenninated by the

Company without cause or by Mr Helman for good reason Mr Helman will be entitled to receive severance

benefits equal to six months of his base salary plus prorated bonus for the year of termination payable in

lump sum not more than thirty days following the date of termination In the event that Mr Helmans
employment is terminated without cause or by Mr Helman for good reason during the twelve months

following change in control of the Company then Mr Helman will be entitled to receive bonus prorated

through the date cf his termination and severance amount equal to six months of his current base salary

payable in lump sum not more than ten days following the date of termination Mr Helman or his estate is

also entitled to prorated bonus and other benefits in the event that Mr Helmans employment is terminated

due to his death or disability Mr Helman receipt of the severance benefits discussed above is contingent on
Mr Helman signing and not revoking release of claims against the Company Pursuant to the terms of an

option award granted to Mr Helman in the event that change of control occurs and Mr Helman
options

are not assumed by the
acquiror

all of Mr Helmans options will vest immediately upon the change
of control

David Zucker

On August 22 20 connection with Mr Zucker appointment as Chief Marketing Officer we and
Mr Zucker entered into an employment agreement the Zucker Employment Agreement outlining the

terms of Mr Zucker employment Under the terms of the Zucker Employment Agreement Mr Zucker will

receive base saltry of $300000 per year and an annual bonus equal to up to 50% of his base salary which

was guaranteed on prorated basis for 2011 After approval of the award grant by our Board of Directqrs we
issued to Mr Zuci er options to purchase 300 000 shares of our common stock The options vest 20% per year

over five years In addition Mr Zucker receives $5000 monthly for living and travel
expenses and is eligible

to participate our standard employee benefits programs available to senior executives Under the Zucker

Employment Agreement in the event Mr Zuckers employment is terminated without cause Mr Zucker will

be entitled to receive severance benefits equal to six months of his base salary plus prorated bonus for the

year
of termination payable in lump sum not more than thirty days followmg the date of termination In

the event that Mr Zucker employment is terminated without cause or by Mr Zuckei for good reason dung
the twelve months following change in control of the Company then Mr Zucker will be entitled to receive

bonus prorated through the date of his termination and severance amount equal to six months of his

current base salary payable in lump sum not more than ten days following the date of termination

Mir Zucker or his estate is also entitled to prorated bonus and other benefits in the event that Mr Zuckers

employment is terminated due to his death or disability Mr Zuckers receipt of the severance benefits

discussed above is contingent on Mr Zucker signing and not revoking release of claims against us Pursuant

to the terms of the option award granted to Mr Zucker in the event that change of control occurs and

Mr Zuckers options are not assumed by the acquiror all of Mr Zuckers options will vest immediately upon
the .change of control

Joseph Topper Jr

On August 2012 in connection with Mr Topperss appointment as Chief Information Officer/Chief

Technology Officei we and Mr Topper entered into an employment agreement the Topper Employment

Agreement outlining the terms of Mr Toppers employment Under the terms of the Topper Employment

Agreement Mr Topper will receive base salary of $275000 per year and an annual bonus equal to up to

50% of his base salary After approval of the award grant by our Board of Directors we issued to Mr Topper

options to purchase 300000 shares of our common stock The options vest 20%
per year over five years In

addition Mr Topper received $50000 net of taxes for relocation expenses and is eligible to participate in

our standard employee benefits programs available to senior executives Under the Topper Employment

Agreement in the event Mr Toppers employment is terminated without cause Mr Topper will be entitled to

receive severance benefits equal to six months of his base salary plus prorated bonus for the year of

termination payable in lump sum not more than thirty days following the date of termination In the event
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that Mr Toppers employment is terminated without cause or by Mt Topper for good reason during the

twelve months following change in control of the Company then Mr Topper will be entitled to receive

bonus prorated through the date of his termination and severance amount equal to six months of his current

base salary payable in lump sum not more than ten days following the date of termination Mr Topper or

his estate is also entitled to prorated
bonus and other benefits in the event that Mr Toppers employment is

terminated due to his death or disability Mr Toppers receipt of the severance benefits discussed above is

contingent on Mr Topper signing and not revoking release of claims against us Pursuant to the terms of the

option award granted to Mr Topper in the event that change of control occurs and Mr Toppers options are

not assumed by the acquiror all of Mr Toppers options will vest immediately upon the change of control

Mary Marbach

On December 2009 we entered into an employment non-competition and proprietary rights agreement with

Mary Marbach Chief Legal Officer for one-year term automatically renewable for additional one-year

terms annually unless otherwise terminated by the employee or us The current one-year term will continue

until December 2013 Ms Marbach earns salary of $210000 annually and is eligible to earn annual

performance bOnuses vacation and employee benefits commensurate with her position
If Ms Marbachs

employment is terminated by us without cause as defined in her agreement in addition to any

compensation and benefits accrued through such termination Ms Marbach may subject to her execution of

general release of claims against us receive lump-sum severance payment in an amount equal to

six months of base salary accrued yet unused vacation pay and prorated portion of the annual perfonnance

bonus earned through the date of termination as well as up to 18 months of employee-paid continuation

medical benefits If Ms Marbachs employment is terminated by us without cause or by Ms Marbach for

good reason as defined in her agreement in either case during the twelve month period immediately

following change in control as defined in her agreement then in lieu of the amounts specified in the

preceding sentence in addition to any compensation and benefits accrued through such termination

Ms Marbach shall be entitled to severance amount equal to months of her then base salary If

Ms Marbachs employment terminates due to her death or disability she or her estate will receive lump

sum payment equal to the sum of three months base salary accrued yet unused vacation pay and prorated

portion of the annual performance bonus earned through the date of termination in addition to any

compensation and benefits accrued through such termination Under her agreement Ms Marbach is subject to

confidentiality non-solicitation and non-competition agreement during the period she is employed and for

period of two years
thereafter Pursuant to the terms of an option award granted to Ms Marbach in the event

that change of control occurs and Ms Marbachs options are not assumed by the acquiror
certain of

Ms Marbachs options will vest immediately upon the change of control

Compensation Risk Assessment

Our compensation committee and management have considered whether our compensation programs for

employees create incentives for excessive or unreasonable risks that could have material adverse effect on

us Our compensation committee believes that our compensation plans are consistent with practices for our

mdustry and that risks arising from our compensation policies and practices are not reasonably likely to have

material adverse effect on us

Director Compensation

Directors who are also our employees are not separately compensated for their services as directors but are

reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection with providing board services The following

table summarizes compensation earned by our non-employee directors in 2012

Fees Earned

or Paid in

Cash _________ _________ ___________

Michael Kumin Chairman $25000

Edwin Kozlowski $20000

Robert Trapp M.D $15000

Christopher Gaffney $15000

Stuart Goldfarb $15000

Option
Awards

All Other

Compensation

$-

Total

Compensation

$25000

$20000

$15000

$15000

$15000
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The aggregate number of shares subject to stock options outstanding at December 31 2012 for each

non-employee director was as follows

Aggregate Number
of Options Awards

Outstanding as of

December 31 2012

15000

10000

24800

5000

5000

Cash Compensation of Non-Employee Directors in Fiscal 2012

Dunng fiscal 2012 each of our non-employee directors received an annual retainer of $15000 for service on
the board and any committee of the board except for the Chairman of the board who received an annual

retainer of $25000in lieu of the standard annual retainer of $15000 for his services in such capacity
Directors were also reimbursed for certain expenses they mcurred in connection with attendance at board and
committee meetings The Chairman of the audit committee received the additional annual compensation of

$5000 for his services as Chairman of the audit committee fiscal 2012 The cash retainers are

paid quarterly

Equily and Non-cash Compensation of Non-Employee Directors in Fiscal 2012

Based on the Companys overall performance the Company did not make any equity awards to its directors

in 2012

Compensation Conunittee Interlocks and Insider Participation

Our compensation committee currently consists of Messrs Gaffney and Kumm None of the members of our

compensation comrmttee has at any time served as an officer or employee of Vitacost None of our executive

officers currently sc rves or the past year has served as member of the board of directors or compensation
committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving on our board of directors or

compensation coniniittee

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities Weighted Average Number of Securities

to Be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Remaining Available

Exercise of Outstanding for Future Issuance

Oustanding Options Options Warrants Under Equity

Warrants and Rights and Rights Compensation Plans

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 5209250

Equity compensation plans not approved

by security holders

Name

Michael Kumin Chairman

Edwin Kozlowski

Robert Trapp M.D

Christopher Gaffney

Stuart Goldfarb

The followmg is summary of our equity compensation plans as of December 31 2012

$6.40 4337678
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SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Our executive officers directors and stockholders with beneficial ownership of more than 10% of our

Common Stock are required under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended to file reports of

ownership of our Common Stock with the Securities and Exchange Commission The Form 4.Report for

Mr Horowitz filed on February 21 2012 was not filed on timely basis ii Mr Gaffney filed on

Februaiy 21 2012 was not filed on timely basis iii Great Hill Investors and Mr Gaffney filed on

February 21 2012 was not filed on timely basis Other than these items set forth above and based solely

upon review of the copies of reports furnished to us and written representations that no other reports were

required to be filed during fiscal 2011 we are not aware of any late filings

SECURITY OWNERSIIIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock on

Apnl 2013 by the followmg

each of our directors and executive officers listed in the Summary Compensation Table on

page 22 of this proxy statement

all of our directors and executtve officers as group and

each person known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of Our outstanding Common Stock

Beneficial ownership is determined accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission

In computing the nimber of shares beneficially owned by person
and the percentage ownership of that

person
shares of Common Stock subject to options or warrants held by that person

that are currently

exercisable or exercisable within 60 days Of April 2013 are deemed outstanding but are not deemed

outstanding for computmg the percentage ownership of any other person

Except as otherwise indicated and subject to applicable commumty property laws each person uamed the

table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares -of Common Stock set forth opposite

such persons name

Number of

Shares Percent

Beneficially Beneficially

Name and Address of Beneficial OwnedW .O%ned Owned

Directors and Executive Officers

Jeffrey
Horowitz2 4207351 .12.5%

Brian Hehnan3 66000

David Zucker4 60000

Joseph Topper Jr

--

Mary Marbach5 50180

Stephen Markert Jr

Christopher Gaffney6
6402 713 19 1%

Stuart Goldfarb7
15 000

Edwm Kozlowslu8 20 000

Michael Kuin9 404 793 19 1%

Robert Trapp M.D.10 768926 2.29%

All current directors and executive officers as group 10 persons1 11610800 34.6%

5% Stockholders

Group comprised of Great Hill Investors LLC Great Hill Equity Partners ifi

L.P Great Hill Partners GP ifi L.P GHP ifi LLC Great Hill Equity

Partners IV L.P Great Hill Partners IV L.P and GHP IV LLC2 6402713 19.1%

Group comprised of Baron Capital Group mc BAMCO Inc Baron Small

Cap Fund and Ronald Baron3 277816 975%

Jennison Associates LLC and Prudential Financial Inc.4 3145427 9.36%
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Number of

Shares Percent

Beneficially BeneficiallyName and Addrçss of Beneficial Owned Owned Owned

JHH Capital LLC5 3049013 9.07%

Royce Associates LLC16 2104957 6.26%

Allen Josephs7 2082197 6.20%

Less than 1%

Except as otherwise indicated each
person may be reached at our Companys corporate address at

Vitacost.com Inc 5400 Broken Sound Boulevard NW Suite 500 Boca Raton FL 33487
Mr Horowitz owns 300000 shares of Common Stock individually Mr Horowitz holds options to

purchase 200000 shares of Common Stock exercisable at $8.91 per share all of which are immediately
exercisable and are included in the table above Mr Horowitz also holds options to purchase
582750 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.75 of which 433902 are immediately
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of April 2013 and are included in the table above Mr
Horowitz also holds options to purchase 367250 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $4.33
of which 224436 are immediately exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of April 2013 and are
included in the table above For additional information regarding Mr Horowitzs beneficial ownership of
shares of common stock see nQte 15 below

Mr Helman holds options to purchase 330000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $8.20 per
share of which 66000 are immediately exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of April 2013
Mr Zucker holds options to purchase 300000 shares of Common Stock at an exrcise price of $4.33 per
share of which 60000 are immediately exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of April 2013
Ms Marbach owns 145 shares of Common Stock individually and 35 shares are held in trust for her
minor child Ms Marbach holds options to purchase 50000 shares of Common Stock exercisable at

$9.72 per share of which 30000 are immediately exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of April
2013 Ms Marbach also holds options to purchase 100000 shares of Common Stock exercisable at

$6.61 per share of which 20000 are immediately exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of April
2013

Mr Gaffney owns no shares of Common Stock
individually Mr Gaffney holds options to purchase

5000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.75 all of which are immediately exercisable
Mr Gaffney also holds options to purchase 10000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of

$7.15 all of which are immediately exercisable For additional information regarding Mr Gaffneys
beneficial ownership of shares of Common Stock see note 12 below

Mr Goldfarb holds options to purchase 5000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.75 all

of which are immediately exercisable Mr Goldfarb also holds options to purchase 10000 shares of

Common Stock at an exercise price of $7.15 all of which are immediately exercisable

Mr Kozlowski holds options to purchase 10000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.75
all of which are immediately exercisable Mr Kozlowski also holds options to purchase 10000 shares of
Common Stock at an exercise price of $7.15 all of which are immediately exercisable

Mr Kumin owns 20630 shares of Common Stock Mr Kumin also holds options to purchase
15000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.75 all of which are immediately exercisable
Mr Kumin also holds options to purchase 10000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $7.15
all of which are immediately exercisable For additional information regarding Mr Kumins beneficial

ownership of shares of Common Stock see note 12 below

10 Dr Trapp owns 734126 shares of Common Stock and holds options to purchase 24800 shares of
Common Stock exercisable at the following prices 2000 at $0.16 per share ii 800 at $1.88 per
share iii 800 at $2.50 per share iv 800 at $3.13 per share 10400 at $7.50 per share vi 5000 at

$12.00 per share vii 5000 at $3.75 per share and viii 10000 at $7.15 per share All options are

immediately exercisable

11 Includes shares beneficially owned by all current directors and executive officers as of April 2013

12 Based on the statement on the Schedule 13D Amendment No filed with the SEC on March 26 201
Mr Gaffney Matthew Vettel and John Hayes have reported shared voting and dispositive power
with respect to 6402713 shares of Common Stock Mr Kumin has reported sole voting and dispositive
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power with respect to 20630 shares of Common Stock and Mr Kumin and Mark Taber have reported
shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 6384163 shares of Common Stock Great Hill

Investors LLC Gillhas reported shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 18550 shares

of Common Stock Great Hill Equity Partners RE L.P GHEPRE has reported shared voting and

dispositive power with respect to 4188139 shares of Common Stock Great Hill Partners GP ifi LP
GHEPfflGP has reported shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 4188139 shares of

Common Stock GFIP ifi LLC GHPRE has reported shared and dispositive power with respect to

4188139 shares of Common Stock Great Hill Equity Partners IV L.P GHEPIV has reported shared

voting and dispositive power with respect to 2196024 shares of Common Stock Great Hill Partners GP
IV L.P GHEP1VGP has reported shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 2196024
shares of Common Stock GHP LLC GHPIV has reported shared voting and dispositive power
with respect to 2196024 shares of Common Stock Pursuant to the Warrant to Purchase Common Stock

of Vitacost.com Inc dated February 16 2012 GRE GFIEPIIJ and GHEPIV collectively Great Hill
hold warrants to purchase 322101 shares of Common Stock from Vitacost.com Inc however these

warrants are only currently exercisable to the extent that prior to April 2013 the exercise of the

warrant would increase Great Hills proportionate share of outstanding Common Stock to 19.16% and

ii on or after April 2013 the exercise of the warrant would increase Great Hills proportionate share

of outstanding Common Stock to 19.9% without shareholder approval These warrants have been

excluded from the beneficial ownership calculations GFIEPIIIGP is the sole general partner of GHEPIII

and GHPIII is the sole general partner of GHEPIIIGP GHEPIVGP is the sole general partner of GHEP1V
and GHP IV LLC GHPIV is the sole general partner of GHEPIVGP Each of Messrs Hayes
Gaffney and Vettel are managers of Gil GHPffl and GHPIV and the principal occupation of Hayes
Gaffney and Vettel is to act as managers of Gill GHPIII and GHPIV Kumin and Taber are members of

the executive and investment committees of GHPIII and GHPIV GHEPIHGP may be deemed to

indirectly beneficially own the Common Stock beneficially owned by GHEP ifi GHPIII may be deemed

to indirectly beneficially own the Common Stock beneficially owned by GHEP ifi and that may be

deemed indirectly beneficially owned by GHEPIIIGP GHEPIVGP may be deemed to indirectly

beneficially own the Common Stock beneficially owned by GHEP IV GHPIV may be deemed to

indirectly beneficially own the Common Stock beneficially owned by GHEP IV and that may be deemed

indirectly beneficially owned by GHEPIVGP Each of the Messrs Hayes Gaffney and Vettel may be
deemed to indirectly beneficially own the shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by GRE GHPffl

and GHPIV Mr Kumin and Mr Taber may be deemed to indirectly beneficially own the shares of

Common Stock beneficially owned by GIIP11I and GHPIV Except to the extent of their pecuniary
interest therein and with respect to Mr Kumin his sole direct beneficial ownership 20630 shares of

Common Stock each of Messrs Gaffney Kumin Hayes and Vettel GHPIH GHPIV GHEPIIIGP and

GHEPIVGP disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares of Common Stock The address of each of the

above entities and individuals is One Liberty Square Boston Massachusetts 02109

13 Based on the statement on Amended Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 13 2013 Baron

Capital Group Inc BAMCO Inc Baron Small Cap Fund and Ronald Baron have reported shared

voting and dispositive power with respect to all such shares of Common Stock The address of Baron

Capital Group Inc BAMCO Inc Baron Small Cap Fund and Ronald Baron is 767 Fifth Avenue
49th Floor New York New York 10153

14 Based on the statement on the Amended Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 13 2012
Jennison Associates LLC has reported sole voting power with respect to 3145427 shares of Common
Stock and shared dispositive power with respect to 3145427 shares of Common Stock The address of

Jennison Associates LLC is 466 Lexington Avenue New York New York 10017 Based on the

statement on the Amended Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 11 2013 Prudential Financial
Inc has reported sole voting and dispositive power with respect to 305647 shares of Common Stock
shared voting power with respect to 2838256 shares of Common Stock and shared dispositive power
with respect to 2840980 shares of Common Stock The address of Prudential Financial Inc is

751 Broad Street Newark New Jersey 07102-3777

15 Based on the statement on the Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on February 27 2012 Mr Horowitz has

reported sole voting and dispositive power with respect to 887504 shares of Common Stock and shared

voting and dispositive power with respect to 2272727 shares of Common Stock and warrants to

purchase 776286 shares of Common Stock from Vitacost.com Inc JHH Capital LLC has reported
shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 2272727 shares of Common Stock and warrants to

purchase 776286 shares of Common Stock from Vitacost.com Inc. Mr Horowitz may be deemed to
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indirectly beneficially own the shares of common stock beneficially owned by JHH Capital LLC The

address of JHH Capital LLC is 5400 Broken Sound Blvd NW Suite 500 Boca Raton FL 33487

16 Based on the statement on the Amended Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 24 2013 Royce

Associates LLC has reported sole voting and dispositive power with respect to all such shares of

Common Stock The address of Royce Associates LLC is 745 Fifth Avenue New York NY 10151

17 Based on the statement on the Amended Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 2012 Allen

Josephs has reported sole voting and dispositive power with respect to 699100 shares of Common

Stock including options to purchase 551000 shares of Common Stock and shared voting and dispositive

power with respect to 1383097 shares of Common Stock The address of Allen Josephs is 7710

Kenway Place Boca Raton Florida 33433
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Current and Former Directors and Officers

Set forth below are those transactions or series of transactions during fiscal year
2012 to which we were or

are to be participant in which the amount involved exceeds $120000 and in which any director nominee for

director executive officer or holder of more than five percent of our common stock or members of any such

persons immediate family had or will have direct or indirect material interest other than compensation

described in the sections titled Executive Compensation Management and Other Information or Director

Compensation elsewhere in this proxy statement and as described below

Purchase Agreement

On February 16 2012 we .enteted into Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement by and among

Vitacost JHH Capital LLC an entity affiliated with Jeffrey Horowitz our Chief Executive Officer JHH
Great Hill Equity Partners ifi L.P Great Hill ifi Great Hill Equity Partners IV L.P Great Hill IV
Great Hill Investors LLC Great Hill Investors Freshford Partners LP Freshford Partners Freshlord

Master Fund Ltd Freshford Master Fund and Baron Small Cap Fund Baron and together with JHH

Great Hill ifi Great Hill IV Great Hill Investors Freshford Partners .Freshford Master Fund collectively the

Investors pursuant to which the Investors purchased and we sold an aggregate of 4920288 shares of our

common stock at purchase price of $7.04 per share and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1680601

shares of our common stock for.an aggregate purchase price-of $34848903 The warrants have an exercise

price of $7.04 per share and term of four years Each of JUH Great Hill ifi and its affiliated entities

Freshford Partners and its affiliated entities and Baron was 5% shareholder at the time of the transaction

JHH purchased 2272727 shares for an aggregate purchase price of $15999998.08 and warrant to purchase

776286 shares for an aggregate purchase price of $97035.75 Great Hill ifi and its affiliates purchased

943016 shares fOr an aggregate purchase price of $6638832.64 and warrants to purchase 322101 shares for

an aggregate purchase price of $40262.64 Freshford Partners and its affiliates purchased 994318 shares for

an aggregate purchase price of $6999998.72 and warrants to purchase 339625 with an aggregate purchase

price of $42452.13 Baron purchased 710227 shares for an aggregate purchase price of $4999998.08 and

warrants to purchase 242589 for an aggregate purchase price of $30323.63

Registration Rights Agreement

Concurrently with entering into the Purchase -Agreement we entered into registration rights agreement with

Jeffrey Horowitz and JHH which provides Jeffrey Horowitz and JHH with demand shelf and piggyback

registration rights The registration rights agreement- further provides that if we enter into registration rights

agreement or similar agreement with any person or entity on more favorable terms than those contained in

the registration rights agreement the registration rights agreement will be amended to include such more

favorable terms Pursuant to the registration rights agreement we have agreed to pay all of the registration

costs and expenses incurred in connection with such demand shelf and piggyback registrations

Procedures for Related Party Transactions

Under our code of conduct and ethics our employees officers and directors are encouraged to avoid actual or

apparent conflicts of interest between personal and corporate-related relationships In particular our

employees officers and directors should not participate in personal business transaction with us in which

they will receive significant profit or gain unless otherwise approved by our Board Further our employees

officers and directors should advise the Board of any prospective or existing potential conflict Pursuant to its

charter our audit committee must then approve any related-party transactions reported to the Board In

approving or rejecting such proposed transactions the audit committee considers the facts and circumstances

available and deemed relevant to the audit committee including the material terms of the transactions risks

benefits costs availability of other comparable services or products and if applicable
the impact on

directors independence Our audit committee will approve only those transactions that in light of known

circumstances are in or are not inconsistent with our best interests as our audit committee determines in the

good faith exercise of its discretion copy of our Code of Conduct and Ethics and Audit Committee Charter

are available for review at the investor relations section of our corporate
website at http//investor.vitacost.com

Each of the transactions described above was approved by our Audit Committee after making determination

that the transaction was in the Companys best interests
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The following Audit Committee report does not constitute soliciting material and shall not be deemed filed or

incorporated by reference into any of our filings under the Securitie Act of 1933 as amended or the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended except to the extent we specifically incorporate this Audit

Committee
report by reference herein

As more fully desciibed in its charter the purpose of the Audit Coinmitte is to assist the oversight of our

Board of Directors in the integrity of the financial statements of our company our companys compliance with

legal and regulatory matters the independent auditors qualifications and independence and the perfonnance
of our companys independent auditor The primary responsibilities of the committee include

overseeing our

companys accounting and financial reporting process and audits of the financial statements of our company
on behalf of the Board of Directors

As part of its oversight of our financial statements the committee reviews and discusses with both

management and our independent registered public accountants all annual and quarterly financial statements

prior to their issuance During 2012 management advised the committee that each set of financial statements

reviewed had been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and reviewed

significant accounting and disclosure issues with the committee These reviews included discussion with the

independent registered public accountants of matters required to be discussed pursuant to U.S Auditing

Standards No 61 as amended including the quality of our accounting principles the reasonableness of

significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements The committee also discussed

with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP matters relating to its independence including review of audit and

non-audit fees and the written disclosures and letter from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to the committee

pursuant to applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the

independent accountants communications with the committee concerning independence In addition the

committee discussed with the independent auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the overall scope and plans

for its audit The cormnittee discussed with the independent auditor with and without management present

the results of the examinations its evaluations of our company and the overall quality of the financial

reporting

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above the committee recommended to the Board of

Directors and the Board approved that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission

The report has been furnished by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors as of April 2013

AUDIT COMMTTFEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Edwin Kozlowski Chairman

Stuart Goldfarb

Robert Trapp
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OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors does not know of any other matters to be presented at the Annual Meeting If any

other matters are properly presented at the Annual Meeting it is the intention of the persons named as proxies

to vote the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may recommend

It is important that your shares be represented at the Annual Meeting regardless of the number of shares that

you hold Therefore you are urged to vote at your earliest convenience

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

April 2013

Boca Raton Florida
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REARDLNG FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains trends analyses and other forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 as amended and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Forward-looking statements include statements
concerning our plans objectives goals strategies future events future revenue or performance capital expenditures financing needs and other
information that is not historical information In some cases you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as may willshould could expect plan anticipate believe estimate predict intend potential continue seek or the negative of these
terms or other comparable terminology or by discussions of strategy

All forward-looking statements are based upon our current expectations and various assumptions and we do not assume any obligation to update any ofthese statements We believe there is reasonable basis for our expectations and beliefs but they are inherently uncertain We may not realize our
expectations and our beliefs may not prove correct Actual results could differ materially from those described or implied by such forward-lookingstatements and are subject to change due to the inherent risks and uncertainties such as those disclosed or incorporated by reference in our filings withthe SEC Important factors that could cause our actual results performance and achievements or industry results to differ materially from the forward-
looking statements are set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K under Part Item Business Item lA Risk Factors and Part II ItemManagements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation and include among others

significant competition in our industry

unfavorable publicity or consumer perception of our products on the Internet

the incurrence of material product liability and product recall costs

costs of compliance mid our failure to comply with government regulations

our inability to successfully defend intellectual
property claims

our failure to keep pace with the changing demands and preferences of our customers for new products

the current global economic climate

disruptions in our information technologysystems and

the lack of long-term experience with human
consumption of some of our products with innovative ingredients

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K speak only as of the date hereof and forward-looking statements in documents
attached that are incorporated by reference speak only as of the date of those documents We do not undertake any obligations to update or release anyrevisions to any forward-looking statement or to report any events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated
events except as required by law



PART

Item Business

Vitacost.com Inc

We are leading online retailer of health and weilness products including dietary supplements such as vitamins minerals herbs and other botanicals

which we refer to as vitamins and dietary supplements as well as cosmetics natural personal care products pet products sports nutrition and health

foods We sell these products directly to consumers primarily through our website www.vitacost.com We strive to offer our customers the broadest

selection of healthy living products at extremely competitive prices while providing superior customer service

We offer our customers broad selection of approximately 40000 Stock Keeping Units SKUs from over 2000 third-party brands such as New

Chapter Natures Way Twinlab Source Naturals Jarrow Formulas Jason Desert Essence Atkins Bobs RedMill BSN Optimum Nutrition USP

Labs and MuscleTech in addition to ourown proprietary
brands Vitacost Cosmeceutical Sciences Institute CSI Best of All and Smart Basics We

support our operations through our customer service center and our twodistribution centers delivering what we believe are industry-leading customer

satisfaction results Our website allows customers to easily browse and purchase products at prices typically significantly lower than manufacturers

suggested retail prices Our website also serves as an educational resource for consumers seeking information on healthy living and the attributes of

health and wellness supplements

Our growth is driven primarily by our ability to expand our customer base and grow our product offerings Our customers are typically individuals

seeking value in their purchases of health and wellness products Our active customer base which we define as customers who have purchased from us

within the last twelve months has steadily increased from approximately 270000 at the end of 2005 to approximately
2.1 million as of December 31

2012 On average our customers make purchasesfrom us two to three times year andduring20l2 approximately 72% ofour orders were placed by

repeat customers

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in May 1994 and began operations as catalog retailer of third-party vitamins and supplements underthe name

Natures Wealth Conipany In 1999 we launched Vitacost.com and introduced our proprietary vitamins and supplements In 2000 we began operating

under the name Vitacost.com Inc the Company Vitacost or Vitacost.com In Septeniber2009 theCompanycompleted its Initial Public

Offering OnSeptember 28 2011 Vitacost.com Inc completed arestructuring whereby it merged with and into Vitacost Merger Corporation wholly

owned subsidiary of Vitacost.com Inc with Vitacost Merger Corporation surviving the merger The surviving company continues to opetate the

business under the name Vitacost.com Inc

Industry Overview

The expansion of the Internet has benefited online retailers by improving methods ofcommunication delivery of content and ease of commerce At the

same time consumers are leveraging online resources to make informed healthcare dietary and nutritional choices and related purchasing

US Nutrition Industry According to the Nutrition Business JoumalsDirect to Consumer Selling in the Nutrition Industry Report 2012 NBJ total

U.S sales for the nutrition industry including natural organic food functional foods supplements and natural/organic personal care household

products grew 8% to $126 billion in 2011 NBJ is forecastingU.S sales for the total nutrition industry to grow at an 8% rate per year for the next nine

years reaching $244 billion in 2020. Steady growth reflects an overall health and wellnesstrendin the U.S with an increased focus by consumers on

their diet exercise and overall health Products targeting weight management sports nutrition chemical-free cleaners and specialty diets such as gluten-

free are becoming mainstay purchases
made by todays consumers U.S sales for the total nutrition industry through the Internet grew significantly

faster than the overall category increasing approximately 14% in 2011 to $3 billion and accounted for an estimated 3% of total U.S nutrition sales NBJ

is forecasting the internet channel to remain strong with sales expected to grow at 13% compound annual growth rate CAGR over the next nine

years reaching $10 billionby 2020

US Dietary Supplement Market According to the NBJs Direct to Consumer Selling in the Nutrition Industry Report 2012 U.S sales of dietary

supplements including vitamins herbs meal supplements and sports nutrition and specialty supplements grew 7% to $30 billion in 2011 NBJ is

forecasting U.S sales of dietary supplements to grow at 7% rate per year for the next nine years reaching $53 billion in 2020 Steady growth reflects

customers purchases of these natural products to protect their health and ward off more expensive medical visits and prescription drugs The dietary

supplement industry is highly fragmented with products sold through multiple channels including retailers such as mass merchants grocery stores drug

stores and specialty retailers as well as through direct mail catalogs multi-level marketers and the Internet U.S sales ofdietary supplements through

the Internet grew significantly faster than the overall category increasing approximately 15% in 2011 to $1.5 billion and accounted for an estimated 5%

of the total U.S dietary supplement category According to NBJ internet sales of dietary supplements are expected to grow at 13% CAGR over the

next nine years reaching $4 billion by 2020



Our Value Proposition

We strive to offer our customers the broadest product selection of healthy living products at the best value while providing superior customer service

Broad Third-Party and Proprietary Product Selection We offer approximately 40000 SKUs representing over 2000 brands including nationally-
recognized third-party brands and our proprietary brands Our product selection is designed to appeal to variety of demographic groups includingthose seeking health maintenance and general well-being individuals making household purchasing decisions for the family baby boomers the elderlyand those with specific health concerns or goals Our product selection regularly evolves as consumer preferences change

Consistently Superior Value We offer products at savings to our customers with prices typically significantly lower than manufacturers suggested retail
prices We provide even greater savings to our customers through our proprietary product lines

Superior Customer Services Our website is designed to attract natural searchtraffic while providing convenient educational secure and efficient
shopping experience Products are cross-indexed to allow consumers to easily.locate and compare products when

searching by brand ingredient orkeyword In addition we maintain customer service center which provides customerswith answers to product and technical questions as well as
processes customer orders Finally customer orders are quickly and accurately processed in our fulfillment centers

Growth Initiatives

Our growth strategy is based on the following key initiatives

In crease Brand and Company Awareness We are increasing customer awareness of Vitacost.com and our vast healthy living and proprietarybrand offerings In January 2012 we unveiled fresh new brand identity complete with new logo and corporate slogan take the cost out of
healthy living In addition we re-launched our website with cleaner look and feel and improved usability features We expanded our online
content through broader initiative to develop deeper connection to our customers

Expand Customer Base We are focused on acquiring new customers in an effort to expand our customer base Historically our customers have
had high repeat order rates and lifetime values as we primarily sell consumable products We believe future top-line growth will stem from an
expanded customer base and increasing our touch points on the internet to target customers directly where and how they shop Our marketingactivities are primarily focused on online initiatives such as search engine marketing search engine optimization and developing network of
affiliates In addition we are leveraging our existing customer base to attract new customers through our Refer Friend

program which
rewards existing customers for signing up new customers

Expand Product Offerings We continue to increase our product offerings of both third party and proprietary products to drive traffic to our site
and increase basket size as we strive to become the leading online destination for health and wellness products We continue to add brands and
line extensions in our core Vitamins Minerals Herbs and Supplements VMHS category as well as in faster growing healthy living
categories such as food beauty and sports nutrition During 2012 we added over 5000 net new SKUs ending the year with approximately40000 SKUs live on ow website

Increase Lifetime Value by In creasing Frequency of Purchases and Improving Customer Retention As we continue to diversify our product
offerings in the healthy living space there is renewed effort to educate customers on the breadth of our product offerings to increase total
basket size and the frequency of purchases in order to drive greater lifetime value We are also focused on increasing lifetime value percustomer by improving customer retention through the use of automatic reordering programs along with targeted personalized emails and
promotional offers as well as offering positive overall customer experience

International Expansion We currently ship products internationally to numerous countries including Canada Hong Kong Japan Taiwan and
the United Kingdom despite limited marketing efforts outside of the United States We are now beginning to focus on creating an enhanced in-

country experience for customers by increasing awareness of our international shipping destinations and improving the overall web and
shipping experience for international customers International represents large growing long-term opportunity for us with international
accounting for 6% of total revenue in 2012

Expand and Optimize DistributiQn We believe that processing customer orders on timely basis is key component of customer satisfaction
Our long-term initiatives are to reduce processing time while increasing our fulfillment capacity and driving efficiency in the cost of processingorders Diring 2012 we increased the storage capacity of our two existing fulfillment centers to hold up to 50000 SKUs We are currently in
the process of upgrading our warehouse management systems andmodifying our order processing methodology in an effort to achieve these
objectives

Improve Operating Efficiencies We are focused on improving operating efficiencies across our organization by reducing costs at our existingfulfillment centers primarily through improved labor productivity as well as gaining efficiency in our sales and marketing spend We also seek
to gain sales leverage on our fixed cost structure as we expand our overall sales



Products

We provide online shoppers with one of the broadest selections of high-quality health and wellness products including dietary supplements such as

vitamins minerals herbs and other botanicals as well as cosmetics natural personal care products pet products sports nutrition and health foods We
offer products in wide range of potency levels and dosage forms for our dietary supplements such as tablets capsules vegi-capsules softgels gelcaps

liquids and powders Our focus on providinga broad selection enables our customers to purchase products from preferred trusted brands through

single comprehensive source

We offer products that encompass four main categories Vitamins Minerals Herbs and Supplements Sports Nutrition Beauty and Natural and Organic

Food

Vitamins Minerals Herbs and Supplements MHS products aregenerally taken to maintain orimprove health and address specific health conditions

The Food and Drug Administration FDA classifies these products under the term dietary supplements In this category we offer our Vitacost

branded products as well as third-party brands such as Natures Way Twinlab Jarrow Carlson and Rainbow Light Vitamin and mineral products

include multi vitamins lettered vitamms such as Vitamin and B-complex along with minerals such as calcium magnesium chromium and

zinc These products help prevent deficiencies that can occur when diet alone does not provide all of the necessary vitamins and minerals Herbal

products include whole herbs standardized extracts herb combination formulas and teas Herbs offer natural solution to address specific health

concerns Supplements include essential fatty acids probiotics anti-oxidants phytonutrients and condition-specific formulas

SportsNutrif ion Sports nutrition products are usedinconjunction with cardiovascular conditioning weighttraining and sports activities Major

categories in sports nutrition include protein and weight gain powders meal replacements nutrition bars sports drinks and pm- and post-workout

supplements to either increase energy or enhancerecoveiy after exercise We offer bodybuilding and sports products from third parties such as Optimum
Nutrition CytoSport and BSN as well as our Vitacost branded sports nutrition products

Beauty Our beauty category consists of variety of natural products for skin body hair and QraI health We offer hundreds of natural personal care

products from category leaders such as JASON and Kiss My Face as well as our proprietary CSI branded products These products appeal to allergen

conscious enviromnentally conscious or socially conscious consumers seeking products that are made without harsh chemicals and additives or are not

tested on animals

Natural and Organic Food Natural and organic food consists of orgamc and specialty products such as orgamc peanut butter gluten free foods and low

mercury tuna and salmon We offer third party brands such as Kashi Eden Foods and Amy Organic as well as our Best of All natural food products

In 2012 and 2011 our proprietary brands accounted for approximately 22% and 23% of our net sales respectively Our proprietary brands include

Vitacost Our Vitacost brand is our largest proprietary brand Under the Vitacost brand we offer over 900 products including multivitamins

minerals herbs amino acids anti-oxidants and others

Cosmeceutical Sciences Institute Under our CSI brand we market and sell health and beauty products such as facial cleanser facial and body

moisturizing creams and lotions and other skincare products

Best ofAll Under our Best of All brand we market and sell organic food products such as banana chips trail mix almonds cashews and more

Smart Basics Under our Smart Basics brand we market and sell organic fruit juices and extracts and related dietary supplements

Walker Diet Under our Walker Diet brand we market and sell low curb powders used to assist in weight loss and management

Merchandising New Product Development

We believe we carry most major domestic brands ofYMHS products as well as many smaller specialty brands We sell most of our suppliers most

popular product lines We also offer our proprietary brands based on our own formulations We currently stock approximately 40000 SKUs at both of

our fulfillment centers Currently no single SKU represents more than 2% of our net sales In developing new proprietary products we review our sales

and cost data and customer feedback alongwith evaluating new industry trends

Marketing

Our marketing strategy is designed to increase brand awareness and drive highly targeted new and repeat customers to our website We use multi

channel approach which includes search
engine marketing search engine optimization email campaigns partnerships broad reach advertising customer

referral and affiliate programs to acquire and retain our customer base We are also actively embracmg mobile technology and upgrading our mobile

platform as we believe mobile will be key source of new customers going forward given the rapid growth and increased acceptance of mobile

shopping



Online Marketing We make our website available via keywords and shopping feeds on internet search engines including but not limited to Google

Bing Nextag and Shopzilla Banner advertisements on display networks are also used to drive traffic to our website In addition we sell our products

through Amazon.com while operating an affiliate program aimed at creating brand awareness through webaltes that participate in the LinkShare

network

Email Campaigns Our email marketing campaigns distribute infOrmation on new arrivals promotional discounts and product information to customers

Direct Mail and Promotional Inserts Direct mail is used on limited basis to increase awareness of our proprietary brands and to target market to

certain customer segments

Customer referrals We operate Refer-A-Friend program to further drive customers to our site Any existing customer can refer new customer to

Vitacost and both are rewarded with $10 credit to apply to an order of $30 or more on our Vitacost com website

Partnerships We have entered into select partnerships and continuously evaluate new partnerships with organizations that have accessto large

customer bases that may serve as potential Vitacost.com customers or tkst willimprove the brand image and awareness-of Vitacost.com

Manufacturing

Proprietary Manufacturing On August 28 2012 we entered into an agreement to outsource all of our manufacturing operations and lease our

manufacturing facilities to a--third party provider effective September 2012 Prior to-this transaction we maænfactured approximately sixty percent of

our proprietary products

Contract Manufacturing As of Iecember 31 2012 all of our manufacturing is provided by third party manufacturers Each of our contract

manufacturers is required to maintain high standards of quality control consistent with federal regulatory guidelines and manufacture our products

according to our strict specifications We have implemented -vendorqualification prograrnsfor all our suppliers and manufacturers including full

analytical testing of the products we purchase

Customer Service

We strive to offer outstanding customer service with each customers complete satisfaction as our goal To achieve this goal we maintain fully staffed

customer service center to respond to customers via incoming calls e-mails and live-chat while providing accurate and timely shippiirg-all driven by our

5-Star Guarantee We believe our customer service initiatives allow us to establish and maintain long-term customer relationships and facilitate repeat

visits and purchases

Customer Service Center -Our service center serves as the primary contact between-our customers and the company Customer service agents are

available to answer questions and to accept customer orders Our customer service specialists receive regular training so that they can effectively and

efficiently field questions from current and prospective consumers Our specialists are also trained not to answer questions that should be directed to

customers physician such as questions relating to drug interactions

Our 5-Star Guarantee Our 5-Star Guarantee makes it easy convenient and safe for customers to purchase our products Under the Guarantee we

Offer vitamins supplements organic products body care and natural health products at everyday low prices providing savings off retail

365 days year with no minimums no memberships and no hidden charges

Provide 30-day unconditional money-back guaranteefor all our products

Provide the highest quality supplements and other natural health products

Maintain one of the largest selections of healthy living products available anywhere with approximately 40000 items and more than 2000

brands from which to choose

Guarantee safe secure online shopping experience through the use of state-of-the-art Secfire Socket Layer l28bit encryption on our

website

During 2012 we were named in the top 10 online retailers by ForeSee in the ForeSee E-Retail Satisfaction Index for Spring 2012 maintaining our top

10 status for the third year in rOw ForeSees customer satisfaction- ratings are done using the -Anierican Customer SatisfatiOn Index methodology

sophisticated scientific formula developed at the University of Michigan that predicts consumer spendmg behavior In December 2012 we ranked in

customer satisfaction in the ForeSee E-Retail Satisfaction Index US Holiday Edition- 2012 Which measured customer satisfaction with-the top 100

retailers during the holiday shopping season --



In December 2012 we also received Google Trusted Store Status an independetit certification designating that the company offers excellent customer

service and reliable shipping In addition we also hold an Elite rating for superior customer service from STELLAService an independent third-party

company that rates the customer service performance of online retailers STELLAService ratings are performed using 300 unique customer service

metrics and features for each online retailer across all areas ofthe shopping experience evaluating usability of the site shipping deliveiy and returns

and overall customer support

Technology and Operations

Our website is supported by technology infrastructure that is designed to provide superior customer experience including speed ease of use and

security Our systems and tools allow us to monitor our website and services in real time scale to size as required and balance traffic geographically

across multiple sites.- We also track and manage our inventory order fulfillment customer service and-marketing through technologies that allow us to

condense and distribute-customer and sales data as part of our business intelligence management From this data our finance marketing operations and

product development teams are able to optimize decision-making processes to analyze and project growth drivers and forecast demand

We maintain strategic partnerships with vendors in the U.S and abroad combination of in-house and external development to ensure that we can

rapidly deploy information technology solutions that we believe are key to our success-covering fulfillment merchandising supply chain management

and back-office compliance Our efforts are prioritized by the management team to map available capacity to have positive strategic and tactical impact

on the business

Our technology infrastructure uses highly scalable fault tolerant enterprise-standard technologies We use combination of internal and Tier third

party data centers that support product development quality control Ecommerce CRM and customer experience.Coupled with theuse of leading

network technologies virtualization and cloud-based solutions we manage redundant coverage that significantly mitigates the risk of downtime

We follow rigorous industry standards to protect our internal operations and the personal information we collect from our customers We do not sell or

disclose the personal information of our customers We continue tornaintain and upgrade our technology framework to support high levels of security

while meeting the compliance requirements of Payment Card Industry PCI security standards We are considered sender under the CAN-SPAM

Act and comply with the applicable aspects thereof

We have installed technologically advanced finished goods inventory control systems to track our finished goods from receipt through shipment All

items are barcoded to facilitate electronic tracking allowing us to tie each SKU number back to our inventory control shipping and sales departments

Our inventory control system analyzesand automatically recommends reorders for majority of the products we sell managing and mitigating out-of-

stock situations Wecoqsistently evaluatelow volume items in order to minimize losses due to product expiration or-obsolescence and to efficiently

manageourwarehouse space ----

Competition

The nutrition and dietary supplement market is large growing competitive and highly fragmented Our competition includes multi-level marketers

online VMHS specialty and mass retailers and extends offline to brick and mortar stores including but not limited to grocery.membeitihip clubs

specialty and mass retailers We believe the following are the principal competitive factorsin our market

Competitive pricing
--

Selection and availability of product

Reliability and speed of delivery

Website ease of use

Customer service and support
--

While we believe we compete favorably the natute and extent to which our competitors implement various pricing and promotional activities in

response to increasing competition and our response to these competitive actions could adversely affect our profitability

Trademark and Other Intellectual Property

We rely on combination of patent copyright and trademark and trade secret laws confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions to protect our

proprietary rights with respect to our technology and proprietary information We have applied for or registered all relevant trademarks with the U.S

Patent and Trademark Office USPTO including our Vitacost Nutraceutical Sciences Institute Cosmeceutical Sciences Institute Best of All Walker

Diet Smart Basics Take the Cost out of Healthy Living Momonomics and Weliness Times trademarks among others We believe our trademarks to be

valuable and are identified strongly with our brands The issuance of federally registered trademark creates rebuttable presumption of ownership of

the mark however it is subject to challenge by others claiming first use in the mark in some or all of the areas in which it is used We have also applied

for foreign protection of certain of our trademarks in the European and Asian markets in which we operate and have registered Vitacost NSI and

Nutraceutical Sciences Institute in certain countries in these regions



Federally registered trademarks have perpetual life as long as they are maintained and renewed on timely basis and used properly as trademarks

subject to the rights of third parties to seek cancellation of the trademarks if they claim priority or confusion of usage

We have obtained number of U.S patents on some product formulations and have applications pending for others In designing our product

formulations we have attempted to blend an optimal combination of nutrients which appear to have beneficial impact based upon scientific literature

However because formal clinical studies have in most instances not been conducted by us to validate the intended health benefits of the nutrients we are

generally prohibited by the FDA from making disease treatment and prevention claims in the promotion of products using these formulations While we
seek broad coverage for our patents there is always risk that an alteration to the formulation may provide sufficient basis for competitor to avoid

infringement claims by us In addition our issued patents expire over the next several years and we cannot provide any assurance that any patents will be

issued from pending applications or that any issued patents will adequately protect our intellectual property We intend to reevaluate each of our

registered U.S patents for strength and value as renewal dates approach We believeour patents and trademarks are valuable and provide us certain

benefits in marketing our products We intend to actively protect our patents trademarks trade secrets and other intellectual property

Government Regulation

We are subject to federal and state consumer protection laws including lawsprotecting theprivacy of consumer non-public information and regulations

prohibiting unfair and deceptive acts and trade practices In particular under federal and state financial privacy laws and regulations we must provide

notice to consumers of our policies on sharing non-public information with third parties

advance notice of any changes to our policies and

with limited exceptions provide consumers the right to prevent sharing of their non-public personal information with unaffiliated third parties

Furthermore the growth and demand for online commerce could result in morestringent consumer protection laws that impose additional compliance
burdens on online retailers These consumer protection laws could result in substantial compliance costs and could interfere with the conduct of our

business

There is currently great uncertainlry in many states whether or how existing laws governing issues such as property ownership sales and other taxes and

libel and personal privacy applies to the Internet and commercial online retailers These issues may take years to resolve For example tax authorities in

number of states as well as Congressionaladvisory commission are currently reviewing the appropriate tax treatment of companies engaged in

online commerce and newstate tax regulations may subject us to additional state sales and income taxes New legislation or regulation the application

of laws and regulations from jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apply to our business or change in application of existing laws and regulations

to the Internet and commercial online services could result in significant additional taxes on our business These taxes could have material adverse

effect on our results of operations

Our products are subject to extensive regulation in the U.S and abroad As applied to products Vitacost sells FDA enforces the Federal Food Drug and

Cosmetic Act FDCA and related regulations which govern the idePtity purity quality strength and composition of dietary supplements and

regulate the formulation manufacture packaging labeling holding sale and distribution of dietary supplements foods cosmetics medical devices

animal foods and drugs and over-the-counter OTC allopathic and homeopathic human drugs collectively FDA regulated products FDA
prohibits the distribution and/or sale of misbranded and/or adulterated FDA regulated products In particular FDA evaluates dietary supplements to

determine the intention of the manufacturer or distributor through promotion label or labeling claims which cause the products to be unapproved new

drugs

The Federal Trade Commission or FTC enforces the Federal Trade Commission Act or FTCA and related regulations which govern the advertising

associated with the promotion and sale of our products to prevent misleading or deceptive claims

The U.S Postal Inspection Service enforces federal laws governing fraudulent use of the mail Regulation of certain aspects of the dietary supplement

business at the federal level is also governed by the Consumer Product Safety Commission CPSC e.g concerning the presence of adulterated

substances such as toxic levels of lead or iron that render products unsafe for consumption and require CPSC ordered recall the Department of

Agriculture e.g for products that are intended for ingestion as dietary supplements for animals and the Environmental Protection Agency e.g in the

methods of disposal used for certain dietary ingredients such as colloidal silver



The manufacture packaging labeling holding sale and distribution of dietary supplements are also subject to extensive local state and foreign government

regulation For example under the European Union Directive only dietary supplements listed in Annex II to that directive or otherwise ruled saleable in Europe by

the European Union may be sold in Europe subject to EU restrictions on dosage amounts fonns label claims and advertising The Bureau of Customs and Border

Patrol CBP division of the Department of Homeland Security also regulates shipments containing dietary ingredients dietary supplements cosmetics

drugs biologics and medical devices and engages in enforcement activity in concert with the FDA to block the import or export of articles deemed adulterated or

otherwise unlawful for sale in the United States imports or in the non-U.S country to which articles are addressed CBP holds on articles or demands for recall

can interfere with the timely delivery of products to market and can result in regulatory fines and penalties

The FDCA has been amended several times affecting provisions that concern dietary ingredients and dietary supplements including by the Dietary Supplement

Health and Education Act of 1994 DSHEA DSHEA formally defined what maybe sold as dietary supplement defmed statements of nutritional support and

the conditions under which they may lawfully be used and included provisions that permit the FDA to regulate manufacturing practices and labeling claims

peculiar to dietary supplements Dietary supplements are defined as vitamins mineralsherbs other botanicals amino acids and other dietary substances that are

used to supplement the diet as well as concentrates constituents extracts metabolites or combinations of such dietary ingredients Generally under DSHEA

dietary ingredients that were on the market before October 15 1994 may be used in dietary supplements without notifying the FDA However new dietary

ingredient i.e dietary ingredient that was not marketed in the U.S before October 15 1994 must be the subject of new dietary ingredient notification

submitted to the FDA unless the ingredient has been present in the food supply as an article used for food without having been chemically altered Anew

dietary ingredient notification must provide the FDA with evidence of history of use or other evidence of safety which establishes that use of the dietary

ingredient will reasonably be expected to be safe new dietary ingredient notification must be submitted to the FDA at least 75 days before the new dietary

ingredient can be marketed There can be no assurance that the FDA will accept evidence purporting to establish the safety of any new dietary ingredients that we

may want to market and the FDAs refusal to accept such evidence could prevent the marketing of such dietary ingredients

Increased FDA enforcement could lead the FDA to challenge dietary ingredients already on the market as illegal under the FDCA because of the failure to file

new dietary ingredient notification or because the substance may be one found to be the subject of an investigational new drug application for which clinical trials

have commenced and been publicized

The FDA generally prohibits labeling dietary supplement with any health claim i.e any statement associating nutrient with risk-reduction but not

treatment of disease or health-related condition unless the claim is pre-approved by the FDA The FDA prohibits entirely disease diagnosis prevention and

treatment claims when made for dietary supplement However statements of nutritional support including so-called structure/function claims are permitted

to be included in labeling for dietary supplements without FDA pre-approval Such statements may describe how particular dietary ingredient affects the

structure function or general well-being of the body or the mechanism of action by which dietary ingredient may affect the structure function or well-being of

the body but such statements may not state that dietary supplement will reduce the risk or incidence of disease unless such claim has been reviewed and

approved by the FDA company that uses statement of nutritional support in labeling must possess evidence substantiating that the statement is truthful and not

misleading Such statements must be submitted to the FDA no later than thirty days after first marketing the prpduct with the certification that they possess the

necessary evidence and must be accompanied by an FDA mandated label disclaimer that This statement has not been evaluated by the FDA This product is not

intended to diagnose treat cure or prevent any disease There can be no assurance however that the FDA will not determine that particular statement of

nutritional support that we want to use is an unacceptable disease claim or an unauthorized nutrient-disease relationship claim otherwise permitted with FDA

approval as health claim Such determination might prevent the use of such claim

In addition DSHEA provides that certain third-party literature such as reprint of peer-reviewed scientific publication linking paitiCular dietary ingredient

with health benefits may in connection with the sale of dietary supplement to consumers beexempt from labeling regulation However the FDA has adopted

an intent to use doctrine whereby such literature even if exempt from labeling may nonetheless form the basis for an agency determination that the literature in

context reveals company intent to sell dietary ingredient or dietary supplement as drug thereby rendering the supplement an unlawful unapproved new drug

Because the intent to use doctrine is predicated onn subjective assessment of all facts and circumstances associated with the promotion and sale of dietary

supplement we cannot know whether any particular piece of literature otherwise exemptfrom labeling will be deemed by the FDA unlawful for use in association

with the sale of the dietary ingredient or dietary supplement

As authorized by the FDCA the FDA has adopted and implemented Good Manufacturing Practices GMP5 specifically for dietary supplements These GMPs

impose extensive process controls on the manufacture holding labeling packaging and distribution of dietary supplements and the components of dietary

supplements They require that every dietary supplement be made in accordance with master manufacturing record with all dietary ingredients verified by

identity testing before use that each step in manufacture holding labeling packaging and distribution be defined with written standard operating procedures

monitored and dOcumented and that any deviation in manufacture holding labeling packaging or distribution be contemporaneously documented assessed by

quality control expert and corrected through documented corrective aption steps whether through an intervention that restores the product to the specifications in

the master manufacturing record or to document destruction of the non-conforming product The GMPs are designed to ensure documentation including testing

results that coifirm the identity purity quality strength and composition of finished dietary supplements In addition GMPs require company to make and keep

written records of every product complaint that is related to GMPs The written record of the
product complaint must include the following the name and

descriptiOn of the dietary supplement the batch lot or control number of the dietary supplement if available the date the complaint was received and the name

address or telephone number of the person making the complaint if available the nature of the complaint including if known how the product was used the

reply to the complainant if any and findings of the companys quality control investigation and follow-up action taken when an investigation is perfonned The

regulations directly affect all who manufacture the dietary supplements we sell and our distribution of dietary supplements The FDA may deem any dietary

supplement adulterated whether presenting risk of illness or injury or not based on failure to comply with any one or more process controls in the GMP

regulations If deemed adulterated dietary supplement may not be lawfully sold and may have to be recalled from the market It is possible that the FDA will

find one or more of the process controls implemented by our contract manufacturers or by those whose dietary supplements we sell to be inadequate and thus

requiring corrective action requiring any one or more of the dietary supplements we sell to be unlawful for sale or resulting in judicial order that may impair our

ability to market and sell dietary supplements



The FDA also requires adverse event notices on labels and serious adverse event reporting for all supplements and OTC drugs An adverse event is

defined by statite to include any health-related event associated with the use of dietary supplement tlat is adverse While all adverse event

complaints received must be recorded in accordance with the GMPs discussed above only serious adverse events must be reported to FDA serious

adverseevent is an adverse eveni that results in death lifethreatening experience inpatient hospitalization persistent or significant disability or

incapacity or congenital anomaly or birth defect or requires based on reasonable medical judgment medical or surgical intervention to prevent an

outcome described above When manufacturer packer or distributor whose name appears on the product label of dietary supplement receives any

report of serious adverse event associated with the use of the dietary supplement in the United States the company must submit serious adverse

event report on MedWatch Form 3500A The report must be filed within 15 business days of receipt of information regarding the adverseevent All

adverse event reports whether serious or not must be recorded and kept in company records under the GMP rules company must maintain records of

each report of any adverse event both serious and non-serious for aninimum of years These records should include any documents related to the

report including the companys serious adverse event report to the FDA with attachments any new medical information about the serious adverse event

received all reports to the FDAof new medical information related to the serious adverse event and any communications between the company and any
other persons who provided info rmàtion related to the adverse event

The regulation of dietary supplements may increase or become more restrictive in the future Thefe can be no asthirance that if more stringent statutes

are enacted for dietary supplemenis or if more stringent regulations are promulgated we will be able to comply with such stautes or regulations without

incurring substantial expense

The FDA regulates the formulation manufacturing packaging labeling and distribution of all OTC drugs It allows OTC allopathic drug products to be

sold without premarket approval so long as the products comply with FDAsmonograph system that specifies active drug ingrdients that are

generally recognized as safe and effective for particular uses If an OTC drug is not in compliance with.the applicable FDA monograph the product

generally cannot be sold without first obtaining FDA approval of new drug application which can be long and expensive procedure

The homeopathic OTC drugs that we sell are regulated by FDA as non-prescription over-the-counter drugs These products must generally meet the

manufacturing standards set forth in the Homeopathic Pharmacopeia of the United States HPUS and the limitations for OTC ingredients Claims made

for them must not deviate from those contained inpecific homeopathic treatises recognized by the FDA as appropriate for use The products mustbe

labeled in compliance with FDA regulations for all OTC drugs If these requirements are not met the FDA can consider the products unapproved new

drugs and prohibit their sale

Cosmetics are not subject to pre-market approval by the FDA but the products their ingredients and their label and labeling content are regulated by the

FDA and it is the burden of those who sell cosmetics to ensure that they ard safe foruse as directed The FDA prohibits certain ingredients from being
contained in cosmetic products that are authorized only for drug use or are deemed adulterated In additidn the labeling of cosmetic products is subject

to the requirements of the FDCA the Fair Packaging Labeling Act and other FDA regulations The FDA limits cosmetic product claims to those of

beautification and enhancement to the external appearance of the skin Structure/function claims are generally prohibited for cosmetic products as are

disease prevention and treatment claims It is possible that cosmetic product ingredients now commonly in use that are derived from nanotechnology

may be restricted or prohibited in future It is also possible that claims now commonly in use concerning cosmetic reduction in the external appearance
of aging the effect of cosmetic ingredients on fine lines and wrinkles or on other aspects of appearance may in the future be deemed prohibited implied

disease treatment claims

Animal foods are also regulated by FDA and each states department of agriculture Those regulators generally defer to products compliance with the

American Association of Feed Control Officials annual manual that sets out labeling requirements approved ingredients and nutrient needs for

particular animal types including companion animals FDA generally exercises enforcement discretion and allows some animal foods to make structure

function claims However there is no legal authority in the FDCA for animal foods to make those types of claims It is possible in the future that FDA

may consider all structure/function claims prohibited

Medical devices that we sell are OC and not subject to pre-market approval but may be subject to notification requirement called 510k or

premarket compliance requirement like an OTC monograph Manufacturers of medical devices must register and list their products with FDA annually

whether they are located domestically or overseas All medical devices niust be thanufactured under good manufacturing standards called quality

assurance standards set by FDA Medical devices must be labeled in accordance with FDAs general device labeling requirements and whatever

particular label requirements FDA may designate for that type of device When company receives positive response to 510k notification if the

company promotes the product wii any deviation from the lªbelin and claims that were submitted to the agency the agency may consider the product
misbranded Similarly if the company changes the design or performance of the device in any way from the notification then FDA may consider the

product adulterated



Conventional food manufacturing labeling and distribution is also under FDA jurisdiction Manufacturers must ensure their products are produced in

clean environment to prevent adulteration by contamination and must manufacture their products with either approved food additives or ingredients that

are generally recognized as safe GRAS Conventional foods must meet FDAs labeling requirements including Nutrition Facts statement

Conventional foods may make structure/function statements like dietary supplements but unlike dietary supplements are not required to file notice of

those statements with FDA Like dietary supplements infant formulas are regulated by FDA tis type of food with their own requirements for

manufacturing and labeling Infant formulas however are required to go through preapproval process manufacturing inspection prior to product

hiunch and are held to nutritional sufficiency standard unlike other foods due to the nature of this type of product

Conventional foods and dietary supplements must also comply with the Organic Act for the designation of organic ingredients enforced by the US

Department of Agriculture and the Food Allergen Labeling and Consumer Protection Act of 2004 FALCPA enforced by the FDA Under the

Organic Act there are specific requirements for the certification of ingredients as organic and requirements on how to use the term organic in

labeling whether for an ingredient or complete product USDA has also issued an enforcement policy applying the use of the term organic to

cosmetics and their ingredients even though there is no law authorizing that use Under FALCPA all packaged foods including supplements containing

any of the eight identified major food allergens milk egg fish crustacean shellfish tree nuts wheat peanuts and soybeans must declare such

allergens at least once bytheir common or usual name in the ingredient list or in CONTAINS statement immediately following the ingredient list in

bold packaged food contains an allergen for the purpse of the law when any intentionally added ingredient contains an allergen Thus even if an

allergen ispresent only in coloring or flavoring FALCPA applies Likewise the law applies even if an allergen is present only in small amount of an

incidental but intentionally added non-cross-contact additive like releasing agent Disclosure in this case is required even though such an

ingredient usually dotild be omitted altogether from the ingredients list If manufacturer believes that no allergen is present there is preapproval

process to seek an exception Failure to comply withihe FALCPA may lead to civil sanctions criminal penalties or both under the FDCA In addition

the FDA is authorized to seize non-conforming products controlled by company and issue recall of products already on the market

The FDA has broad authority to enforce the provisions of the FDCA concerning allofthŁ products it regulates including powers to issue public

warning letter to company to quarantine and prohibit the sale of products deemed adulterated or misbranded to publicize information about illegal

products to request voluntary recall of illegal products from the market to request that the Department of Justice initiate seizure action an injunction

action or criminal prosecution in U.S courts and to seek disgorgement from federal court of all proceeds received from the sale of products deemed

misbranded or Ædnlterated

The FTC exercises jurisdiction over the advertising of dietary supplements OTC drugs medical devices and cosmetics In recent years the FTC has

instituted numerous enforcement actions against dietary supplement companies for making false or misleading advertising claims and for failing to

adequately substantiate claims made in advertising These enforcement actions have often resulted in consent decrees and the payment of civil penalties

and/or restitution by the companies involved The FTC also regulates other aspects of consumer purchases including but not limited toç promotional

offers of savings compared policies telemarketing continuity plans and free offers

We are also subject to regulation under various state local and international laws that include provisions governing among other things the formulation

manufacturing packaging labeling advertising and distribution of dietary supplements animal foods medical devices conventional foods and OTC

drugs For example under Proposition 65 in the State of California list of substances are deemed to pose risk of carcinogenicity or birth defects at or

above certain levels If any such ingredient exceeds the permissible levels in dietary supplement cosmetic or drug the product may be lawftilly sold in

California only if accompanied by prominent warning label alerting consumers that the product contains an ingredient linked to cancer or birth defect

risk Private attorney general actions as well as California attorney general actions may be brought against non-compliant parties and can result in

substantial costs and fines In additional California has law called the Consumers Legal Remedies Act Cal Civ Code 1750 et seq that allows

private parties to assert class action claim for false or deceptive advertising It is typically asserted in combination with claims for false advertising and

unfair competition under the California Business and Professions Code California law firms specializing in these type ofconsumer class action claims

have recently been targeting dietary supplement and OTC homeopathic drug makers and sellers of products sold in California claiming injury based on

the products failure to deliver results as claimed in product labeling and promotion

Government regulations in foreign countries may prevent or delay the introduction or require the reformulation of certain of our products Compliance

with such foreign governmental regulations is generally the responsibility of our distributors in those countries These distributors are independent

contractors whom we do not control

In addition from time to time in the future we may become subject to additional laws or regulations administered by the FDA the FTC or by other

federal state local or foreign regulatory authorities to the repeal of laws or regulations that we generally consider favorable such as DSHEA or to

more stringent interpretations of cunent laws or regulations We are not able to predict the nature of such future laws regulations repeals or

interpretations and we cannot predict what effect additional governmental regulation if and when it occurs would have on our business in the future

Such developments could however require reformulation of certain products to meet new standards recalls or discontinuance of certain products not

able to be reformulated additional record-keeping requirements increased documentation of the properties of certain products additional or different

labeling additional scientific substantiation additional personnel or other new requirements Any such developments could have material adverse

effect on our business



Europe The European Union EU is responsible for the development of legislation governing foods nutritional supplements and medicines sold in

Europe Member States of the EU Member States are authorized to develop local legislation governing these products provided such legislation is

not more restrictive than the legislation promulgated by theEU Member States are responsible for enforcement of theapplicable legislation In 2002
the EU established process for Member States tp bring this regulating legislation in line with published directive of the EU which addressed the

labeling and marketing of vitamins and minerals what nutrients are permitted or not permitted and other packaging requirements In 2004 the EU
established standards for the nanufacture and marketing of herbal medicines with the Traditional Herbal Medicinal Products Directive This requires

among other things manufacturers of herbal medicinal products to comply with Pharmaceutical Group Standards and only requires proof of safety not

efficacy

In 2006 the EU adopted its Commission Directive 20061371EC amending its Directive 2002/46/EC Under the amended directive only nutrients listed

in Annex II or approved by subsequent order of the EU may be lawfully sold in Member States The EU also regulates labels labeling and advertising
associated with the promotion and sale of dietary supplements in Europe These regulations may make it unlawful for us to sell in Europe certain

products lawfully labeled and sold in the United States adversely affecting the finances of the usiness

In the United Kingdom the principal governing legislation is the Food Safety Act of 1990 governing safety of food products and the Medicines of
1968 governing licensing and sale of medicine Further guidance is provided by numerous.Statutory Instruments addressing the formulation purity
packaging advertising and labeling of such products Medicinal products are regulated and enforced by the Medicines and Healthcare Products

Regulatory Agency MHRA an agency of the Department of Health The MHRA determines if an herbal remedy is medicinal virtue of its

presentation or function FoQd products are regulated by the Food Standard Agency FSA which reports to the Department of Health and to the

Department of Environment Food and Rural Affairs Vitamin and mineral supplements and soup products with herbal ingredients are generally
considered food supplements and are subject to the purview of the FSA Additional legislative standards have been adopted in the other EU countries

typically similar in scope to the UK The regulatory scheme in Canada is similar but not identical to that of the U.S concerning medicines and healthcare

products or material health products and is regulated by Health Canada

Employees

As of December31 2012 we had 671 full-time employees 78 of which work for third-party manufacturer based on manufacturing outsourcing

agreement that we entered into effctive September 2012 Additionally we maintain temporary employees primarily in our fulfillment centers to meet
changing demands of that functiorL None of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreement and we are unaware of any union

organizing efforts We consider our relationship with our employees to be good

Geographic Information

During our last three years substantially all of our revenue was generated within North America and all of our long-lived assets are located within the

United States However we believe International represents large long-term opportunity for us with international revenue accounting for 6% 5% and
3% of total revenue in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Available Information

Our Web site is.www.vitacost.com The information posted on our website is not incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K We have made
available through our Web site free of charge our Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 1O-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such materials with or furnish them to the Securities and

Exchange Commission In addition they are available directly on the website for the Securities and Exchange Commission
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Item 1A Risk Factors

We operate in rapidly changing environment that involves significant risks number of which are beyondour control In addition to the other

information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K the following discussion highlights some of these risks and the possible -impactof these

factors on our business financial condition and future results of operations If any of the following risks actually occur our business fmancial condition

or results of operations may be adversely impacted In addition these risks and-uncertainties may impactthe forward-looking statements described

elsewhere in this Form 10-K and in the documents incorporated herein by reference They could affect our actual results of operations causing them to

differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements

Risks Relating to Our Business

If we are unable to effectively manage our growth plan our business strategy financial condition results of operations or cash flows could be

materially adversely affected

Our growth plan requires significant management time and operational and financial resources There is no assurance that we have the operational and

financial resources to successfully manage our growth In addition rapid growth in our headcount and operations may place significant strain on our

management and our administrative operational and financial infrastructure Failure to adequately manage our growth could have material adverse

effect on our business fmancial condition results of operations or cash flows

We operate in highly competitive-industry and our failure to compete effectively could materially adversely affect our market share financial

condition and growth prospects

The U.S health products industry is large and highly fragmented industry Our competitors include specialty retailers supermarkets drugstores mass

merchants multi-level marketing organizations online merchants mail-order companies and variety of other participants in the industry The principal

elements of competition in the industry are price selection and distribution channel offerings We believe that the market is alsohigh1y sensitive to the

introduction pf new-products including various prescription drugs which may rapidly capture significant shareof the market In the United States we

also compete for sales with heavily advertised national brands manufactured by large pharmaceutical and food companies as well asotherretailers In

addition as some products gain market acceptance we experience increased competition for those products as more participants enter the market

Certain of our competitors are larger than us and have longer operating histories larger customer bases greater brand recognition and greater resources

for marketing advertising and product promotion They may be able to secure inventory from vendors on more favorable terms operate with lower

cost structure or adopt more aggressive pricing policies In addition our competitors may be more effective and efficient in introducing new products

We may not be able to compete effectively and our attempt to do so may require us to- increase marketing and/or reduce our prices which may result in

lower margins Failure to effectively compete could materially adversely affect our marketshare financial condition and growth prospects

If we are unable to sufficiently increase our revenue to offset increased costs as we expand our business we may experience operating losses net

losses or negative cash flows

We expect operating expenses and working capital requirements to increase substantially as we expand our business We expect our costs of product

development sales and marketing research and development and general and administrative expenses to increase substantially as result of our growth

If we are unable to continue to sufficiently increase our revenue to offset these increased costs we will-not-maintain profitability and may experience

operating losses net losses or negative cash flows

If we are unable to retain key personne4 our business financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected

Oursuccess depends to significant degree upon the continued contributions of our executive Officers and other key personnel Although we have

employment agreements with our executive officers we cannot guarantee that such persons will remain affiliated with us If any of our key personnel

were to cease their affiliation with us our operating results could suffer Further we do not maintain key person life insurance on any of our executive

officers If we are unable to retain the services of key personnel our business financial condition or results of operations could be materially and

adversely affected

Our network and communications systems are vulnerable to system interruption and damage which could limit our ability to operate our business

and could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

Our ability to receive and fulfill orders promptly and accurately is critical to our success and largely depends on the efficient and uninterrupted operation

of our computer and communications hardware and software systems We experience periodic system interruptions that impair the performance of our

transaction systems or make our website inaccessible to our customers These system interruptions may prevent us from efficiently accepting and

fulfilling orders sending out promotional emails and other customer communications in timely manner introducing new products and features on our

website promptly responding to customers or providing services to third parties Frequent or persistent interruptions in our services could cause current

or potential customers to believe that our systems are unreliable which could cause them to avoid our website drive them to our competitors and harm

our reputation To minimize future system interruptions we must continue to improve our systems and network infrastructure to accommodate increases

in website traffic and sales volume and to replace aging hardware and software We may be unable to promptly and effectively upgrade and expand our

systems and integrate additional functionality into our existing systems In addition upgrades to our systems may cause existing systems to fail or

operate incorrectly Any unscheduled interruption in our services could result in fewer orders additional operating expenses or reduced customer

satisfaction any of which would harm our business financial condition and operating results In addition the timing and cost of upgrades to our systems

and infrastructure may substantially affect our ability to maintain profitability
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Our systems and operations and those of our suppliers and Internet service providers are vulnerable to damage or interruption from fire flood

earthquakes power loss server failure telecommunications and Internet service failure acts of war or terrorism computer viruses and denial-of-service

attacks physical or electronic break-ins sabotage human error and similar events. Any of these events could lead to system interruptions order

fulfillment delays and loss of critical data for us our suppliers or our Internet service providers and could prevent us from accepting and fulfilling

customer orders Any significant interruption in the availability or functionality of ourwebsite or our customer processing distribution or

communications systems for any reason could seriously harm our business financial condition and operating results

We depend primarily upon search engines and other online sources to increase traffic to our website and need to convert this traffic into customers

in cost-effective manner our failure to do so could have material adverse effect on our businessfinancial condition or results of operations

Our success depends on our ability to attract visitors to our website and convert them into customers in cost-effective manner We utilize search

engines and other online sources as means to direct ttaffic to our website Our website is included in search results as result of both paid search

listings where we purchase specific search terms that result in the inclusion of our website in the search result and algorithniic searches that depend

upon the searchable content in our website Search engines and other online sources revise their algorithms from time to time in an attempt to optimize

their search results

If one or more of the search engines or other online sources which we use to direct traffic to our website were to modify its general methodology for how

it displays our website fewer visitors may visit our website which could have material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Further if any free search engine which we use to direct traffic to our website begins charging fees for listing or placement or if one or more of the

search engines or other online sounes on whichwe rely for purchased listings modifies or terminates its relationship with us the traffic to our website

could decrease and our expenses could increase which could have material adverse effect on our business fmancial condition or results of operations

Taxation risks could subject us to liability for past sales increase our costs and cause our future sales to decrease

One or more states or foreign countries may seek to impose sales or other tax collection obligations on out-of-jurisdiction eCommerce companies

Certain states have imposed such sales tax obligation requirement on online retailers that use residents of that state to directly or indirectly refer

potential customers via link on an Internet website or otherwise to the online retailer successful assertion by one or more states or foreign countries

that we should collect sales or other taxes on the sale of merchandise or services could result in substantial tax liabilities fOr past sales decrease our

ability to compete with traditional retailers and otherwise harm our business financial condition or results of operations

We do not collect sales or other tases on shipments into most states in the U.S Currently U.S Supreme Court decisions restrict the imposition of

obligations to collect state and local sales and use taxes with respect to sales made over the Internet However number of states as well as the U.S

Congress have been considering initiatives that could limit or supersede the Supreme Courts position regarding sales and use taxes on Internet sales If

any of these initiatives were successful we could be required to collect sales and use taxes in additional states The imposition by state and local

governments of various taxes upon Internet commerce could create administrative burdens for us reduce our competitive advantage over traditional

retailers and decrease our future sales Our warehousing centers and any future expansion of them along with other aspects of our evolving business

may result in additional sales and other tax obligations

We rely on third-party carriers as part of our inventory fulfillment and order delivery processing and these third parties may fail to meet shipping

schedules or requirements which could damage our reputation and reduce our sales and our margins

We cannot control all of the factors that might affect our timely and cost-effective procurement of products from our vendors and delivery of our

products to our customers We rely on third-party carriers both for the delivery of inventory and for the shipment of our products to our customers

Consequently we are subject to risks associated with these carriers including increased fuel costs security concerns labor disputes union organizing

activity and mclement weather Any disruption in the ability of these carriers to timely deliver products to us and to our customers could damage our

reputation and brand and result in customer dissatisfaction This could in turn materially and adversely affect our business financial condition or results

of operations
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We could be hariæedby data loss or other security breaches

Our servers are vulnerable to computer viruses physical or electronic break-ins and similar disruptions which could lead to interruptions ad delays in

our service and operations as well as loss misuse or theft of data Any attempts by hackers to disrupt our service or our internal systems if successful

could harm our business be expensive to remedy and damage our reputation Although we have developed systems and processes that are designed to

protect customer information and prevent data loss and other security breaches such measures cannot provide absoltite security In addition we rely on
third party technology and systems in certain aspects of our businesses including encryption and authentication technology to securely transmit

confidential information Any significant disruption to our service or internal computer systems could adversely affect our business and results of

operations

Complying with new and existing government regulation both in the U.S and abroad could sign ficantly increase our costs

The processing formulation packaging labeling advertising distribution and sale of our products are subject to regulation by several U.S federal

agenàies including the FDA the FTC the Postal Service the Consumer Product Safety Commission the Department of Agriculture and the

Environmental Protection Agency as well as various state local and international laws and agencies of the localities in which our products are sold

Government regulations may prevent or delay the introduction Or require the reformulation ofour products

The FDA regulates among other things the manufacture composition safety labeling marketing and distribution of dietary supplements including

vitamins minerals herbs and other dietary ingredients for htunanuse OTC drugs allopathic and homeopathic conventional foods infant formulas

animal foods medical devices and cosmetics The FDA may not accept the evidence of safety we present for new dietary supplements we wish to

market or they may determine that particular dietary supplement or ingredient that we currently market presents an unacceptable health risk If that

occurs we could be required to cease distribution of and/or recall supplements or products containing that ingredient In July 2011 the FDA intnluced

draft Guidance Document called Guidance for Industry Dietary Supplements New Dietary Ingredient Notifications and Rehited Issues relating to

pre-market safety notifications In it FDA identified standards of proof for safety and grandfathering that would impose new burdens on the dietary

supplement industry and may impact the legality of some of our existing products FDA has accepted industry comments on the guidance buthas not yet

published its response or otherwise finalized the draft

draft guidance is not considered final rule by the FDA In June 2012 the FDA stated that it planned to issue revised draft guidance to clarify

controversial points in the original version Nevertheless in enforcement actions taken by the agency it has adhered.to the basic interpretation expressed
in the draft guidance even before the draft guidance has been finalized Consequently ingredients previously considered lawfully saleable without

submission of notice containing proof of safety may now need to be considered adulterated and unsaleable unless and until FDA fails to object on

grounds of safety to New Dietary Ingredient notice

The FDA and the Federal Trade Commission FTC may also determine that certain labeling advertising and promotional claims statements or

activities are not in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and may determine that particular statement is an unapproved health claim an

unacceptable drug claim false or misleading label laim or deceptive advertising claim Failure to comply with FDA or other regulatory

requirements could prevent us from marketing particular dietary supplement products or subject us to administrative civil or criminal penalties

Legislation has been introduced in the U.S Senate seeking to provide the FDA with increased authority to regulate dietary supplements and increase

labeling requirements with respect to dietary supplements The Food Safety Modernization Act FSMA now requires dietary supplement companies to

register with the agency and renew those registrations biannually The FSMA permits summary revocation of registrations and elimination of the right

to sell products in interstate commerce based on findings by the FDA that product might present an unreasonable risk of serious illness injury or

death Legislation introduced but not passed by Congress would require the FDA Commissioner to obtain list of all ingredients and claims for dietary

supplements and distinguish from among them which products are potentially unsafe and which claims are misleading FDA and FTC are cooperating in

joint enforcement projects including the issuance of warning and enforcement letters by both agencies The FTC staff has demanded two clinical trials

as condition precedent for the making of certain categories of claims such as those concerning weight loss and those concerning immune support
which position while struck down by an FTC Administrative Law Judge is pending on appeal before the Federal Trade Commission

The FTC exercises jurisdiction over the advertising of dietary supplements and has instituted numerous enforcement actions against dietary supplement

companies for failing to have adequate substantiation for claims made in advertising or for using false or misleading advertising claims The FTC
routinely polices the market for deceptive dietary supplement advertising and accepts and reviews complaints from the public concerning such

advertising

The FTC also regulates deceptive advertising claims and promotional offers of savings compared to regular ptices The National Advertising Division

NAD of the Council of Better Business Bureaus oversees an industry-sponsored self-regulatory system that permits competitors to resolve disputes

over advertising claims including promotions for savings off of regular prices The NAJ has no enforcement authority of its own but may refer

promotions to the FTC that the NAD views as violating FTC guidelines or rules Violations of these orders could result in substantial monetary penalties

In Europe non-compliance by us or others of relevant legislation can result in regulators bringing administrative or in some cases criminal proceedings
For example in the U.K it is common for regulators including the Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency Enforcement Intelligence

Group to prosecute retailers and manufacturers for non-compliance with legislation governing foodstuffs and medicines European Union EU
regulations and directives are implemented and enforced by individual member states and so enforcement priorities and applicable law can occur in

multiple countries at one time Failure by us the manufacturers or suppliers to comply with applicable legislation could result in prosecution and have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations
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Europe has adopted broad regulations and directives on health and nutrition claims These regulations cover.ciaims that can-be made for foods including

supplements Certain claims such is those regarding general well-being behavioral functions and weight-loss may be prohibited or require prior

approval Unless subjectto derogation products that-include-certain claims.cannot belawfully marketed in EU member states absent preapproval

Applicable derogations under EU directives can enlarge the period within which we-may seek approval for products containing claims up through

January 19 2014.An approval must proceed through -the -European Food Safety Authority EFSA andthe -process includes the submission of detailed

dossier in support of the product claims Lengthy delays within the tew EU framework have been reported This may severely impact our European

marketing and expansion efforts As of December -14 2012 the transitional period ends for-products which were on the market.when Regulation

1924/2006 entered into force in 2007 but which did not comply with its provisions The currently adopted list of claims includes 222 approved general

function claims for use in the European Union Claims considered on hold pending final decision may continue to remain in the market under the

responsibility of the food business operator in question provided those claims comply with applicable national provisions Presently the assessments of

health claims for plant andherbal substancesthe so-called botanical substancesare on ho1d

We are also anticipating the implementation -of an EU-directive relating to- food supplements -which could significantly impact-the formulation of our

products The implementation of this- directive is expected to include dosage restrictions for certain vitamin and mineral supplements and may lead to

some of our products being recalled or discontinued Thus far the -maximum and minimum levels of vitamins and minerals present in food supplements

per daily portion consumed have not been harmonized and so national legislation of Member States-remains significant

In addition an EU Directive governing product safety requires manufacturers to notif regulators about unsafe products and gives regulators in each

member state the power to -order product recalls As- result the number of product recalls in -Europe has increased substantially product recall in

Europe could have material adverse -effect on our business financial condition and results of operations

Our ability to access capital markets may -be adversely affected which could limit our ability to fund-our operating costs if we do not generate

sufficient cash from operations.-

From time to time we may need to access debt -or equity capital markets -in order to execute on our growth strategy Any restriction on our ability -to

access capital markets could limit our ability to pursue our growth strategy and could materially adversely affect our business financial condition or

results of operations

The current global economic climate -could adversely affect our industty and therefore restrict our future growth

The current global economic climate could negatively affect our sales because many consumers consider the purchase of our products discretionary If

the markets for our products significantly deteriorate due to the economic climate our business financial condition-or results of operations could be

materially and adversely affected

Our failure to -efficiently respond to changing consumerpreferences and demand for new products and services could significantly harm our

product sales inventory management and customer relationships and our business results of operations and financial condition could be materially

adversely affecteiL

Our continued success depends in- part- on- our ability to anticipate--and respond to changing -consumer trends and preferences We may not be able to

respond in timely or commercially appropriate manner to these changes Our failure to accurately predict these -trends could negatively impact our

inventory levels sales and consumer opinion of us as source- for the- latest products The success of our new product offerings depends upon number

of factors including our ability to

accurately anticipate customer needs --

innovate and develop new products

successfully commercialize new products in timely manner

competitively-price our products

procure and maintain products in sufficient volumes and in timely manner and

differentiate our product offerings from those of our competitors

If we do -not introduce new products make-enhancements to existing products or maintain the appropriate inventory levels to meet customers demand in

timely manner our business results of operations and financial condition could be materially adversely affected
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Unfavorable changes to government regulations or adverse consumer attitudes about online commerce could have material advrse effect on ur
businessfinancial condition or results of operation by impeding the growth and use of the Internet and thereby decreasing revenue

As the role and importance of online commerce has grown in the U.S there have been continuing efforts to increase the legal and regulatory obligations

and restrictions on companies conducting commerce through the Internet primarily in the areas of taxation cOnsuTne privacy restrictions on imports

and exports customs tariffs user privacy data protection pricing content copyrights distribution electronic contractS and ither comiTiunications

consumer protection the provision of online payment services broadband residential Internet access and the characteristics and quality of products and

services which could increase the cost -of conducting business over the Internet In addition consumer unwillingness or inability to use the Internet to

conduct business due to adverse regulation security concerns service interruptions or otherwise could materially reduce our growth Governmental

laws and regulations or adverse attitudes about online commerce could increase the costs and liabilities associated with our online- commerce activities

increase the price of our product to consumers or reduce traffic to our website Unfavorable resolution of these issues could have material adverse

effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

Laws or regulations relating to privacy and data protection may materially adversely affect the growth of our business or our marketing efforts

which could reduce our sales and cause us to incur significant costs

We are subject to increasing regulation at the federal state and international levels relating to privacy and the use of personal user- information For

exaffiple we are subject to various telemarketing laws that regulate the manner in which we may solicit future suppliers-and customers Such regulations

along with increased govermnental or private enforcement may increase the cost of growing our business In addition many jurisdictions have laws that

limit the use of personal information gathered online or offline or require companies to establish privacy policies The FTC has adopted regulations

regarding the collection and use of personal identifying information obtained-from children-under thirteen years of age Proposed legislatiotrmn this

country and existing laws in foreign countries require companies to establish procedures to notify users of privacy aidseciirity policies obtain consent

from users for the collection and use of personal information and/or provide users with the ability to access correct and delete personal information

stored by us From time to time Congress has proposed legislation-regarding data security and privacy protection Any enacted data protection

regulations may restrict our ability to collect demographic and personal information which could be costly or harm our marketing efforts and could

require us to implement new and potentially costly processes procedures and/or protective measures

Third parties could use our trademarks as keywords in Internet search engine advertising programs which may direct potential customers to

competitors websites which in turn could result in decreased sales and could harm our reputation

Competitors and other third parties could infringe on our trademarks and confusingly similar terms as keywords in Internet search- engine advertising

programs and in the resulting sponsored link advertisements which may divert potential customers to their websites Preventing such unauthorized-use is

difficult Further the legal precedent on whether such activity infringes on our intellectual property varies significantly within the United States and in

other countries If we are unable to protect our trademarks or confusingly similar terms from such unauthorized use competitors and-othnr third parties

could drive potential online customers away from our website which could result in loss of sales and have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition or results of operations
--

We are subject to number of risks related to credit card payments we accept which jfwe fail to be in compliance with applicable credit card rules

and regulations will result in additional fees fines and ultimately the revocation of the right to use the credit card company which could have

material adverse effrct on our business financial condition or results of operations

For credit and debit card payments we pay interchange and other fees which may increaseover time and raise our operating costs and lower our profit

margins We are also subject to payment card association operating rules certification requirements and rules governing electronic funds transfers

which could change or be reinterpreted to make it difficult or impossible for us to comply If we fail to comply with thnse rules or requirements we may

be subject to fines and higher transaction fees and lose our ability to accept credit and debit card payments from our custOmers In addition we have and

may continue to suffer losses as result of orders placed with fraudulent credit and debit card data We do not cany insuranceagainst the risk of credit

card fraud so the failure to adequately control fraudulent credit card transactions could reduce our net revenue and our gross profit percentage We have

implemented technology to help us detect the fraudulent use of credit card information -Under current practices merchant is liable for fraudulent credit

card transactions when the merchant does not obtain cardholderS signature failure to adequately control fraudulent credit card transactions would

result in significantly higher credit card-related costs and could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of

operations

The content of our website and direct mailing pieces could expose us to significant liability which could reduce our profits

Because we post product information and other content on our website andin our direct mailing pieces weface potential liability
for among other

things copyright infringement patent infringement4radºmark infringement defamation unauthorized practice of medidne false or misleading

advertising and other claims based on the nature and content of the materials we post Although we maintain general liability insurance our insurance

may not cover potential claims of this type or may not be adequate to cover us for all liability
that may be imposed Any imposition of liability that is not

covered by insurance or is in excess of insurance coverage could materially adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations
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Our failure to protect our intellectual property rights could reduce our sales and increase our costs

We have applied for or registered all relevant trademarks with the U.S Patent and Trademark Office including our Vitacost Nutraceutical Sciences

Institute Cosmeceutical Sciences Institute Best of All Walker DietSniart Basics Take the Cost out of Healthy.Living Momonomics and Weliness

Times trademarks among others We believe our trademarks to be valuable an are identified strongly with our brands Issuance of federally registered

trademark creates rebuttable presumption of ownership of the mark boweverit is subject to challenge by others claiming first use in the mark in some

or all of the areas in which it is use We have also applied for foreign protection of certam of our trademarks in the European and Asian markets in

which we operate and have registeiedVitacost NSI and Nutraceutical Sciences Institute in certain countries in these regions

Federally registered trademarks have perpetual life as long as they are maintainedandrenewed on timely basis and used properly as trademarks

subject to the rights of tlrd parties to seek cancellation of the trademarks if they claim priority or confusion of usage We believe our trademarks are

valuable and provide us certain benefits in marketing our products We intend to actively protect our trademarks trade secrets and other intellectual

property

We may in the future be subject to intellectual property litigation and infringement claims which could cause us to inur significant expenses be

involved in protracted litigation or prevent us from selling or using some aspect of our products Claims of intellectual property infringement may also

require us to enter into costly royalty or license agreements Alternatively we may be unable to obtain necessaiy royalty or license agreements on terms

acceptable to us if at all Claims that our technology or products infringe on intellectual property rights of others could be costly and would divert the

attention of our management and key personnel which in turn could materially adversely affect our business financialcondition or results of operations

Our inventory is concentrated in two warehouse locations which exposes usto the risk of natural disasters or other force majeure events Losses at

either location could materially adversely affect our product distributions sales and consumer satisfaction

Our two distribution warehouses are located Lexington North Carolina and Las Vegas Nevada Any significant disruption in either of these locations

for any reason such as power failure equipment breakdown workforce disruption or natural or similar disasters could materially adversely affect our

product distributions sales and consumer satisfaction

Insurance coverage even where available may not be sufficient to cover losses we may incur which could increase our costs and lower our profits

Our business exposes us to the risk of liabilities arising out of our products and operations For example we may be liable for claims brought by users of

our products or by employees- customers or other third parties for personal injury or property damage occurring in the course of our operations Our

operations are subject to closure and loss due to-power outages Internet and telephone line failures work stoppages and acts of nature We seek to

minimize these risks through various insurance policies from third party insurance camers However our insurance coverage is subject to large

individual claim deductibles individual claim and aggregate policy limits and other terms and conditions Our estimate of retained insurance liabilities is

subject to change as new events or circumstances develop that might materially impact the ultimate cost to settle these losses We cannot assure you that

our insurance will be sufficient to cover our losses We do not view insurance by itself as material mitigant to these business risks Any losses that are

not completely covered by our insurance could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

The insurance industry has become more selective in offering certain types of liability insurance coverage and we may not be able to maintain- our

existing coverage or obtain increased coverage in the future which -could increase our costs and reduce our profits

The insurance industry has become more selective in offering certain types of insurance including product liability product recall and property casualty

insurance While webelieve our current insurance policies provide- us adequate coverage for our current business operations there can be no assurance

that we will be able to maintain such coverage or obtain comparable coverage onterms and conditions favorable to us if at all Further as we expand

our business we expect to correspondingly increase our insurance coverage and -there can be no assurance-that we will be able to obtain such increased

coverage if and when needed

We may not be able to maintain the uniqueness of our domain name which may result in confusion to existing and new customers and lost sales

an4 therefore could have material adverse effect on our-business financial condition orresults of operations

Maintaining our Internet domain name is critical to our success Under current domain name registration practices no other entity may obtain an

identical domain name but can obtain similar or identical name with different suffix such as .net or .org or with different country designation
such as .jp for Japan

We have not registered our-domain name with each ofthesuffixes or jurisdictions available As result third parties may use domain names that are

similar to our domain name which may result in confusion to existing and new customers and lost sales Failure to maintain our domain name

uniqueness could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations
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Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate in the future As result we may fall to meet the expectations of investors or securities analysts
which could cause our stock price to decline

Our quarterly revenue and results of operations may fluctuate as result of variety of factors many of which are outside of our control If our quarterly

revenue or results of operations fall below the expectations of investors or securities analysts the price of our common stock could decline substantially

FluctuatiOns in our results of operations may be due to number of factors including but not limited to those listed below and identified throughout this

Risk Factors section in this Annual Report

our ability to retain and increase sales to existing customers and attract new customers

changes in the volume and mix of dietary supplements and health and wellness products sold in particular quarter

the timing and success of new dietary supplement introductions or reformulations by us or our competitors

changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors

competition including entry into the market by new competitors including traditional brick and mortar retailers and new product offerings by
existing competitors

the amount and timing of expenditures related to expanding our operations research and development or introducing new products

changes in the payment terms for our products and services and

the purchasing cycles of our customers

Most of our expenses are relatively fixed in the short-term and our expense levels are based in part on our expectationsregarding future revenue levels

As result if revenue for particular quarter is below our expectations we may not be able to proportionally reduce operating expenses for that quarter

causing disproportionate effect on our expected results of operations for that quarter

Hea4thcare reform measures and related changes in applicable federaland state laws could materially adversely affect our business

The efforts of governmental and third-party payers to contain or reduce the costs of healthcare may adverselyaffect our business operating results and

fmancial condition We expect that there will continue to be number of legislative and regulatory proposals aimed at changing the healthcare system
which could include restructuring the tax benefits available through flexible spending accounts and/or health

savings accounts If the laws or regulations

are changed to limit further the tax benefits through these accounts such change could have material adverse effect on our business by reducing
revenues and eroding our margins

The Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 imposes certain obligations on t.se senders of commercial

emails which could minimize the effectiveness of our email marketing campaign and establishes financial penalties for non-compliance which

could increase the costs of our business and could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

In December 2003 the Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 or the CAN-SPAM Act was enacted The

CAN-SPAM Act establishes certain requirements for commercial email messages and penalizes commercial email
message transmissions that are

intended to deceive the recipient as to source or content The CAN-SPAM Act among other things requires that senders of commercial emails allow

recipients to opt out of receiving future emails from.the sender The ability of our customers to opt out of receiving commercial emails may minimize the

effectiveness of our email marketing campaign Moreover non-compliance with the CAN-SPAM Act carries significant financial penalties If we were
found to be in violation of the CAN-SPAM Act applicable state laws not preempted by the CAN-SPAM Act or foreign laws regulating the distribution

of commercial email we could be required to pay penalties which could have material adverse effect on our business result of operations financial

condition and cash flows

Certain stockholders own sign jficant amount of our common stock which could discourage an acquisition of VitacosLcom or make removal of
incumbent management more difficult

Great Hill Investors LLC Great Hill Equity Partners III L.P and Great Hill Equity Partners IV L.P collectively GHP beneficially own

approximately 19.16% of our outstanding stock Because GHP owns significant percentage of our capital stock it could significantly influence all

matters requiring approval by our stockholders including the election of directors and the approval of mergers or other business combination

transactions
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Risks Relating to Our Products

We may incur product liability c/alms which could increase our costs and/or materially adversely affect our business reputationfinancial condition

or results ofoperations

As retailer and formulator of products designed for human consumption or use on or in the body we are subject to product liability claims if the use of

our products is alleged to have resulted in illness or injury or if our products include inadequate instructions or warnings Our products generally consist

of vitamins minerals herbs and other ingredients that are classified as foods OTC drugs dietary supplements medical devices and cosmetics and

generally are not subject to pre-market regulatory approval or clearance in the U.S bythe FDA or other governmental authorities Our products could

contain spoiled or contaminated substances and some of our products contain ingredients that do not have long histories of human consumption

Previously unknown adverse reactions resulting from human consumption of these ingredients could occur Furthermore as distributor of products

manufactured by third parties we may also be liable for various product liability
claims for products that we do not manufacture We could be subject to

product liability claims including among others that our products include insufficient instructions for use or inadequate warnings concerning possible

side effects or interactions with oth.er substances Any product liability
claim against us could result in increased costs and adversely affect our

reputation with our customers which in turn could materially adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

We depend upon certain suppliers and manufacturers if these suppliers or manufacturers do not provide us materials or products when and as

needed and we are unable to efficiently obtain alternative supply sources we could be unable to meet the demand for our products and our business

financial condition or results of operations may be materially adversely affected

We rely upon suppliers for certain of our products Furthermore we engage manufacturers to produce our proprietary products Disruption in the

operations of any such supplier or manufacturer can occur for number of reasons many of which are beyond our control such as regulatory

requirements import restrictions loss of certifications power interruptions fires hurricanes drought or other climate-related events war or other

events If any of our suppliers or manufacturers become unable or unwilling to continue to provide us supplies or products in the required volumes and

quality levels or in timely manner we would be required to identif and obtain acceptable replacement supply or product sources If we are unable to

efficiently obtain alternative sources our business financial condition or results of operations may be materially adversely affected

Unfavorable publicity or consumer acceptance of our products or of nutritional supplements generally couldreduce our sales

We are highly dependent upon consumer acceptance of the safety efficacy and quality of our products as well as similar products distributed by other

companies Consumer acceptance of products can be significantly influenced by scientific research or findings national media attention and other

publicity about product use product may initially
be received favorably resulting in high sales associated with that product that may not be

sustainable as consumer preferences change In addition recent studies have challenged the safety or benefit of certain nutritional supplements and

dietary ingredients Future scientific research or publicity could be unfavorable to our industry or any of our particular products and may not be

consistent with earlier favorable research orpublicity Any research or publicity that is perceived by our consumers as less than favorable or that

questions earlier favorable research or publicity could have material adverse effect on our ability to generate revenue Adverse publicity in the form of

published scientific research statements by regulatory authorities or otherwise whether or not accurate that associates consumption of our products or

any other similar products with illness or other adverse effects or that questions the benefits of our or similar products or that claims that such products

are ineffective could have material adverse effect on our business reputation financial condition or results of operations

An unexpected interruption or shortage in the supply or significant increase in the cost of raw materials could limit our ability to secure sufficient

supply ofproducts which couldreduce our sales and our margins

An unexpected interruption of supply or significant increase in the cost of raw materials for any reason such as regulatory requirements import

restrictions loss of certifications disruption of distribution channels as result of weather terrorism or acts of war or other events could result in

significant cost increases and/or shortages of our products Our inability to obtain sufficient amount of products or to pass through higher cost of

products we offer could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

If we experience product recalls we may incur significant and unexpected costs and damage to our reputation which in turn could have material

adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of operations

We may be subject to product recalls withdrawals or seizures if any of the products we formulate or sell are believed to cause injury or illness or if we

are alleged to have violated governmental regulations in the labeling promotion sale or distribution of our products recall withdrawal or seizure of

any of our products could materially and adversely affect consumer confidence in our brands and lead to decreased demand for our products In addition

recall withdrawal or seizure of any of our productswould require significant management attention would likely result in substantial and unexpected

expenditures and could materially adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

Our inability to comply with health and safety regulations could materially and adversely affect our business financial condition or results of

operations

Our operations are subject to environmental and health and safety laws and regulations and some of our operations require environmental permits and

controls to prevent and limit pollution of the environment We could incur significant costs as result of violations of or liabilities under environmental

laws and regulations or to maintain compliance with such environmental laws regulations or permit requirements
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Ifwe are unable to comply with rules and regulations of the NASDAQ Stock Market our common stock could be delisted from NASDAQ

On December 2010 trading in our common stock was temporarily suspended by NASDAQ for failure to comply with rules and regulations relating to

the timely filing of SEC reports On December21 2010 we received letter from The NASDAQ Stock Market indicating that based on its review of the

Company the NASDAQ staff had determined that continued listing of our securities on NASDAQ was no longer warranted In accordance with the

procedures set forth in the NASDAQ Listing Rules we timely appealed the staff determination and requested hearing before NASDAQ Hearings

Panel the Panel The hearing was held on February 2011 On February 282011 wô received written notice from NASDAQ indicating that the

Panel had determined to grant our request to remain listed on NASDAQ subject to certain conditions including that on or before June 20 2011 we

become current in our filing obligations and demonstrated compliance with all quantitative requirements for continued listing and on or before July

2011 we have solicited proxies and held our annual meeting On June 20 2011 trading of our secunties on NASDAQ resumed On July 2011 we

received letter from NASDAQ indicating that we had met the requirements of the Panels decision and the applicable listing requirements and that

accordingly the Panel had determined to continue listing our securities on the NASDAQ Stock Market If we are unable to comply with the NASDAQ

requirements
in the future our common stock could again be suspended from trading or be delisted from NASDAQ trading suspension or delisting of

our common stock could negatively impact us by reducing the liquidity and market price of our common stock and the number of investors willing to

hold or acquire our common stock which could negatively impact our stock price and ability to raise equity fmancing

Volatility of our stock price could materially adversely affect an investment in our common stock

The market price of our common stock could fluctuate significantly as result of among other things

quarterly and annual variations in our operating results

the level and quality of research analyst coverage for our common stock changes in financial estimates or investment recommendations by

securities analysts following our business or failure to meet such estimates

the financial disclosure we may provide to the public any changes in such disclosure or our failure to meet such disclosure

the publics response to our press releases our other public announcements and our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission

various market factors or perceived market factors including rumors whether or not correct involving us our customers our suppliers or our

competitors

changes in accounting standards policies guidance interpretations or principles

sales of common stock by our directors officers or significant stockholders

introductions of new products or new pricing policies by us or by our competitors

recruitment or departure of key personnel

developments with respect to intellectual property rights

acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or our competitors

changes in shipping costs

short sales hedging and other derivative transactions in shares of our common stock

the operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors may deem comparable to us

broad market conditions and trends in the eCommerce industry and the economy as whole and

other events or factors including those resulting from war incidents of terrorism or responses to such events

Fluctuations in the price of our common stock could contribute to the loss of all or part of stockholders investment Any of the factors listed above

could have material adverse effect on an investment in our common stock In addition stocks of Internet-related and eCommerce companies have

historically experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that may have been unrelated or disproportionate to these companies operating

performance Public announcements by us or other such companies concerning among other things performance accounting practices or legal problems

could cause the market price of our common stock to decline regardless of our actual operating performance We could be the subject of securities class

action litigation due to future stock price volatility which could divert managements attention and materially adversely affect our results of operations
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

We conduct our operations through three facilities

We lease 35 600 square feet of office space in Boca Raton Florida which we use as our corporate headquarters

We own 227 000 square foot distribution
facility located on 27 acres in Lexmgton North Carolina that serves as our call center aid east coast

distribution center This
facility includes approximately 13 000 square feet of office space This

facility also includes 25 000 square feet of
space that we lease toa ihird party manufacturer of certain of our proprietaiy products

We lease approximately 155 000 square feet in Las Vegas Nevada that serves as our west coast distribution
facility

See Note of our consolidated financial statements included in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form 10 for more infoniation about our leaseCommitments

Item Legal Proceedings

Refer to Note 11 Contingencies of our consolidated financial statements included in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for discussionon the nature of the legal proceedi.ngs against us which is incorporated herein by reference

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Regisfrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock par value $O.0000l per share is listed on The NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol VITC and has been included for listing

thereon since September 24 2009 As previouslyreported the NASDAQ halted tradingof our stock from December 2010 through June 17 2011

Accordingly the sales price per share of our common stock during that period reflects the closing price on December 72010 of $5.70 share

The following table sets forth for the indicated periods the high and low sales price per share for our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market

High Low

Year Ended December 31 2012

Fourth quarter
7.25 5.89

Third quarter
6.90 5.05

Second quarter
8.38 5.86

First quarter
8.59 6.44

Year Ended December 31 2011

Fourth quarter
6.60 4.66

Third quarter
5.72 4.33

Second quarter
5.70 3.41

First quarter
5.70 5.70

Holders of Record

At February 27 2013 our common stock was held by approximately holders of record

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our common stock and our Board of Directors does not contemplate doing so in the near future Any

decisions as to future payment of dividends will depend on our earnings and financial position and such other factors as our Board of Directors deems

relevant

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following is summary of our equity compensation plans as of December 312012

Number of Securities Number of Securities

to Be Issued Upon Weighted Average Remaining Available

Exercise of Exercise Price of for Future Issuance

Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Under Equity

Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 5209250 6.40 4337678

Equity compensation plans not approved by security

holders

Additional information about our equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference from the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements

included in this Form 10-K
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Performance Graph

The graph set forth below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on ou cbmmonstocklbetweenSeptember 24 2009 and December 31 2012
with the cumulative total return of the Russell 2000 Index ii the NASDAQ Internet Index and iii custom selected Peer Group Index This graph
assumes the mvestment of $100 on September24 2009 in our common stock the Russell 2000 Index the NASDAQ Internet Index and custom
selected Peer Group Index The custom Peer Group Index consists of the following companies Blue Nile Shutterfly Vitamin Shoppe Overstock.com
Herbalife Ltd l-800-FLOWERS.COM Nu Skin Enterprises Whole Foods Market US Auto Parts Network GNC Holdings Stamps.com USANA
Health Sciences PetMed Express and NutriSystem As previously reported the NASDAQ halted trading of our stock from December 2010 through
June 17 2011 The historical stock price performance is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance
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Item Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data presented below has been derived from our consolidated financial statements The statement of operations data

for each of the fiscal years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 and the balance sheet data at December 312012 and 2011 are derived from our

audited financial statements that are included in this annual report The statement of operations data for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

and the balance sheet data at December 31 20102009 and 2008 are derived from audited 2010 2009 and 2008 financial statements that are not

included in this annual report The historical results presented below are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in any future period

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

in thousands except per share data

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Net sales 330680 260523 220681 191807 143602

Cost of goods sold 254527 200596 164206 130605 105529

Gross profit
76153 59927 56475 61202 38073

Operating expenses

Fulfillment 33505 22290 17354 8954 8393

Sales and marketing
32306 22842 18728 14284 13147

General and administrative 29614 29620 33989 29083 14871

Total operating expenses
95425 74752 70070 52321 36411

Operating loss income 19272 14825 13595 8881 1662

Other income expense net 154 47 175 151 1163

Income tax expense
53 53 1421 2836 482

Net loss income 19171 14831 15191 5894 17

Net loss income per share

Basic 0.59 0.53 0.55 0.24

Diluted 0.59 0.53 0.55 0.24

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic
32675 27829 27704 24217 23188

Diluted 32675 27829 27704 24674 23975

Consolidated Balance Sheets Data

Cash and cash equivalents
32152 12939 11952 8658 61

Inventory
33319 34822 29828 28097 21663

Working capital deficit 30846 13201 22377 49599 5990

Total assets 107663 90629 99464 107679 46869

Total debt
59 9405 18232

Stockholders equity
66658 48807 62186 74500 6965

This information should be read in connection with Item 7Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

and our financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this annual report
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of the Companys financialcondition and results of operatidns should be read in connection with Item Selected
Financial Data and Item Finazcial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Repbtt on Form 10-K The bmpany does not believe that its

historical operating results will be indicative of future operating results This discussion and analysis containsforward-looking statements that involve
risks uncertainties and assumptions The Companys actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as
result of many factors including but not limited to those under the headings Risk Factors and Forward-Looking Information of this Annual ReportWe undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or
otherwise

Overview

We are leading online retailer of health and wellness products including dietary supplements such as vitamins minerals herbs and other botanicals

which we refer to as vitamins and dietary supplements as well as cosmetics natural personal care products pet products sports nutrition and health
foods We sell these products dir ctly to consumers primarily through our website www vitacost corn We strive to offer our customers the broadest
selection of healthy living products at extremely competitive prices while providing superior customer service

We offer our customers broad selectionof approximately 40000 Stock Keeping Units SKUs from over 2000 third-party brandssuch as New
Chapter Nature Way Twinlab Source Naturals Jarrow Formulas Jason Desert Essence Atkins Bob Red Mill BSN Optimum Nutrit1on USP
Labs and MuscleTech in addition to our own proprietary brands Vitacost Cosmeceutical Sciences Institute CSI Best of All and Smart Basics We
support our operations through our customer service center and our two distribution centers delivering what we believe are industry-leading customer
satisfaction results Our website allows customers to easily browse and purchase products at prices typically significantly lower than manufacturers
suggested retail prices Our websi.te also serves as an educational resource for consumers seeking information on healthy living and the attribütŁs of
health and wellness supplements

Our growth is driven prunanly by our ability to expand our customer base and grow our product offerings Our customers are typically individuals
seeking value in their purchases of health and wellness products Our active customer base which we define as customers who have purchased from us
within the last twelve months hac steadily mcreased from approximately 270 000 at the end of 2005 to approximately million as of December 31
2012 On average our customers make purchases from us two to three times year and during 2012 approximately 72% of our orders were placed by
repeat customers

We were incorporated in Delaware in May 1994 and began operations as catalog retailer of third-party vitamins and supplements under the name
Natures Wealth Company In 1999 we launched Vitacost.com and introduced our proprietary vitamins and supplements In 2000 we began operating
under the name Vitacost.com Inc In September 2009 we completed our Initial Public Offering On September 28 2011 Vitacost.com Inc completed
restructuring whereby it merged with and into Vitacost Merger Corporation wholly owned subsidiary of Vitacost.com Inc with Vitacost Merger
Corporation surviving the merger The surviving company continues to operate thebusiness under the name Vitacost.com Inc

Recent Transactions

On August 28 2012 we entered into an agreement to outsource all of our remaining manufacturing operations and lease ourmanufacturing facilities to
third party provider effective September 2012 Prior to this transaction approximately forty percent of our proprietary products were supplied by
contract manufacturers We do not expect the transaction to have material impact on our results from operations

On February 16 2012 the Company entered into Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement by and among Vitacost JHH Capital LLC an
entity affiliated with Jeffrey Horowitz our Chief Executive Officer JHH Great Hill Equity Partners III L.P Great Hill III Great Hill Equity
Partners IV L.P Great Hill Great Hill Investors LLC Great Hill Investors Freshford Partners LP Freshford PartnersFreshford Master
Fund Ltd Freshford Master Fund and Baron Small Cap Fund Baron and together with JHH Great Hill III Great Hill IV Great Hill Investors
Freshford Partners Freshford Master Fund collectively the Investors pursuant to which the Investors purchased and Vitacost sold an aggregate of
4.9 million shares of the Companys common stock at purchase price of $7.04 per share and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.7 million shares of
the Companys common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $34.8 million The warrants have an exercise price of $7.04 per share and term of
four years The net proceeds of $33 .6 million after the deduction of fees of $1.2 million incurred in connection with the transaction were allocated
between common stock and warrants based on their relative fair values as of the purchase date portion of the proceeds from the financing are being
used to expand and optimize our distribution network We spent $4.5 million on the expansion and upgrade of our fulfillment centers in 2012 and expect
additional investments in 2013 In addition an estimated $15.0 million maybe used to invest in and stock third distribution center to support our future
sales growth We are evaluating an investment in new facility in late 2013 or beyond We intend to use the remaining proceeds from the financing for

general operations
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Trends and Other Factors Affecting Our Business

We continue to experience intense competition as the vitamin and supplement industry shifts towards greater internet presence This competitive

environment continues to drive margin pressure as deep discounting results from aggressive customer acquisition andretention actions In order to

differentiate ourselves from our competitors we are expanding our product offerings through the introduction of new and diverse products improving

our customer service and support improving our reliability and speed of delivery and by adjusting our product mix and pricing

The health and wellness industry continues to benefit from positive demographic trends with an aging population trends affecting health and lifestyle

preferences and an increasingly health conscious consumer In addition the increasing cost of traditional healthcare has helped bolster demand for

natural products to help ward off more expensive medical visits and prescription drugs Changes in these trends and other factors that we may not

foresee may also impact our business including potential regulatory actions by the Food and Drug Administration FDA and the Federal Trade

Commission FTC that may affect the viability of certain products that we offer

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements which have been

prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles of the U.S GAAP
The preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities revenue and

expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities in the consolidated fmancial statements and accompanying notes Critical accounting

policies are those that are the most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require our most difficult

subjective and complex judgments as result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain While our

significant accounting policies are described in more detail in the notes to our consolidated financial statements our most critical accounting policies

discussed below pertain to revenue recognition income taxes stock-based compensation contingencies inventories and goodwill In applying such

policies we exercise our best judgment and best estimates Actual results may differ fromtheseestimates under different assumptions or conditions For

further discussion of these Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates as well as description of our other significant accounting policies see Note

of our consolidated financial statements included in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form.l0-K

Revenue Recognition Revenue from the sale of vitamins nutritional supplements and other health and weliness products is recognized when all the

following criteria are met customer executes an order the sales price and the shipping and handling fee have been determined credit card

authorization has occurred and collection is reasonably assured and the product has been received by the customer Our internet sales are made to

customers permitting certain limited rights of return for 30-day period It has been our experience that such returns have been insignificant

Income Taxes Income taxes are computed under an asset and
liability approach whereby deferred taxassets and liabilities are recognized based on the

difference between the financial statement amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilitiçs using tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences

are expected to reverse The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in the period that includes the enactment

date We evaluate our deferred tax assets on regular basis to detennine if valuation allowances are required In our evaluation we consider taxable loss

carryback availability expectations of sufficient future taxable income trends in earnings existence of taxable income in recent years the future reversal

of temporary differences and the available tax planning strategies that could be implemented if required Valuation allowances are established based on

the consideration of all available evidence using more likely than not standard Our deferred tax assets for which valuation allowance has not been

established relate to amounts that can be realized through future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences Our deferred tax asset valuation

allowance will be reversed if and when it becomes more likely than not that we can generate sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize the tax

benefits of the related deferred tax assets

Stock-based Compensation We use fair value-based mçthod to recognize non-cash compensation expense for share-based transactions Under the fair

value recognition provisions we recognize stock-based compensation net of an estimated forfeiture rate and only recognize compensation cost for those

shares expected to vest on straight line basis over the requisite service period of the award

Contingencies On an ongoing basis we assess potential liabilities related to lawsuits or claims brought against us While it is typically very difficult to

determine the timing and ultimate outcome of such actions we use our best judgment to determine if it is probable that we will incur an expense related

to the settlement or final adjudication of such matters andwhether reasonable estimation of such probable loss if any can be made In assessing

probable losses we take into consideration estimates of the amount of insurance recoveries if any We accrue liability whenwe believe loss is

probable and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated Due to the inherent uncertainties related to the eventual outcome of litigation and potential

insurance recoveries it is possible that certain matters may be resolved for amounts materially different from any provisions or disclosures that we have

previously made For further discussion of contingencies see Note 11 of our consolidated financial statements included in Part II Item of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Inventory Inventory consisting principally of health and wellness products is primarily stated at the lower of cost or market using the first in first out

FIFOmethod Management determines the inventory reserve by regularly reviewing and evaluating individual inventory items and movement

history Future factors such as changes in consumer demand and reports in the media deemed negative to certain products we market and sell could

impact managements inventory

25



Goodwill The excess of purchase price over fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed inbusiness combinations is classified as goodwill We

review goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level annually or when events or circumstances dictate more frequently We assess qualitative

factors to determine whether itis more likely than not that the fair value of our reporting unit is less than its carlying amount In performing the

qualitative assessment we assess relevant events and circumstances that may impact the fair value of our reporting unit including the following

macroeconomic conditions ii mdustry and market considerations as overall financial performance iv events affecting the reporting unit share

price and vi recent fair value calculation for our reporting unit if available We performed this qualitative assessment as of December 31 2012 as

allowable per
the authoritative guidance

After assessing the above described events and circumstances ifwe determine that it is more likely than not that the fair value of our reporting unit is

greater than its carrying value then no further testing is required Otherwise we would perform two-step impairment test to evaluate goodwill Under

the first step we compare the estimated fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying value If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is less than

its carrying value we will complete second step to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment that we should record

Based on our qualitative assessment we concluded that it was more likely than not that the estimated fair value of our reporting unit exceeded its

carrying value as of December 31 2012 and thus did not proceed to the two-step goodwill impairment test No indicators of impairment exist primarily

because our reporting units fair vaLue has consistently exceeded its carrying value by significant margin

Sources of Revenue

We derive our revenue principally through the sale .of products and freight billed to customers associated with the shipment of products For 2012 net

product sales accounted for approximately 96% of our total net sales with freight comprising the remainder

Cost of Goods Sold and Operating Expenses

Cost of Goods Sold Cost of goods sold consists primarily of the cost of the product sold and the cost of shipping the products to the customers

Fulfillment Fulfillment expenses include the costs of warehousing and shipping supplies machinery and equipment maintenance employees

professional services and rent

Sales and Marketing Sales and marketing expenses include online advertising and promotional expenditures including third-party content license fees

affiliates and partners commissions traditional media advertising print expenses andpayroll related expenses for personnel engaged in marketing

sales customer service and website development and maintenance We expense advertising costs as incurred

General and Administrative General and administrative expenses consist of executive compensation information technology expenses credit card

processing fees legal fees professional services employee expenses and general corporate expenses

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain consolidated statementof operations data as percentage of net sales for the periods indicated

Year EndedDecember 31

2012 2011 2010

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 77.0 77.0 74.4

Gtoss profit 23.0 23.0 25.6

Operating expenses

Fulfillment 10.1 8.5 7.9

Sales and marketing 9.8 8.8 8.5

General and administrative 11 15

Total operating exp nse 28 28 31

Operating loss 5.9 5.7 6.2
Net loss 5.9% 5.7% 6.9%
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Comparison of Year Ended December 31 2012 to Year Ended December 31 2011

Year Ended

December 31 Increase Increase

2012 2011 Decrease Decrease

In thousands

Third-party products 245800 190541 55259 29.0%

Proprietary products 72335 60973 11362 18.6

Freight 12545 9009 3536 39.3

Net sales 330680 260523 70157 26.9

Cost of goods sold 254527 200596 53931 26.9

Gross profit 76153 59927 16226 27.1

Net Sales Net sales increased by $702 million or 26 9% to $330 million for 2012 compared to 2011 Net sales of third party products increased

$55 million or 29 0% to $245 million for 2012 compared to 2011 Net sales of our proprietary products increased $11 million or 18 6% to $72

million and freight increased $3.5 million or 39.3% to $12.5 million for 2012 compared to 2011

The increase in net sales was primarily the result of the increase in our customer baseand number of shippedorders compared to the 2011 As of

December31 2012 we had million active customers an increase of 51 9% from December31 2011 In 2012 shipped 49 million orders which

represents 36.6% increase over 2011 The growth in active customers and the number of shipped orders was due to greater eniphasison new

customer acquisition as we expanded our marketing activities promotional offers and grew our network of affiliates and partners during the period In

the second half of 2011 we began distributing our products on Amazon corn which was sigmficant driver of growth in 2012

Cost of Goods Sold Cost of goods sold mcreased $53 million or 26 9% to $254 million for 2012 compared to 2011 As percentage of net sales

costofgoodssoldremainedat77.0%for2012and2011

Gross Profit Gross profit increased $16.2 million or 27.1% to $76.2 million for 2012 compared to 2011 and gross profit as percentage of net sales

remained at 23.0% for 2012 and 2011 Gross margin was positively impacted by the reduction in our shippingcosts per order as we implemented

program to reduce shipping expenses in the latter part of 2011 This was offset by reduction in product margin primarily due to increased promotions

and shift in product mix with an increased percentage of sales from third party products which typically carry lower gross margm

Fufillment Fulfillment expense increased $11.2 million or 50.3% to $33.5 million for 2012 compared to 2011 As percentage of net sales fulfillment

expense increased to 10.1% for 2012 from 8.5% for 2011 The increase in fulfilhnent expensewas primarily due to a36.6% increase in the number of

shipped orders in 2012 comparedto 2011 The remaining increase was primarily theresult of fees associated withour freight savings prograrn We are

investing in and aggressively working to improve our fulfillment efficiency over the long-term

Sales and Marketing Sales and marketing expense increased approximately $9.5 million or 1.4% to $32.3 million for 2012 when compared to 2011

As percentage of net sales expenses increased to 9.8% for 2012 from 8.8% for 2011 Included in the 2011 amount was$0.9 million in severancó and

executive recruiting expenses Excluding these items sales and marketing expenses increased $10.4 million period-over-period The increase in sales

and marketing expense was primarily due to $5.4 million increase in fees paid to affiliates and partners associated with the expandeddistribution of our

products increased employee expenses of $2.4 million increased online and broadcast advertising expense of$2.0 million and increased other sales and

marketing costs of $0.6 million We believe sales and marketing expense may continue to increase in the future as we continue to invest in marketing

initiatives to drive additional growth in our customer base

General and Administrative General and administrative expense remained flat at $29.6 million in 2012 when compared to 20i As percentage of net

sales expenses decreased to 9.0% in 2012 from 11.4% for 201 Included in the 2012 amount were $0.5 million inexpenses consisting primarily of the

following $0.4 million in severance executive recruiting and relocation expenses $0.2 million in fees associated with the financing in the first quater

of 2012 $0.1 million in additional legal expenses associated with the Class Action lawsuit partially offset by $0.3 million related to the release of

litigation accrual Included in the 2011 amount were $2.9 million in expenses consisting of the following $2.1 million in expenses primarily related to

our equity capitalization issue and strategic review $0.5 million in severance and executive recniitiiig expenses and $03 million related to litigation

accrual Excluding the aforementioned itemsgeneral and administrative expense increased $2.4 million period-over-period The increase was primarily

attributable to increased credit card fees of $1.0 million due to higher sales increased employee compensation costs of $0.6 million due to headcount

growth in critical departments and increased other administrative costs of $0.8 million We believe general and administrative expense may increase in

the future as we continue to invest in our information technology infrastructure to support our future growth
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Income Tax Expense Income tax expense remained at $0.1 million for20 12 and 2011 This was result of reducing our net deferred tax assets to zero at

December 31 2010 and maintaining valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets through 2012

Comparison of Year Ended December 31 2011 to Year Ended December 31 2010

Year Ended

December 31 Increase Increase

011 2010 Decrease Decrease

In thousands

Third party producis 190541 147065 43476 296%

Proprietary products 60973 59159 1814 3.1

Freight 9009 14457 5448 37.7

Net sales 60523 220681 39842 18.1

Cost of goods sold 200596 164206 36390 22.2

Gross profit 59927 56475 452

Net Sales Net sales increased by $39.8 million or 18.1% to $260.5 million for 2011 compared to 2010 Net sales of third-party products increased

$43.5 million or 29.6% to $190.5 million for 2011 Third-party products include advertising and other fees earned from affiliate programs of an

insignificant amount for 2011 and $0.8 million for 2010 Net sales of our proprietary products increased $1.8 million or 3.1% to $61.0 million and

freight decreased $54 million or 37.7% to $9.0 million for 2011 compared to 2010

The increase in net sales was primarily the result of an increase in our custOmer base and number of shipped orders compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 We also expanded shipping and promotional offers in 2011 along with growing our network of affiliates In July 2011 we began

distributing our products on Amazon corn In February 2011 we extended our free shipping policy to include all orders above $49 prior to that only

orders above $100 included free shipping The change in our free shipping policy accounted for additional product sales although it reduced freight

revenue in 2011

Cost of Goods Sold Cost of goods sold increased $36.4 million or 22.2% to $200.6 million for 2011 compared to 2010 As percentage of net sales

cost of goods sold mcreased to 77 0% for 2011 from 744% for 2010 The increase in costs of goods sold is primarily due to shift in product mix to

higher cost third party products partially offset by reduction in our shipping costs per order as we implemented program to reduce shipping expenses

in the fourth quarter of 2011

Gross Profit As result of the changes4iscussed in net sales and costof goods sold gross profit increased$3.5 million or 6.1% to $59.9 million for

2011 compared to 2010 and gross profit as percentageof net sales decreasedto 23.0% for 2011 from 25.6% for 2010

Fulfillment Fulfillment expense increased $4.9 million or 28.4% to $22.3 million for 2011 compared to 2010 As percentage of net sales fulfillment

expense mcreased to 5% for 2011 from 9% for 2010 The increase in fulfllhnent expense was primarily attributable to an increase in shipped orders

in 2011 and expenses associated with program to reduce our freight costs per shipment Additionally there were higher operating costs at our

distnbution centers as result of rtam operating ineffrciencies primarily attributable to difficulties related to optimizing our warehouse systems and

significant unanticipated shift to pzoducts requiring special handling liquids and glass packaging resulting in higler labor costs These

inefficiencies began in 2010 and continued through 2011

Sales and Marketing Sales and marketing expense increased $4.1 million or 22.0% to $22.8 million for 2011 As percentage of net sales sales and

marketing expense increased to 8.8% for 2011 from 8.5% for 2010 Included in the 2011 amount were $0.9 million in expenses consisting of the $0.7

million severance payment to our lormer Chief Marketmg Officer and $02 million in recruiting fees related to the hiring of our new Chief Marketing

officer The remaining increase in sales and marketmg expense of $3 million was primarily related to increases in online advertising including fees

paid to affiliates and Amazon.com associated with the expanded distribution of our products employee compensation costs and depreciation partially

offset by decreases in printadvertising and co-op advertising

General and AdmInistrative.GeneraI and administrative expenses
decreased $4.4 million or 12.9% to $29.6 million for 2011 As percentage of net

sales general and administrative expenses decreased to 11.4% for 2011 from 15.4% for 2010 Included in the 2011 amount were $2.9 million in

expenses consisting of the following $2 million in expenses primarily related to ow equity capitalization issue and strategic review $0 million in

severance and executive reemitilig expenses and $03 million related to litigation accrual Included in the 2010 amount were an estimated $10

million in expenses consisting of the following $3 million in fees associated with our class action lawsuit conclusion of the proxy solicitation and

other matters $3.5 million accrual for the settlement of our derivative lawsuit $1.2 million in accrued severance to our former Chief Executive Officer

$1.1 million in accrued severance to our former Chief Financial Officer $0.7 million in proxy reimbursement fees to Great Hill Partners and $0.5

million in professional services fees to our independent accountants Excluding the aforementioned items in both periods general and administrative

expenses increased $3.3 million period-over-period The increase period-over-period was primarily attributable to increased employee compensation

costs of $2.9 million due to headcount growth in critical departments increased credit card fees of $0.6 million due to higher sales and increase4

depreciation of $0.2 million partially offset by $0.4 million decrease in professional services fees
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Interest Expense Interest expense decreased $0.4 million or 99.2% to an insignificant amount for 2011 The decrease was primarily attributable to the

pay off of our notes payable and line of credit balances in 2010

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense decreased $1.4 million or 96.3% to $0.1 million for 2011 This was result of reducing our net deferred tax

assets to zero at December 31 2010 Maintaining valuation allowance on our deferred tax.assets throughout 2011 resulted in an insignificant income

tax expense for the year

Historical Cash Flows

Comparison of Year Ended December 31 2012 to Year Ended December 31 2011

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities For the year ended December31 2012 net cash used in operations was $9.4 million compared to $7.0 million

for the year ended December 31 2011 The increase in 2012 of $2.4 million was primarily due to our increased net loss

Net Cash Used in Provided By Investing Activities For the year ended December 31 2012 net cash used in investing activities was $6.4 million

compared to net cash provided by investing activities of $7.6 million for the year ended December 31 2011 The $14.0 million change in cash flows

from investing activities was primarily due to decrease in proceeds from maturities of securities available for sale as we liquidated all our securities

available-for-sale during 2011 and an increase in our capital expenditures

Net Cash Provided byFinancingActivities For the year ended December 31 2012 net cash provided by financing activities was $35.0 million

compared to $0.4 million for the year ended December 31 2011 The change in cash flows from financing activities was primarily due to the net

proceeds of $33.6 million from the financing in the first quarter of 2012 and the increase in prOceeds from the exercise of stock options of$l .0 million

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity The significant components of our working capital are cash and cash equivalents inventory and accounts receivable primarily from credit

card processors reduced by accounts payable and accrued expenses Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and money market accounts The working

capital characteristics of our business allow us to collect cash from sales to customers within few business days of the related sale At December 31

2012 we had working capital surplus of $30.8 million

Amounts deposited with third party financial institutions exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or FDIC and Securities Investor Protection

Corporation or SIPC insurance limits as applicable These cash and cash equivalent balances could be impacted if the underlying fmancial institutions

fail or are subjected to other adverse conditions in the financial markets To date we have experienced no loss or lack of access to our cash and cash

equivalents however we can provide no assurances that access to our invested cash and cash equivalentswill not be impacted by adverse conditions in

the financial markets

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors inŁluding

the rate of ourrevenue growth

the timing and extent of expenditures to enhance our website network infrastructure and transactioh processing systems

the extent of our advertising and marketing programs

the efficiency of our fulfillment process and systems

the levels of inventory we maintain and

other factors relating to our business

On February 16 2012 we entered into the Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Investors purchased and we sold an aggregate of 4.9 million

shares of our common stock at purchase price of $7.04 per share and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.7 million shares of common stock for an

aggregate purchase price of $34.8 million The warrants have an exercise price of $7.04 per share and term of four years portion of the proceeds

from the financing are being used to expand and optimize our distribution network We spent $4.5 million on the expansion and upgrade of our

fulfillment centers in 2012 and expect additional investments in 2013 In addition an estimated $15.0 million may be used to invest in and stock third

distribution center to support our future sales growth We are evaluating an investment in new facility
in late 2013 or beyond We intend to use the

remaining proceeds from the financing for general operations
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At December 31 2012 we had $32.2 million in cash and cash equivalents In 2012 our net cash used in operating activities was $9.4 million which was

primarily due to our net loss We are investing in our growth strategy which includes increasing ourbrand and company awareness expanding our

customer base growing our product assortment and expanding and optimizing our fulfillment centers As result we are working .to increase our

customers lifetime value by increasing the frequency of pUrchases and improving ci.istonier retention while also improving our operating efficiencies

We believe the implementation of our growth strategy will reduce our net loss and our net cash used in operations in the future

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents currently on hand and our net cash flows from operations will be sufficient to continue our operations for

the next twelve months although we may require additional financing in the future in order to execute our operating plan We cannot predict whether

future financing if any will be in the form of equity debt or combination of both We may not be able to obtain additional funds on timely basis on

acceptable terms or at all

Aggregate Contractual Obligations summary of contractual cash obligations as of December 31 2012 is as follows

Payments Due By Period

Less Than More Than

Total Year to Years to Years Years

In thousands

Operating Leases 5929 1700 2248 1230 751

Total Contractual Obligations 5929 1700 2248 1230 751

We have various non cancelable operating leases that expire in various years through August 2019 for the rental of office space Rent expense totaled

$2.0 million and $2.1 million for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note of our consolidated financial statements included in Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a.discussion of recently

issued accounting standards appla able to us which is incorporated herein by reference

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of changes in the value of market risk sensitive instruments caused by fluctuations in interest rates foreign exchange rates

and commodity prices Changes in these factors could cause fluctuations in the results of our operations and cash flows However we do not believe that

change in market interest rates would have material effect on our results of operations or financial condition Although we derive minor portion of

our sales outside of the U.S all of our sales are denominated in U.S dollars We have limited exposure to financial market risks including changes in

interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates Inflation generally affects us by increasing costs of inventory labor and equipment We do not believe

that inflation had any material effect on our results of operations in the periods presented in our financial statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of lirectors

of Vitacost.com Inc

In our opinion the consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive loss stockholders equity and cash flows

present fairly in all material respects the fmancial position of Vitacost.com Inc andits subsidiary the Company at December 31 2012 and 2011
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each cf the three years in the periodended December 3.12012 in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained.in all material respects effective internaL

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial

statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting included in Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A Our responsibility is to express

opinions on these financial statements and on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our
audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management and evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures thati pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and iii provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation

of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Miami Florida

March 2013
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VITACOST.COM INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31

2012 2011

In thousands except par value

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32152 12939

Accounts receivable net 2613 2169

Inventory 33319 34822

Prepaid expenses 1270 1912

Other receivables 2054 264

Other assets 93 2344

Total current assets 71501 54450

Property and equipment net 33491 33629

Retricted cash 225 225

Deposits 246 125

Goodwill 2200 2200

Total assets 107663 90629

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 28696 30250

Deferred revenue 5414 4573

Accrued expenses 6545 6425

Total current liabilities 40655 41248

Deferred tax liability
350 574

Total liabilities 41005 41822

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock par value $.0000l per share 25000 shares authorized no shares issued and outstanding

Common stock par value $.00001 per share 1OQ000 shares authorized 33500 and 27975 shares

issued and outstanding at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

Additional paid-in capital 109022 76262

Warrants 4262

Accumulated deficit 46626 27455
Total stockholders equity 66658 48807

Total liabifities and stockholders equity 107663 90629

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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VITACOST.COM INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

In thousands except per share
Net sales 330680 260523 220681

Cost of goods sold 254527 200596 164206

Gross profit 76153 59927 56475

Operating expenses

Fulfillment 33505 22290 17354

Sales and marketing 32306 22842 18727

General and administrative 29614 29620 33989

95425 74752 70070

Operating loss 19272 14825 13595

Other income expense 154 47 175

Loss before income taxes 19118 14778 13770
Income.tax expense 53 53 1421

Net loss 19171 14831 15191

Basic and diluted per share infermation

Net loss available to common stockholders 0.59 0.53 0.55

Weighted average shares outstanding 32675 27829 27704

omprehensive loss

loss 19171 14831 15191
ther comprehensive income loss net of tax

Unrealized gain loss on available-for-sale securities 20 20
ther comprehensive income loss 20 20

Comprehensiveloss 19171 14811 15211

accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

34



Balance at December 31 2009

Net loss

Other compehensive loss

Stock options exercised

Stock-based compensation expense

Income tax benefit from stock options exercised

Balance at December 312010
Net loss

Other compehensive income

Stock
options exercised

Stock-based compensation expense

Balance at December 31 2011

Net loss

Stock options exercised

Stock-based compensation expense

Stock issued in
private placement net

Warrants issued in
private placement net

Balance at December 31 2012

VITACOSTCOM INC

CONSOLI1MTKDSTATEMENTOFSTOCK1iOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stork

Accumulated Accumulated

Additional Other Deficit

Paid-In Comprehensive Retained

Shares Amount Capital Warrants Loss Income Earnings Total

In thousands

27489 71933 2567 74500

15J91 151912o 20
292 851 851

1463 1463

583 583

27781 74830 20 12624 62186

14831 14831
20 20

194 424 424

l008 1008

27975 76262 27455 48807

19171 19171
605 1384 1384

1999 1999

4920 29377 29377

4262 4262
33500 109022 4262 46626 $66658

The accmanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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VITACOST.COM INC

CONSOLIDATED STTEMENT OFCASI FLOWS

6474

1999

224
47

444
1790
1503

642

121
2251

1554
841

120

9427

1384

35023

19213

12939

32152

6174

72

1008

53

41

1729
823

4994
551
11

1210

3040
225

10861

7596

5138

685

1463

3051

69

295

32
1731

627

161

3553

232

460
16965

27457
51634

6984

5852
3458

35
851

583

7911
3294

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash payments for

Interest

Income taxes

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing Activities

Equipment purchased not yet paid Note

Application of deposits towards purchases of equipment

1212

-$

350

1461

2203

4381

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

In thousands

19171 14831 15191
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of premium on debt securities available-for-sale

Change in fair value of interest rate swap

Realized gain on the sale of securities available-for-sale

Stock-based compensation expense

Deferred taxes

Loss gain on disposition of property and equipment and other assets

Changes in assets and liabilities

Increase decrease in

Accounts receivable

Other receivables

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Deposits

Other assets

Increase decrease in

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

Accrued expenses

Income taxes payable

Net cash used in provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds from disposition of property equipment

Settlement of interest rate swap

Payments for the purchase of property and equipment

Increase in restricted cash

Purchases of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities of securities available-for-sale

Net cash used in provided by investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activties

Proceeds from private placement net

Principal payments on notes payable

Net borrowings on line of credit

Repayments on capital lease obligation

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options

Tax benefit from stock based compensation

Net cash provided by in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year

Ending of year

7570 5840

2438 215

4246 7389

51
6974 4221

74

6457

6383

33639

59

424

365

987

11952 8658

12939 11952
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VITACOST.COM INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Business Recent Developments Significant Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Guidance

Nature ofBusiness

Vitacost.com Inc Vitacost or the Company is leading online retailer of health and weliness products including dietary supplements
such as

vitamins minerals herbs and other botanicals as well as cosmetics natural personal care products pet products sports nutrition and health foods

Vitacost was incorporated in 1994 and began its online retail activity in 1999 Vitacost sells an internally developed proprietary line of nutraceuticals as

well as wide selection of other manufacturers brand-name health and weilness products The Company ships products from two distribution centers

located in Lexington North Carolina and Las Vegas Nevada

Signficant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Vitacost and its wholly-owned subsidiary All intercompany accounts and transactions

have been eliminated in consolidation

Reclassifications

reclassification on the 2011 consolidated balance sheets has been made to conform to the 2012 presentation Reclassifications on the 2011 and 2010

consolidated statements of cash flows has been made to conform to the 2012 presentation

Acountin Estimates

The preparation
of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the -United States of America

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could

differ from those estimates Significant estimates inherent in the preparation
of the accompanying

consolidated financial statements include

management
forecast of future cash flows used as basis to assess recoverability of long-lived assets including intangible assets and goodwill

the

reserve for inventory obsolescence deferred revenue and assumptions used in the valuation of the Company stock based compensation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three nionths or less at the date of purchase to be cash

equivalents The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in various bank deposit accounts which at times may exceed the federally insured

limits The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on such

accounts

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash pledged as collateral to secure vendor obligation

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts in transit from banks for customer credit card debit card and electronic benefit transfer transactions

that are generally processed by the banks within seven days ofauthorizatiOn.Baed on the Companys historical collectionexperience and a-review of

the status of accounts receivable an allowance for doubtful accounts of $02 million was recorded as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Invento

Inventory consisting principally of health and wellness products is primarily stated at the lower of cost or market using the first in first out FIFO

method
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ViTACOSTCOM INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over theshorter of the estimated useful life of the assets or the lease term Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimatedusrful lives --

Furniture fixtures and equipment
10

Computers 35Software

Leasehold and building improvements 39
Buildings

39

Upon retirement or sale the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the gain or loss if any is included in theconsolidated statements of operations

Goodwill

The excess of purchase price over fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations is classified as goodwill The Companyreviews goodwill for impairment at the
reporting unit level- annually or when events or circumstances dictate more frequently The-Company assessesqualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of

its-reporting unit is less than its carrying amount In performingthe qualitative assessment the Company assesses relevant events and circumstances that may impact the fair value of its reporting unit including thefollowing macroeconomic conditions ii industry and market considerations iii overall fmancial performance iv events aºctng the reportingunit share price and vi recent fair value calculation for the reporting unit if available The Company performed this qualitative assessment as ofDecember 31 2012 as allowable per theapplicable authoritative guidance --

After assessing the above described events and circumstances if the Company determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value of its reportingunit is greater than its carrying value then no further testing is required Otherwise the Company would performa-twostep impairment -test to evaluategoodwill Under the first step The Company compares the estimated fair value of the reporting unit with- its carrying value.- If the estimated fair value ofthe reporting unit is less than its carrying value the Company will complete second step to determine the-amount of the goodwill impairment thatshould be recorded

Based on the Companys qualitative assessment it has concluded that it was more likely than not that the estimated fair value of its reporting unitexceeded its carrying value as of December 31 2012 and thus did not proceed to the two-step goodwill impairment test No indicatorsof impairmentexist primarily because the Companys reporting units-fhirvaiue-has
consistently exceeded its carrying value

-by-a significant margin

Lon.-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not berecoverable The Company would evaluate potential impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the asset with the estimated undiscounted futurecash flows associated with the use of the asset and its eventual disposition.-Should -the review indicate the asset is
ncitreôoverable -the Companyscarrying value of the asset would be reduced to its estimated fair value which is measured by future discounted cash flows

Revenue Recognition and Freihi

Revenue from the sale of vitamins nutritional supplements and other health and wellness products is -recognized when all the following criteria are metcustomer executes an order the sales price and the shipping andhandlin-g fee have been determined credit card authorization has occurred collectionis reasonably assured and the product has been received by the customer The Company establishes deferred revenue liability which represents ordersthat have been shipped but not yet received by the customer at the end of given period The Companys sales terms grant customers certain limitedrights of return for 30-day period It has been the Companys experience that such returns have been insignificant The Company recorded reserve forreturns of $0.2 million at December 31 2012 and 201-1

Freight billed to customers is classified as revenue and totaled approximately $12.5 million $9.0 million and $14.5 million for the years endedDecember 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Freight costs are expensed as incurred and recorded as component of cost of goods sold Freightexpense totaled approximately $31.7 million $26.0 million and $23.0 million for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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VITACOST.COM INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operatinf Expenses

The Companys operating expenses are grouped into three categories fulfillment sales and marketing and general and a4mnistratve The following is

abrief synopsis of each category

Fulfillment Expenses

Fulfillment expenses include the costs of warehousing and shipping supplies machinery and equipment maintenance employees professional

services and rent

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses include online advertising and promotional expenditures including third-party content license fees affiliates and

partners commissions traditional media advertising print expenses and payroll related expenses for personnel engaged in marketing sales

customer service and website development and maintenance We expense advertising costs as incurred

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist of executive compensation information technology expenses credit card processing fees legal

fees professional services employee expenses and general corporate expenses

Earnings per Share

The Company computed earnings per share by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period

Diluted earnings per share is computed by giving effect to all potentially dilutive common shares mçludmg stock options and warrants The fo1lowng

table reconciles basic weighted average shares outstanding to diluted weighted-average shares outspxding for the years ended December31 2012

2011 and20l0

Year nded December 31

2012 2011 2010

In thousands

32675 27829 27704

32675 27829 27704

For the periods where the Company reported losses all common stock equivalents are excluded froth the computation Of diluted earningper share

since the result would be antidilutive Securities that were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would have been

antidilutive for the periods presented are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

In thoUsands

Stock options 2391 2582 2341

Warrants 1681

Total antidilutive common stock equivalents excluded from diluted.
earnings per share 072 582 341

Stock-Based Compensation

In September 2011 the Company obtained shareholder approval of the 2011 incentive CompensationPan the Plan which replaced the 2007 Stock

Award Plan the 2007 Plan The 2007 Plan will continue to govern awards previously granted under The Ilans share reserve includes the sum of

million shares of the Company common stock plus any shares of its common stock which have been reserved but not issued pursuant to any

awards granted under the 2007 Plan and ii the number of shares subject to outstanding awards under the 2007 Plan that expire or otherwise terminate

without having been exercised infull or are forfeited to or repurchased by the Company Under the terms of the Plan options to purchase stock are

granted at an exercise price that approximates the fair market value of the underlying shares at the time the grant .Nonqualified options generally

become exercisable on the date of grant and expire in ten years Incentive stock optionsgçnerally become exercisable overa five-year period and the

maximum term of the option may not exceed ten years Compensation expense related to stock options recognized in earnings in 2012 2011 and20l0

was approximately $2 million $1 million and $1 million on pretax basis respectively

Weighted-average shares outstanding basic

Effect of dilutive securities

Weighted-average shares outstanding diluted
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The Company recognizes compensation expense for stock awards based on their fair value and related tax effects over the requisite servire period The

fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using an option valuation method that uses the assumptions noted in the below table

The valuation technique incOrporates assumptions for the expected volatility of the stock price the expected term of the option expected dividends

forfeitures and risk-free interest rate for the expected term of the option As result of its limited trading history the Company uses expected volatilities

based on the historical volatility of sample of companies in similar industry and of comparable size as the Company The expected term of the

option is calculated using simplified method which analyzes the vesting terms of an option along with the contractual term setting the expected term at

midpoint in between The risk-free interest rate takes into account the time-value of money The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of

the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect attimeof grant TheCômpany estimates forfeitures based onhistoricaipre-vesting

forfeitures and revises those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates

The fair value of each option granted was estimated using the following assumptions

2012 2011 2010

Expectedlife employees 6-7 years N/A years

Expected life executives 6-7 years 5.5- 6.5 years 5.75 years

Volatility percentage 54.0%-55.2% 62.6% 63.9% 67.9% 68.8%

Risk free interest rate 0.83%-l.22% 1.13% L94% 1.55% 3.16%

Dividends None None None

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Existing accounting guidance defines fair value establishes framework and gives guidance regarding the methods used for measuring fair value and

requires disclosures about fair value measurements The guidance applies to all assets and liabilities that are being measured and reported on fair value

basis It requires disclosure that establishes framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and about fair value measurements This guidance enables

the reader of the financial statements to assess the inputs used to develop those measurements by establishing hierarchy for ranlung the quality and

reliability
of the information used to determine fufr values Assets and liabilities carried at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following

three categories

Level Quoted market prices in active tharket for identical assets or liabilities

Level Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data

Level Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data

The carrying amounts of other financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable other receivables and accounts payable

approximate fair value due to the short matunty of these instruments Cash and cash equivalents are Level instrument within the fair value hierarchy

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Companys cash and cash equivalents wer Jield by oiLie major fmancial institution and for certain accounts exceed federally insured limits These

cash and cash equivalent balances could be impacted if this financial institution fails or is subjected to other adverse conditions in the financial

markets To date the Company has experienced no loss or lack of access to its cash and cash equivalents

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilitie are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying

amounts of existing assetsand liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected

to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of

change in tax rates is recognized as income in the period that includes the enactment date

When tax returns are filed it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities while others are

inbject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the amount of the position that would be tiltimately sustained The benefit of tax position

is recognized in the financial statements in the period during which based On allavailable evidence management believes it is moie likely than not that

the position will be sustained upon examination including the resolution Of appeals or litigation processes if any Tax positions taken are not offset or

aggregated with other positions Tax positions that meet the more-likely-thannot recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit

that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority The Company has determined that there were

no material uncertain tax positions and accordingly no associated interest and penalties were required to be accrued at December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively
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Contiarencies

On an ongoing basis the Company assesses potential liabilities related to lawsuits or claims brought againstit While it is typically very difficult to

determine the timing and ultimate outcome of such actions the Companys management uses their best judgment to determine if it is probable that it will

incur an expense related to the settlement or final adjudication of such matters and whether reasonable estimation of such probable loss if any can be

made In assessing probable losses the Company takes into consideration estimates of the amountof insurance recoveries if any The Company accrues

liability when it believes loss is probable and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated Due to the inherent uncertainties related to the eventual

outcome of litigation and potential insurance recoveries it is possible that certain matters may be resolved for amounts materially different from any

provisions or disclosures that the Company has previously made

Recent Accounting Guidance

Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance

On January 2012 the Company adopted provisions of the authoritative guidance related to changes to fair value measurement and disclosure

Specifically the guidance includes clarification about when the concept of highest and best use is applicable to fair value measurements requires

quantitative disclosures about inputs used and qualitative disclosures about the sensitivity of recurring Level measurements and requires the

classification of all assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the fair value hierarchy including those assets and liabilities which are not recorded at

fair value but for which fair value is disclosed The adoption of this guidance did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

On January 2012 the Company adopted provisions of the authoritative guidance related to the changes to the presentation of comprehensive income

Specifically the guidance gives an entity the option to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net income and the components of

other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive mcome or in two separate but consecutive statements The

Company elected to present components of net income and other comprehensive income in single contmuous statement The components of other

comprehensive income are presented net of the related tax effects Other than the changes in presentation the adoption of this guidance did not have

material impact on the Company consolidated financial statements

Private Placement

On February 16 2012 the Company entered into Purchase Agreement the Purchase Agreement byand among Vitacost JHH Capital LLC an

entity affiliated with JefIIey Horowitz our Chief Executive Officer JHH Great Hill Equity Partners III L.P Great Hill III Great Hill Equity

Partners IV L.P Great Hill Great Hill Investors LLC Great Hill Investors Freshford Partners LP Freshford Partners Freshford Master

Fund Ltd Freshford Master Fund and Baron Small Cap Fund Baron and together with JHH Great Hill III Great Hill Great Hill Investors

Freshford Partners Freshford Master Fund collectively the Investors pursuant to- which the Investors purchased and Vitacost sold an aggregate of

4.9 million shares of the Companys commOn stock at purchase price of $7.04-per share and warrants to purchase an- aggregate of 1.7 million-shares of

the Companys common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $34.8 million The warrants have an exercise price of $7.04 per share and term of

four years The net proceeds of $33.6 million afterthe deduction of fees of $1.2 million incurred in connection with the transaction were allocated

between common stock and warrants based on their relative fair values as of the purchase date
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Inventory consists of the following as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Buildings and building improvements

Furniture fixtures and equipment

Computers

Software

Leasehold improvements

Land

Less accumulated depreciation

Construction-in-progress

December 31
2012 2011

In thousands

2959

761 2591

32558 29272

33319 34822

Raw materials

Work in process and bulk

Finished goods

On August 28 2012 the Company entered into an agreement to outsource its manufacturing operations and lease its manufacturiiig facilities to third

party provider effective September 2012 In connection with the outsourcing of its manufacturing operations the Company sold certain inventory to

the third party provider which will be used to manufacture products for the Company The total selling pnce was $2 million which will be paid in six

monthly payments of $04 million with the first payment due on October 2012 The Company incurred loss of $0 million on the sale of the

inventory

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following as of December31 2012 and 2011

December 31
2012 2011

In thousands

12759 12428

24157 21594

3387 2709

7778 7235

2670 2620

460 460

51211 47046

21045 14995

30166 32051

3325 1578

33491 33629

Construction-in-progress was primarily related to the upgrade of the Companys Lexington North Carolina distribution facility During 2011 the

Company was released from its obligation to purchase $1.2 million of equipment which was previously recorded in construction-in-progress
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Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31 2012 and 2011

December 31

2012 2011

In thousands

Accrued salaries andrelated expenses 1693 2322

Advertising and related expenses 1110 487

Other accrued expenses 3742 3616

6545 6425

Stock Option Plan

summary of the Company stock option activity for common stock for the years ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010 is as follows

Options

Weighted Weighted Average

Average Weighted Remaining

Exercise Average Grant Contractual Life

Price Date Fair Value Years _________________

In thousands except per share

5.67 2.16

9.36 5.60

2.91 1.14

7.25 2.02

8.08 3.14
________________ ________________

6.42 2.79

4.42 2.77

2.19 0.46

7.76 2.88

9.46 5.99
_______________ _______________

5.69 2.83

6.73 3.42

2.29 0.85

7.89 3.33

6.61 3.62

6.40 3.21 7.79 6238

Year Ending December 31

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Operating

Leases

In thousands

1700

1660
588

606

624

751

5929

Outstanding January 2010

Granted

Exercised

Cancelled

Forfeited

Outstanding December 31 2010

Granted

Exercised

Cancelled

Forfeited

Outstanding December 31 2011

Granted

Exercised

Cancelled

Forfeited

Outstanding December 31 2012

Exercisable at December 31 2011

Exercisable at December 312012

Shares

2746
447

292
47

136

2718
1840

194
25
771

4262

2197

605
28

617

5209

Aggregate

_________________
Intrinaic Value

6.67 11990

9.21

3.96 2400

9.80

9.44
_____________

7.01 1897

10.19

2.68 733

8.14

7.19 __________
7.59 6945

8.13

2.01 2573

0.06

2582 6.12 2.68 6.09 4373

2391 6.84 4.18 6.81 3341

As of December 31 2012 there was approximately $72 million of total unrecogmzed compensation cost net of estimated forfeitures related to stock

options granted under.the Companys stockincentive plan which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 3.64 years

Leases

Certain office space is leased under noncancelable operating leases expiring in various years through 2019 Future minimum lease payments by year

and in the aggregate under operating leases are due as follows as of December 31 2012
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The total rental expense included in the statements of comprehensive loss for the years ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $2.0 million $2.1

million and $2.1 million respectively

Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S fe4eral jurisdiction and various state and local jurisdictions Pursuant to applicable statutes of

limitation returns open for adjustment by the Internal Revenue Service IRS are the consolidated federal income tax returns for tax years ended

December 31 2011 and 2012 Pursuant to applicable statutes of limitation state income tax returns open for adjustment by the state tax authorities are

for tax years ended December 31 2004 through December31 2012 The IRS previously examined the Companys 2008 federal income tax return

which resulted in no change to the Companys tax return The Company has also recently concluded an examination of its income tax returns for 2009

and 2010 by the IRS The examination resulted in no material changes

number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position is audited and finally resolved Settlement of
any particular position would usually

require the use of cash The resolution of matter would be recognized as an adjustment to the provision for income taxes and the effective tax rate in

the period of resolution The Company has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions and accordingly no associated interest and

penalties are required to be accrued at December 31 2012

Reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the Companys effective tax rate is as follows

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Taxes computed at federal tax rate 6500 5025 4682
State income taxes net of federal income tax benefit excluding change in valuation

allowance 281 277 236
Non-taxable income 27
Meals and entertainment

Incentive stock options 268 34 83

Other tax assets 916 556 75
Change in valuation allowance state 437 404 944

Change in valuation allowanôe federal 5206 4429 5408

Income tax expense 53 53 1421

The provision for income taxes charged to operations for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Current tax expense benefit

Deferred tax benefit expense

Income tax expense

consists of the following

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

277 1630
224 53 3051

53 53 1421
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant components of deferred tax assets at December 31 2012 and 2011 are presented

below

December 31
2012 2011

15758 8930

366 375

29 393

3258 4153

174
678 791

20089 14816

Deferred tax liability

Depreciation and amortization 611 4205

December 31
2012 2011

Deferred tax liability net
_____________ _____________

Noncurrent liability
350 574

The Company evaluates its deferred tax assets on regular basis to determine if valuation allowances are required In its evaluation the Company

considers taxable loss carryback availability expectations of sufficient future taxable income trends in earnings existence of taxable income in recent

years the future reversal of temporary differences and the available tax planning strategies that could be implemented if required Valuation allowances

are established based on the consideration of all available evidence using more likely than not standard Based on the Companys evaluation

valuation allowance of $16.8 million was established against its net deferred tax assets as of December 31 2012 The Companys deferred tax assets for

which it has not established valuation allowance relate to amounts than can be realized through future reversals of existing taxable temporary

differences The Companys valuation allowance will.be reversed if and when it becomes more likely than not that the Company can generate sufficient

taxable income in the future to utilize the tax benefits of the related deferred tax assets The noncurrent deferred tax liability
of $0.4 million relates to the

excess book basis over tax basis of our goodwill net ofa tax credit carryforward which has an indefmite life Because goodwill has an indefinite life

the reversal of the book basis over tax basis is not cOnsidered source of taxable incometo support the realization of the Companys deferred tax assets

Subsequent revisions to the estimated net realizable value of the deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability could cause the provision for income taxes to

vary significantly from period to period

As of December 31 2012 the Company had unused federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $42 million which were generated

during the year ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 As of December31 2012 the Company had Florida and North Carolina net operating loss

canyforwards of approximately $12.4 million and $11.0 million respectively The state net operating loss carryforwards if not utilized expire

beginning in December 2023

During the years ended December 31 201220.11 and 2010 employees exercised incentive stock options and sold the stock in disqualifying dispositions

For the year ended December 31 2010 portion of the tax benefit associated with the sale of the stock has been recognized as an income tax benefit

Generally incentive stock options provide employees with significant tax benefits by allowing the employee to exercise stock options without being

taxed on the intrinsic value on the exercise date provided the employee owns the stock for specified periods of time Since the employer will not receive

tax benefit upon the exercise of incentive stock options unless there is disqualifying disposition the compensation expense associated with incentive

stock options is treated as permanent difference between book and tax accounting and consequently affects the effective tax rate of the Company For

the year ended December 31 2010 the disqualifying disposition of incentive stock options resulted in related tax benefit of $0.6 million which has

been recorded as reduction in income taxespayable and an increase in additional paid-in capital in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet there

were no tax benefits recognized during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss and credits carryforward

Inventory

Accrued compensation

Stock-based compensation

Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue and reserves

Valuation allowance- state

Valuation allowance federal

Deferred tax liability net

The deferred tax amounts mentioned above have been classified on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows

1785 1348
15043 9837

350 574
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Related Party Transactions

In October 2010 the Company entered into stockholder agreement with Great Hill Investors LLC Great Hill Equity Partners III L.P and Great Hill

Equity Partners IV L.P collectively GHP whereby GHP agreed to various restrictions with respect to the voting transfer and sale of shares of the

Company common stock which it currently owns and with respect to any shares it may own in the future in excess of 30% of the Company

outstanding common stock In addition the Company and Great Hill entered into registration rights agreement which provides Great Hill with certain

demand incidental and shelf registration rights subject to various exceptions and qualifications Lastly the Company agreed to reimburse Great Hill $0.7

million for its reasonable and documented out-of-poôket expenses incurred in connection with consent solicitation that occurred in 2010 The Company

reimbursed $0.4 million and $0.3 million to Great Hill in 2011 and 2010 respectively

The Company paid Board members total of $0.1 million in consulting fees during the year ended December 31 2010 Such amounts have been

included in general and administrative expenses in the statements of comprehensive loss No consulting feepayments were made to Board members in

2012 and 2011

As discussed in Note on February 16 2012 the Company entered into the Purchase Agreement with the Investors for.thepurchase ofshares of

common stock and warrants to purchase shares of common stock of the Company for an aggregate purchase price of $34.8 million Concurrently with

entering into the Purchase Agreement the Company entered into registration rights agreement with Jeffrey Horowitz and JHH which provides Jeffrey

Horowitz and JHH with demand shelf and piggyback registration rights subject to various exceptions and qialiflcations The registration rights

agreement further provides that if the Company enters into registration nghts agreement or similar agreement with any person or entity on more

favorable terms than those contained in the registration rights agreement the registration rights agreement will be amended to include such more

favorable terms Pursuant to the registration rights agreement the Company has agreed to pay all of the registration costs and expenses incurred in

connection with such demand shelf and piggyback registrations

10 Retirement Plan

The Company has defined contribution plan which covers substantially all of the Companys employees Under the plan the Company matches 100%

of the first 3% of contributions and 50% of the next 2% of contributions The Companys contribution is based on maximum of 5% of the employees

contributions The amount contributed to the plan by the Company amounted to $0.7 million $0.6 million and $0.3 million for the years ended

December31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

11 Contingencies

Securities Class Action

On May 24 2010 punitive class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida against the Company

and certain current and former officers and directOrs by stockholder on behalf of herself and other stockholders who purchased Vitacost common stock

between September 24 2009 and April 20 2010 captioned Miyahira Vitacost.com Inc Ira Kerker Richard Smith Stewart Gitler Allen

Josephs David Ilfeld Lawrence Pabst Eran Ezra and Robert Trapp Case 10-cv-80644-KLR After being appointed to represent the

purported class of shareholders the lead plaintiffs filed anamended complaint asserting claims under Sections 11 12a2 and 15 of tlieSecurities Act

of 1933 and Sections 10b and 20a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and Rule lOb-5 promulgated thereunder against Vitacost its

current and former officers and directors and the underwriters of its imtial public offering IPO On December 12 2011 the Court granted

defendants motion to dismiss the complamt and granted plamtiffs leave to amend

On January 11 2012 lead plaintiff filed its second amended complaint asserting claims under Sections 11 12a2and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933

against Vitacost its current and former officers and directors and its underwriters Lead plaintiff purports to bring its action on behalf ofinvestors who

purchased stock in connection with or traceable to the Companys IPO between September 24 2009 and April 20 2010 The complaint alleges that the

defendants violated the federal securities lawsduring the period by among other things disseminating false and misleading statements and/or

concealing material facts concerning the Companys current and prospective business and financialresults The complaint also alleges that as result of

these actions theCompanys stock price was artificially inflated during the class period The complaint seeks unspecified compensatory damages costs

and expenses

On June 25 2012 the Southern District of Florida entered its order granting defendants motion to dismiss in full and dismissing the second amended

complaint with prejudice On July 23 2012 lead plaintiff filed notice of appeal to the Eleventh Circuit of the order granting defendants motion to

dismiss Plaintiff-Appellant filed its opening appellate brief oiiSeptember 17 2012 .Defendant-Appellees-filed their responding brief on October-29

2012 and Plaintiff Appellant filedL its reply in support of its openingbrief on December 2012 Oral argument before the Eleventh Circuit is currently

scheduled for the week of April 2013

46



VITACOSTCOM INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINM4CL4L STATEMENTS

The Company records provisions in its consolidated financial statements for pending litigation when it determines that an unfavorable outcome is

probable and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated As of December 31 2012 the Company has concluded that it is not probable that loss

has been incurred and is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable verdict Therefore the Company has

not provided any amounts in the consolidated financial statements for an unfavorable outcome The Company believes that it has meritorious arguments

for affirmation of the Southern District of Floridas order that it will raise in the appeal It is possible thatthe Companys consolidated financial

statements could be materially adversely affected by an unfavorable outcome

Sales or Other Taxes

numberof states have sought to impose sales or other-tax collection obligations on online retailers Certain states have imposed such sales tax

obligation requirement on remote online retailers that use residents of that state to directly or indirectly refer pOtential customers via link on an internet

website or other means to the online retailer for commission-based fee There is still significant uncertainty as to whether or how existing laws

governing these matters apply to Vitacost and its relationships with its sales affiliates and how these laws will be interpreted for the Company and other

online retailers As result it is currently not possible to determine the ultimate outcome as to whether these obligations apply to the Company under its

specific facts and circumstancesBecause the Company does not believe that it is probablethatthese obligations-are applicable to its specific facts and

circumstances it has not accrued for these obligations as of December31 2012 The Company is also currently unable to estimate the amount of the

loss if any should these obligations- apply to it The eventual outcome of successful assertion by-one or more states that the Company should collect

sales or other taxes may be materially different from any provisions or disclosures the Company has previously made and could have material adverse

effect on theCompanys financial position results of operations and cash flows.-- --

Other matters

In addition to the matter described above the Company is involved in litigation and administrative proceedings primarily arising in the normal course of

its business In the opinion of the Company except as set forth above its liability if any under any other pending litigation or administrative

proceedings would not materially affect its financial condition results of operations or cash flows Furthermore the Company has not been the subject of

any product liability litigation

12 Quarterly Selected Financial DataUnaudited

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

In Thousands Except per

Share Data 2012 20i1 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 20i1

Net sales 83592 63762 79877 65891 82218 63456 84992 67414

Operating loss 6573 2216 3i0 3684 5206 359 184 566

Netloss 6554 2222 4302 -- 3700 5141 5341 3173 3568

Loss per
share --

Basic 0.21 0.08 0.13 0.13 -- 0.15 0.19 0.09 0.13

Diluted 021 008 013 013 015 019 009 013

During the quarter ended December31 2012 the Company recorded an adjustment to reduce bonus expense by $1 million dollars

During the quarter ended September30 2011 the Company recorded an out of period adjustment to increase stock based compensation expense by $04

million related to stock-based option grant that occurred in JUne 2011 under the Companys 2007 StockAward Plan the terms of which provided for

the immediate vesting of certain options under the grant The adjustment was to expense the portion of the award which vested immediately at the grant

date The Company concluded that the adjustment was not material to the previously reported consolidated financial statements
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Atcounting and Financial Disclnsure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer conducted anevaluation of the effectiveness of

our disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule13a-15e as of the endof the period covered by this report Based

upon such evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that those controls and procedures are effective to provide

reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and

communicated to management including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure and are effective to provide reasonable assuiance that such information is recordedprocessed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified by the SECs ruleä aiidfonns

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange

Act Rule 13a-15f Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofour internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on our evaluation under the

framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework our management concluded that our internal controlover financial reporting was effective as of

December 31 2012

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an

independent registered certified public accounting firm as stated in their report which is included herein

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reptnting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph of Exchange

Act Rules 3a-l during the quarter ended December 31 2012 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

control over financial reporting

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer does not expect that our disclosure controls or internal control over

financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud contrQl system no matter how well designed and operated can provide only reasonable not

absolute assurance that the control systems objectives will be met Further the design of control system must reflect the fact that there are resource

constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no

evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any within Vitacost have been detected

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Companys defmitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation14A

which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Companys fiscal year

ended December 31 2Q12

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required under this jtem is incorporated herein by reference to the Companysdefmitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A
which proxy statement will be filed with the Securitiesand Exchange Commission not later than120 days after the close of the Companys fiscal year

ended December 31 2012

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Companydefinitiveprocy statement pursuant to Regulation l4A
which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Companys fiscal year

ended December 31 2012

Item 13 Certain Relationships Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Companys definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A
which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Companys fiscal year

ended December 31 2012

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required under this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Companys definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation l4A
which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Companys fiscal year

ended December31 2012
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PART 1V

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part Of this Report

Financial Statements The information concerning Vitacosts financial statements and Report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein to the section of this Report in Item entitled

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Financial Statement Sbhedule The following financial statement schedule of Vitacost.com Inc for thefiscal years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 is filed as part of this Report and shOi.ild be read in conjunction with th Consolidated Financial Statements of Vitacost.com

Inc

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules not listed abovehave been omitted because they nre not applicable or are not required or the information required to be set forth therein is

included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto

Exhibits See Item 15b below We have filed or incorporated into this Report by reference the exhibits listed on the accompanying Index to

Exhibits immediately following the signature page of this Formi0-K

Exhibits

We have filed or incorporated into the Report by reference the exhibits listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits immediately following

the signature page of this Form 10-K

Financial Statement Schedules See Item 15a above

Item 15A2 Financial Statement Schedule II

All schedules have been omitted as the requested information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the financial statements or related notes

included as part of this Report
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SIGNATURES

Dated March 2013

/s/ Edwin Kozlowski

Edwin Kozlowski

/s/Robert Trapp

Robert Trapp

March 2013

March4 2013

March 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by

the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

VITACOST.COM INC

By /s/JeffreyJHorow4E

Jeffrey JHorowitz

Chief Executive Officer

/s/BriªnD.Helrnafl

Brian Helman

Chief Fmancial Officer

POWER OF ATTORI4EY

KJ40W ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that each person
whose signature aeârsbelówcOæstittites and appOints Jeffrey Horowitz and

Brian Helman each as his attorney in fact each with the power of substitution for hitu in any and all capacities to sign any amendments to this

Report on Form 10 and to file the same with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange

Commission hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys in fact or his substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue

hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the

registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature
Title Date

/s/ Jeffrey Horowitz Chief Executive Officer Prmcipal Executive Officer
March 2013

Jeffrey Horowitz

________________________
Chief Financial Officer Pnncipal Financial Officer March 2013

/s/Brian Helman

Brian Helman

Is/Michael Kumin

Michael Kumin

/s/ Christopher Gaffney

Christopher Gaffiiey

Is Stuart Goldfarb

Stuart Goldfarb

Director Interim chairman of th Board

Director
March 2013

Director
March 2013

Director

Director
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EXifiBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Exhibits

3.11 Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant

3.21 Bylaws of the Registrant

4.12 Specimen of Common Stock Certificate

4.2t3 Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement

4.3t4 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement

4.45 Stockholder Agreement dated October 20.10 by and between Vitacost.com Inc and Great Hill Investors LLC
Great Hill Equity Partners III L.P and Great Hill Partners IV L.P

4.55 Registration Rights Agreement dated October 2010 by and between Vitacost.com Inc and Great Hill

Investors LLC Great Hill Equity Partners III and Great Hill Partners IV

4.614 Form of Warrant to Purchase.Comnion Stock

l0.lt3 2000 Stock Option Plan

10 2t6 2007 Stool Award Plan

lO.3t7 2011 Incentive Compensation Plan

l0.4t8 Employment Agreement dated October 19 2019 between Vitacost.com Inc and Stephen Markert Jr

l0.5t9 Employment Agreement dated February 16 0i between Vitacostcom Inc and Jeffery Horowitz

10.6t10 Employment Agreement dated August 2011 between Vitacost.com Inc and Robert Wegner
l0.7t1 Employment Agreement dated August 18 2011 between Vitacost.com Inc and David Zucker

lO.8t12 Employment Agreement dated November 28 2011 between Vitacost.com Inc and Nachiket Desai

10.9f13 Employment Agreement dated January 25 2012 between Vitacost.com Inc and Brian Helman

lO.lOt2 Form of Indemnification Agreement betyeen Vitacost.com Inc and each officer and director

10.1114 Purchase Agreement among Vitacost.com Inc and the Purchasers identified on Exhibit thereto dated February 162012
10.1214 Registration Rights Agreement among Vitacost.com Inc Jef11ey Horowitz and JHH Capital LLC dated February 16 2012

10.13tl5 Employment Termination and General Release Agreement between Vitacost.com Inc and Stephen Markert Jr dated

February 24 2012

10 14t16 Employment Agreement between Vitacost.com Inc and Joseph Topper Jr dated August 2012

10.1517 Manufacturing Agreement between Vitacost.corn Inc and Natures Value Inc dated August 28 2012
10 1617 Facilities Lease Agreement among Vitacost corn Inc Nutra Phanna Manufactunng Corp and Nature Value Inc dated

August282012

10.1717 Equipment Rental Agreement among Vitacost.com .Inc Nutra-Pharma Manufacturing Corp and Natures Value Inc dated

August 28 2012

10.1817 Services Agreement among Vitacost.com Inc and Nutra-Pharma Manufacturing Corp dated August 28 2012
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Registrant

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Certified Public Accotniting Firm

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13-14a of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13-14a of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

10l.INS XBRL Instance Document

101 .SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

l0l.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document

10l.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
10l.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
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Denotes management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K12B filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 28

2011

Filed as an Exhibit to Amendment No of Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on September 21 2009

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 20 2007

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Amendment No of Registration Statement on Form S-i filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on July 28 2009

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 13 2010

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Amendment No of Registration Statement on Form S-i filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 12 2009

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 2011

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 19 2010

Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 22 2011

10 Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2011

lFiled as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 22 2011

12 Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 28 2011

13 Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 31 2012

14 Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 21 2012

15 Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 29 2012

16 Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 2012

17Filed as an Exhibit to Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 28 2012
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